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I. GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Thong tin khai quat/ General information
- Trading name: CAT LAT PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

- Enterprise registration certificate: No. 0305168938 issucd by the Department of
Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City for the first time on August 27, 2007 and
changed for the 11th time on March 29, 2024

- Charter capital: VND 340.000,000,000

- Owner's equity: VND 593,271,622,182 (as of December 31, 2024)

- Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Sireel, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, ITCM City
- Phone number: 02837423499

- Pax number: 028.3742.3500

- Website: www.catlaiporl.com.vn

- Stock code: CLL

- Formation and development process:

e (at Lai Port Joint Stock Company was established on August 27, 2007 under the
enterprise registration certificate No. 4103007643 issued by the Department of Planning
and Tnvestment of Ho Chi Minh City, with an mitial charter capital of VND
150,000,000,000. The main founding sharcholders arc Voluntary Youth Investment and
Construction Company, now Voluntary Youth Public Benefil Service Company Limited
(24.38% of charter capital) and Sai Gon Newport Company, now Saigon Newporl One
Member Limited Liability Corporation (20.89% of charter capilal). The Company was
cstablished to implement the investment project of construction and cxploitation of a
specialized wharf for loading and unloading containers of Cat Lai Port in Cat Lai Ward,
District 2, Ho Chi Minh City under the mnvestment certificate No. 41121000087 issued by
the People's Committee of ITo Chi Minh City on Junc 9, 2008. Cat Lai Port was built on a
6.2-hectare land arca and water surface adjacent to the land on the Dong Nai river bank
within the old Vilaico wharf water area that had been rclocated to become a port
connected to the existing Tan Cang - Cat Lai contamer porl area of Saigon Newport
Corporation in accordance with the port planning oricntation of the Government and o
Chi Minh City.

o From September 2007 Lo the end of December 2008: The Company carried out
procedures to apply for an investment certificate and invested in construction from the
land and wharf of the old Vitaico Company, into Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company with a
scale of 216 meters of specialized conlainer wharf capable of receiving 30,000-ton ships
with a capacity of 2,500 TEUs and 6.2 hectares of container yard along with loading and
unloading. equipment serving the opcration of the seaport including: 04 Mijack frame
cranes, 02 K.E. quay cranes.
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e May 30, 2008: The Company officially became a public company.

o January 7, 2009: Vietnam Maritime Administration issued an official license to put
the wharf into opcration.

o July 31, 2009: The Company changed ils business license for the first time,
changing the old busincss registration certificate number to the tax code 0305168938,

e December 2009: Cooperated with Tan Cang Stevedoring and Transportation
Agency Joint Stock Company to invest in the exploitation ol a 2,200 DWT wharf (whar{
BT

e August 2011: Public offcring of sccuritics to increasc charter capital from VND
149,973,470,000 to VND 240,000,000,000 according to Public Offering Certificate No.
85/GCN-UBCK. dated August 18, 2011. The Company completed the offering and
reporled lo the State Securities Commission on November 10, 2011.

e 2012:

v" April 2012: Invested and put into operation 01 more rail-mounted container quay
cranc to create a modern and synchronous guay crane syslem, meeting the needs of
loading and unloading ships at wharf No. 7.

v" Junc 2012: Contributed capital of VND 2,258.600,000 to 11o Chi Minh City Rubber
Joint Stock Company (capital contribution ratio 0.72%/charlered capital).

v September 2012: Put into operation 02 modern RTG 6+1 frame cranes lo meet the
needs of loading and unloading containers at the yard.

o 2013:

v" January 2013: Established Logistics Operations Department according to the policy
of cxpanding business activities.

v" March 2013: The Company became a large-scale public company.

v From March 2013 to Deeember 2013: Tnvested in 20 tractors and 40 semi-irailers to
serve the fransportation of goods by road.

o 2014:

v' Invested in 20 more tractors and 30 semi-trailers to meel customers' demand for
road freight transport. '

v" July 8, 2014: Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company's sharcs were officially listed on
the Ho Chi Minh City Slock Exchange, stock code: CLL,

o 2015:

v" Tnvested in 07 more lractors and 30 semi-trailers to meet customers' demand for

road freight transport.
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v June 26, 2015: Contributed capital to cstablish Cat Tai Port International Logistics
Joint Stock Company with a total amount of VND 7,000,000,000, accounting for 35% of
charter capital.

v July 13, 2015: Changed the first time in the sccurities registration certificate,
accordingly the number of additional registered securities was 10,000,000 shares.

v" July 24, 2015: Issued 10,000,000 more shares and increased charter capital from
VND 240,000,000,000 to VND 340,000,000,000 according to Decision No. 302/QD-
SGDHCM dated July 22, 2015.

¥ October 2015: Completed the installation and put into operation 02 new 100% RTG
6 +1 cranes at Cat Lai port.

o 2016:

v Invest in 20 more semi-trailers to meel customers' needs for road freight transport.

e 2018:

v January 2018: Contribuled an additional VND 12.000,000.000 to Cat Lai Port
International Logistics Joint Stock Company, increasing the ownership ratio to 54.29% of
charter capital.

v" August 2018: Purchased land Lo preparc for the construction of the Company's
officc building.

e 2019:

v" Purchased 2,523,400 shares, accounting for 20% of charter capital of Tan Cang
Que Vo Jomnt Stock Company (Bac Ninh).

e 2021:

v" Invested in the construction of the Company's office headquarters in the center of
Distriet 2 (now Thu Duc District). The project is located on land plot number: 789 (old
number: 119-10), map shect 19, Thanh My Loi Ward, District 2, Ho Chi Minh City (now
Thu Duc District, Ho Chi Minh City).

e 2022

v" The Company has complcted the update and received the Tand Use Ri ghts
Certificate on Iebruary 9, 2023 for the Company's officc headquarters project at 50
Nguyen Van Kinh, Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City.

e Since ils establishment, Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company has continuously
developed, invested in the comprehensive construction of a system of wharves, yards,
modern machinery and equipment, and al the samc time recruited, trained employees, and
perfected the organizational structure, thereby improving the efliciency of business
activilies.
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- Other events:

o 2017T:

v June 2017: The Company was awarded a Certificate of Merit by the General
Director of the General Department of Taxalion.

v" August 2017: The Company was awarded a Certificatc of Meril by (he Chairman ol
the Ho Chi Minh Cily People's Committee.

o 2018:

v" June 2018: The Company was awarded a Certificate of Mecrit by the General
Director of the General Department of Taxation.

e 2020:

v~ March 2020: The Company was awarded the lille of Excellent Labor Collective by
the Chairman of the ITo Chi Minh City People's Committee.

e 2022:

v" August 2022: The Company was awarded a Certificate of Meril by the Minister of

National Defense for its outstanding achievements in performing production and business
tasks from 2017 - 2021.

v October 2022: The Company was awarded a Certificatc of Merit by the Prime
Minister for its outstanding achievements in performing production and business lasks
from 2017 - 2021, contributing to the cause of building the Army, strengthening national
defense and protecting the Fatherland.

2. Business lines and business locations

2.1. Main business lines

- Other supporting services related to transportation, details: Shipping agency
scrvices, shipping brokerage services, ship supply services, cargo counting services, ship
towing services, ship cleaning services, customs declaralion services, logistics services,
freight forwarding activitics;

- Cargo loading and unloading, details: Cargo loading and unloading services at
seaports; road cargo loading and unloading services;

-  Warehousing and storage of goods;

- Direct support services for rail and road transport, details: Direct support services
for road transport (excepl liquefied gas for transportation).

2.2. Business locations
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- Providing seaport services, loading and unloading services and leasing of loading
and unloading equipment at Tan Cang - Cai Lai Port, 1295B Nguyen Thi Dinh, Cat Lai
Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City.

- The subsidiary is Cat La1 Porl International Togistics Joint Stock Company, which
operates in the business of road freight transport services and other supporting services
related to North-South and international transport roules belween Vielnam - Laos -
Cambodia.

- The associated company 15 Tan Cang Que Vo Joint Stock Company, which
implements the Duc Long port construction investment project in Chau Phong and Duc
Long communes, Que Vo town, Bac Ninh province, with the main business being the
provision of seaport services, port exploitation, loading and unloading and lcasing of
loading and unloading equipment at Duc TLong Port, Quc Vo, Bac Ninh.

- ITo Chi Minh City Rubber Joint Stock Company (The Company contributed capital
of VND' 2,258,600,000, capital contribution ratio of 0.72%/charter capital) has
implemented the rubber planting and exploitation project in Southern T.aos under the
dircetion of the Ho Chi Minh City People's Committee, and has carried out cooperation
procedures with local authoritics of Champasak and Altapeu provinces (Laos) to apply for
licenses, sign contracts on rubber planting investment and carry out planting and carc
according Lo the technical process of rubber planting on poor {looded dipterocarp forest
land of the Victnam Rubber Industry Group.

3. Information on governance model, business organization and management
apparatus

3.1. Governance model

- The highest authority of the Company is the General Meeting of Shareholdets.

- Board of Directors: clected by the General Meeting of Shareholders, is the
management body of the Company, performing the tasks and powers as prescribed in the
Comipany Charter, Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Company's
intcrnal governance regulations. The Board of Directors consists of 07 members, including
02 independent non-cxccutive members.

- Board of Supervisors: consists of 03 members elected by the General Meeting of
Shareholders, performing the task of supervising the Board of Direclors and the Board of
Management.

- DBoard of Management: appoinled by the Board of Dircctors, responsible for
organizing, opcrating and managing all daily business activitics of the Company. The
Board of Management consists of: 01 Director and 02 Deputy Directors,

— g b=
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3.2, Management structure

GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS
v 1.F
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  |«—— BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

]

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT. |«

y Y v Subsidiarics [
Organization & | | “Pinance & Business | | ovement& o ==
~ Administration | | Planning Department | |- Lopoitation -
- Dcpartment - LTI o= aa PRI
3.3. Subsidiaries / Affiliates
: : Contributed | Owner
Main business and :
No. | Company name Address . charter ship
production ficlds ; :
- capicil | wafle
43 N2 Street,
Mega Village
Cat Lai Port Residential Area, | Road freight transport
'1 International KP3, Phu Iuu and other supporting | 19,000,000,000 5429%
Logistics Joint Ward, Thu Duc services related Lo VND saiaait
Stock Company City, Ho Cha transport
Minh City Piie,
TP. IICM
Kieu Luong
TanCang QueNo. | Village, Duc Long: | nowe. wisetiouss: ana | 78:225:000,000
2 | Joint Stock Commune, Que A 20.00%
i storage services VNI
Company Vo Town, Bac
Ninh Province

4. Development orientation




I. GENERAL INFORMATION

4.1. The main ohjectives of the Company

- The Company was established with the purpose of: mobilizing and cffectively
using investment capital; creating jobs and stable income for employees; bringing
increasing profits to sharcholders; contributing to the State budget and developing the
Company.

- Aiming at sustainable development, in the process of service development, the
Company always focuscs on best tneeting the work of Safety - Quality.

- Arranging and innovating the enterprise; perfecting the management and operation
mecchanism; building and developing the Company into a strong, sustainable Company
with fast growth rate and high competitiveness.

- Professionalizing the staff,

- Implementing a good relationship between the Company and its officers and
‘employees, ensuring harmonious benefits for sharcholders and cmployees, sharing
responsibility with the community, sociely and environment.

- Bulding good cultural values with the Company's identity.

4.2. Medium and long-term development strategy

- Effectively exploiting core service arcas: providing seaport services, conlainer
loading and unloading services at yards and wharves.

- Maximizing the existing advantages of the Saigon Newport Corporation brand and
the Corporation's connecting infrastructure to quickly and sustainably develop modern and
professional [ull-package logistics services with the Corporation.

- Striving to perfect to become a company with leading service quality and a trusted
choice [or customers in port exploitation services as well as logistics services.

- Investing in expanding business scale in other areas of strength associated with port
exploitation to enhance competitiveness and achieve rapid growth.

4.3. Sustainable development goals (environment, society and community) and the
Company's short-term and medium-term related key programs

- Always fulfilling the responsibility of protecling the environment in production and
business.

- Ensuning labor safety goals. Maritime safety activitics, seaport securily, fire
prevention and fighting, etc. are always strictly complied with.

- Always actively mobilizing, supporting and enthusiastically assisting the Trade
Union and the Company's officers and employees lo parlicipale in community activitics

and movement activitics.

5. The risks
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3.1. Financial risks

- Credit risk: is the risk that a party to a contract 1s unable to perform its obligations,
leading to financial losses for the Company. The Company has credit risks arising mainly
from customer reecivables and bank deposits.

e Customer receivables

The Company minimizes credit risk by transacting with entities with good financial
capacity.

In addition, accounts receivable stall regularly monitor receivables to promptly urge
the collection of due amounts.

e Dank deposils

The Company's term and non-term bank deposits arc deposited at repulable banks in
Vietnam, so the credil risk [or bank deposits is low,

The maximum credil risk level for financial assets is the book value of fiancial assets.

All financial assets of the Company are within term and not impaired.

- Market risk: is the risk thal the [air value or futurc cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate according to the market. Markel risks related to the Company's

operations include interesl rale and stock price risks.

e Tnterest rale risk: is the risk that the fair valuc or future cash [lows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate according to changes in market interest rates. The Company's
interest rate risk 1s mainly related to term deposits.

e Stock price risk: The level of impact duc to fluctuations in stock prices on the
Company's profit after lax and equity is non-existent,

5.2, Environmental risks

- The Company identifies the main sources of hazards rclated to environmental
issues arising from the transportation, loading and unloading of dangerous goods; the
colleetion, storage, transporlation and treatment of waste sources. In addition, there are
physical hazards: fire and cxplosion incidents, electrical and thermal incidents.

- Asscssment of the potential impact on human health is to ensure working and labor
conditions, health, work level, height, noisc, radiation, safety and community security.

- The wharf project is geographically located near the junclion of three rivers and is
affected by sand mining of neighboring projects, so there is a risk of crosion caused by
currcnts causing landslides and displacement of the project.

- The subsidence of the containcr yard, due to the terrain, geology and general
ground structure of the whole area is weak s01] and the weak soil was not treated before
constructing the vard struclure (when constructing, it is nccessary to invesl a lot in
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leveling, embellishing, reinforcing the [oundation of the project and accepting
compensation for subsidence during the exploitation process).

The Company always periodically checks safety equipment, fire protection, cleciricity,
waler systems, waste trealment, compliance with regulations on security, labor safety, fire
protection and environmental protection, ctc. At the same time, regularly coordinates with
agencics in implementing plans and implementing inspection work according to

regulations.

The Company has also signed appropriate insurance contracts.
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1I. PERFORMANCE IN THE YEAR

1. Business performance situation

1.1. Business performance results of the Parent company

Unit: VND
Targel Resalis 2024 Plan 2024 Results 2023 Results 1024 w
Plan 2024 |Results 2023
Total Revenue 208.942,450,645 | 221,780,000,000 | 202,145,857,329 04.21% 103.36%
Profit Before Tax 119,887.840,520 | 117,953,000,000 | 115,852,635,212 101.64% 103 48%
Profit After Tax ;5,924,2%,680 94.463,000,000 | 93.406,910,813 101.55% 102.70%

- The Company has completed and exceeded (he 2024 profit plan approved by the
General Meeting of Sharcholders in Reseolution No. 19/NQ-DITPCD/CLL dated June 3,
2024.

- Total revenue did not mect the plan because the Company and Saigon Newport
Corporation lerminaled the conlract [or providing electricity services at wharf B7 from
July 2024. Thercfore, the revenue from electricity supply did not meet the plan.

- Port service provision 15 still the main activity accounting for the largest proportion

of revenue and profit.

1.2, Consolidated business performance resulfs
Pon vi tinh: Déng

“T { Results 2024 Plan 2024 R ;zﬂza Results 2024 Results 2004
P Gl i . Flan 2024 | Results 2023
Taotal Revenue 336,040,025.024 | 323,186,000,000 | 319,841,833,828 103 .98% 105.06%
Profit Before Tax | 124,128,297,191 | 123,943,000,000 | 121,238.555.535 |  100.15% 102.38%
Profit After Tax 99,155,142,068 | 99,533,000,000 | 98,500,287.751 99.62% 100.66%
- Parent : 07,374.835,265 | 97.851,000,000 | 96,847.450.473 99.51% 100.54%
Company's PAT .
= Non-goniroliing |,780.306,803 |  1,682,000,000 | 1.652.837278 | 105.84% |  107.71%
sha;nl}ﬂldws‘ PAT o

- Profit afler lax did not meet the plan even though the individual business results of
the parent company and the subsidiary exceeded the plan. The reason is that according to
legal regulations, when synthesizing the consolidated results, it is necessary to exclude
internal revenue and expenses between the chhompany and its subsidiaries and associated
companies, including financial revenue which is dividends received from subsidiarics and
associated companies. Because the aclual dividends received were higher than plannecd,
the excluded revenue was higher, leading to profit after tax not meeting the plan.
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2. Organization and personnel
2.1. List of Executive Board for term IV (June 27, 2023 - 2028) in 2024:

1.

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son - Chairman of the Board of Directors (appointed from

June 3, 2024):

capital.

2.

Professional gqualification: Marine Transport Fconomics Engineer.

Current positions al other organizations:

Deputy Chief of Office of Saigon Newport Corporation.

Number of shares owned or authorized at Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company:
Individual ownership : 2,886 shares, accounting for 0.008% of charter capital.

Representative ownership : 8,716,170 shares, accounting for 25.636% of charter g

L O

Number of sharcs owned by related persons: none.
Mr. Ta Cao Thai - Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors:
Professional qualification: Road and bridge Engincer.

Current positions at other organizations:

Deputy Director, Head of Technical Investment Department, Youth Volunteer

Public Service Company Limited.

Number of shares owned or authorized at Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company:
Individual ownership : () shares, accounting for 0% of charter capital.

Representative ownership : 7,498,750 shares, accounting for 22.055% of charter

capital.

3

Number of shares owned by related persons: none.

Mr. Le Chi Dang - Member of Board of Directors and Director:
Professional qualification: Architeet.

Current positions at other organizations:

Member of Board of Directors of Tan Cang Que Vo Joint Stock Company.
Number of shares owned or authorized at Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company:
Individual ownership : 0 shares, accounting for 0% of charter capital.
Representative ownership : 0 shares, accounting for 0% of charter capital.
Number of shares owned by related persons: none.

Myr. Pham Hieu Dao - Member of Board of Directors and Deputy Director:
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- Professional qualification: Bachelor of Business Administration; Master of

Transportation Organization & Management.

- Current positions at other organizations:

e Chairman of the Board of Directors of Cat Lai Port Inlemalional Logistics Joint
Stock Company.

- Number of shares owned or authorized at Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company:

e [ndividual ownership : 4,607 shares, accounting for 0,014% of charler capital.

e Representative ownership : 0 shares, accounting for 0% of charter capital.

- Number of shares owned by relaled persons: none.

5. Mr. Hoang Duc Thinh - Member of Board of Directors:
- Professional qualification: Master ol Supply Chain Management.

- Curent positions at other organizations:

e Director of Port Control Center - Saigon Newport Corporation.

- Number of shares owned or authorized at Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company:
e Individual ownership : 0 shares, accounting {or 0% of charter capital.

o Representative ownership : 0 shares, accounting for (0% of charter capital.

- Number of sharcs owned by related persons: nonc.

6. Mr. Nguyen Chau Bao - Independent member of the Board of Directors:
- Professional qualification: Bachelor of Ticonomics.,

- Current positions at other organizations:

o Youth Volunteer Force stalf.

- Number of shares owned or authorized at Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company:

e Individual ownership : ) shares, accounting for 0% of charter capital.

e Represenialive ownership : 0 shares, accounting for 0% of charter capital.

- Number of shares owned by related persons: none.

7. Mrs. Nguyen Huynh Mai - Independent member of the Board of Directors:
- Professional qualification: Civil engineer.

- Current positions at other organizations:

e Dircctor of Investment Planning Department, Saigon Agricultural Corporation
One Member Limited Liability Company.

- Number of shares owned or authorized at Cat a1 Port Jomt Stock Company:

e Individual ownership : 5,500 shares, accounting for 0,016% of charter capital.

A .vﬂ“;gi T ?ﬁhﬁ S EE%E‘J S 2
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e Representative ownership : 0 shares, accounting for 0% of charter capital.

- Number of sharcs owned by rclated persons: none.

8. Mr. Hoang Minh Thao - Deputy Director:

- Professional qualification: Bachelor of Business Administration.

- Current positions at other organizations: none.

- Number of shares owned or authorized at Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company:

e Individual ownership : 589,690 shares, accounting for 1.73% of charter
capital.

e Representative ownership : 0 shares, accounting for 0% of charter capital.

- Number of shares owned by related persons: 2,974,516 sharcs, accounting for
8.75% of charter capital.

9. Mr. Nguyen Viet Truong - Chief Accountant:
- Professional qualification: Umiversity of Finance and Accounting, major in credit
linance.

- Current positions at other organizalions:

e Hcad of the Board of Supcrvisors of Cat Lai Port International Togistics Joint
Stock Company.

e Head of the Board of Supervisors ol Tan Cang Information Technology Solutions
Jomt Stock Company.

o Chicf Accountant of Tan Cang Que Vo Joint Stock Company.

- Number of shares owned or authorized at Catl Lai Port Joint Stock Company:

e Individual ownership : 0 shares, accounting for 0% of charter capital.

e Representative ownership : 0 shares, accounting for 0% of charter capital.

- Number of shares owned by related persons: none.

2.2, Changes in the Executive Board:

Changes in the Executive Board's personnel:

+ Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son replaces Mr. Nguyen Phuong Nam as Chairman of the
Board of Direciors of the Company from June 3, 2024.

+ Add 01 Deputy Director of the Company from June 3, 2024, Mr. Tloang Minh
Thao.

2.3. Number of staff
Total number of stail of the Company as ol December 31, 2024: 39 people.

2.4. Summary of policies and changes in policies for employees:
'kr ‘3 .: ";;
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Implementation of policics for employees in the Company in 2024; In 2024, the
Company has well implemented policies and regimes [or employees according to the
issued Labor Agreement 2024 such as: insurance regimes, support for meal allowances,
support for employees' families in difficulty, maternity regime for female employees,
funeral rcgimes and periodic medical cxamination and trcatment, vacation regimes,
rcgimes for compensation for employees working in toxic environments in kind,... in
accordance with the provisions of law, the Company's Charter of organization and
operation as well as the collective labor agreement.

The Company always cares aboul the lives ol employees, ensuring that employees'
imcome is always improved and increased; at the same time, il focuses on improving their
spiritual life, regularly orgamzing sporls activilies and meelings on the occasion of major
holidays,... making employees always [eel secure and atlached fo the development of Lhe
Company.

3. Tnvestment situation, project implementation situation:

3.1. Major investments:

- Project for repairing and maintaining the rail system and auxiliary equipment
of Wharf No. 7:

e The project has been completed and put into use on: October 14, 2024,

o Investment capital settlement and investment capital settlement approval: Quarter
1/2025. Project settlement value: VND 13,813,949 525.

- Project for repairing embanlkment and 2,200 DWT Whart:
e Total investment: VND 13,394 325 258.

e The Board of Directors has approved the Technical Economic Report according Lo
Resolution No. 08/NQ-HBQT-2024 dated November 21, 2024.

¢ Contractor sclection and construction and installation: January - June 20235.

- Purchase of new Liebherr crane equipment FCC 230 45(40)/26.5(29.5) for
Liebherr LB06 crane:

o Tolal mvestmenl: VND 27.292,410,837.

o Approval of the Technical Economic Report and Confractor Selection Plan: April
2024.

o Organizing bidding and signing the equipment procurement contract on Oclober
17, 2024. Goods will arrive at the end of March 2025. » Expected installation and
commissioning in April 2023.

3.2, Subsidiary
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In June 2015, the Company contributed capital to establish Cat Lai Port International
Logistics Joint Stock Company with a lotal amount of VND 7 billion, accounting for 35%
of charter capital. 3

In January 2018, the Company invested an additional VND 12 billion in the share
issuance to increase charter capital from VND 20 billion to VND 35 billion of Cat Lai Port
International T.ogistics Joint Stock Company, increasing the capital contribution ratio to
54.29%. _

In 2024, Cat Lai Port International Logistics Joint Stock Company had the following

business results:

: VND 142,327,999,075.

: VND 4,904,026,414,

: VND 3,894,421,131. \

e Total revenue

e [rofil belore tax
s Profit after tax

3.3. Associated Company

In December 2019, complcted the transfer of ownership of all 2,523,400 shares of ICI}!’
Que Vo Port Joint Stock Company (now renamed Tan Cang Que Vo Joint Stock
Company) from Mr. Doan Van Xuan to Cal Lai Port Joint Stock Company, accounting for
20% of charter capital.

lan Cang Que Vo Joint Stock Company has completed the investment and
construction of phase 2.

In 2024, Tan Cang Que Vo Joint Stock Company achieved the following results:

e Total revenue : VND 64,765,269,604,
o Profit before tax : VNI 40,221,904,699.
e Profit aller tax : VND 32,024,923,759,

4. Financial situation

4.1. Financial situation
Unit: million VND

Target Parent l:l‘.}l'l.'.lpal:l}" Consolidated financial statements
2024 2023 % 2024 2023 %
| Total Assets 618211 | 612,868 | 100.9% | 681,711 | 675102 | 101.0%
| NetRevemue 190,945 | 186,767 | 102.2% | 322,589 | 306291 | 1053% |
Operating Profit 119,594 | 115589 | 103.5% | 121,666 | 118,134 | 103.0%
Other Profit 294 263 111.8% | 2463 3104 | 793%
| Profit Before Tax 119,888 | 115853 | 103.5% | 124,128 | 121,239 | 1024%
Profit After Tax 95924 | 93,407 | 1027% | 99155 | 98,500 | 100.7%
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4.2. Key financial indicators

Parent company
Target
Nim 2024 Nﬁl}l_ﬁﬂl?:
1. Solvency indicators a
I Quick ratio . e .48 1038
(Cash and cash equivalents) / Current liabilitics B
¥ STl IO . 14.07 15.48
Current assets / Current habilities 2
2. Resowrces structure indicators
+ Liabilities / 'l'otal assets ratio ) Q.ﬂél 0.04
t Liabihties / Equity ratio 0.04 0.04
3. Operating capacily indicators s
+ Inventory tumover ‘ 0.85 19.79
Cost of goods sold / Average inventory
+ Met revenue / Average lotal assets 31.02 29.61
4. Profitability indicators
+ Return on equity (ROE) 16.20% 1533%
+ Retum on assets (ROA) 15.58% 14 81%
+ Return on net revenue 50.24% 50.01%
+ Operating profit / Net revenue 62.63% f;_l 1.89%

5. Sharcholder structure, change in owner's equity

5.1. Share

- Total number of shares and types of shares outstanding: 34,000,000 common

shares.

5.2. Shareholder structure

No. Sharcholder structure

1 | Major Shareholders

Minority Sharcholders

3 J_nstituti_t;mal Shareholders

4 | Individual Shareholders

5 | Domestic Shareholders
6 | Foreign Sharcholders

Shares owned Ratio

21,739,352 63.94%

12,260,648 36.06%

Total (1+2) 34,000,000 100.00%
24,293 906 71.45%

9,706,094  28.55%

Total (344) 34,000,000 100.00%

o 30,400,399 89.41%
3,599,601 10.59%
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Total (5+6) 34,000,000 100.00%
7 | State Shareholders 16,214,920 47.69%
& | Other shareholders 17,785,080 -~ 5231%
Total (7+8) 34,000,000 100.00%

5.3. Changes in Owner's Equity

None.

5.4, Treasury Share Transactions

As of December 31, 2024, the Company has no treasury shares.
5.5. Other Securities

None.
6. Report on impact of the Company on environment and society
6.1, Environmental impact

“All production and business activities of the Company arc not outside the framework
of the law”. Recognizing the problem, since its establishment, the Company has always
thoroughly implemented the spirit of respecting the law in all activities Lo each oflicer and
employce. The development and promulgation of the Company's Charler, regulations,
rules and internal rules of the Company are all based on the provisions of the law,
especially regulations on the environment.

Environmental indicators and environmental responsibilities arc always guaranteed and
given top priority in the sustainable development of the Company.

Every year, environmental inspection teams come lo mspect the Company and have
posilive commerits on the Company's compliance with environmental laws.

6.2. Material resource management

To operate specialized equipment in the Company's port exploitation process, m
addition to using electricily, cranes can also usc gasoline and oil fuel when necessary (in
casc of clectrical problems, repairs, maintenance, ctc.).

6.3. Energy consumpiion

The Company is currently operating 03 KE gantry cranes, 04 RTG 6+1 tire-mounted
cranes and 01 Liebherr quay cranc at Tan Cang - Cal Lai port. All of these cranes consume
clectricity to operate.

The cost of electricity for production and business in 2024 1s 6,645,034,365 VND and
the electricity used by the office block 1s 174,628,159 VND.

6.4. Water consumption (water consumption of business activities in the year)

el
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Regarding the cost of watcr consumed for production and business activitics: beeause the
Company operates in the same system as Tan Cang Saigon Corporation al Tan Cang - Cat T ai
port, it uses the same mfrastructure system and walter source of Tan Cang Saigon Corporation.

Water consumption is only for drinking water and office water, the cost in 2024 is: VND
37.677,408.

6.5, Compliance with environmental protection laws

a) Number of times fined for non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations

Since its establishment, the Company has always complied with environmental laws
and regulations. Every year, environmental inspection teams come to inspect the Company
and have positive comments on the Company's compliance with environmental laws.

b} Total amount of fincs imposed for non-compliance with environmental laws and
regulations: None.

6.0. Employee-related policies

a) Number of employees, average salary for employees

-  Employees

Current employees as of December 31, 2024 : 39 people

Number of employees increased during the period: 01 person

Total average number of employces in 2024 : 39 people

- Salary

Total salary fund in 2024 :16,951,585,189 VND, including:

e Employee salary [und : 12,173,771,855 VND (equal to 10.09%
of Total Salary Revenue minus Total Non-Salary Expcnscs).

o Tixecutive Board salary fund : 4,777,813,334 VND (cqual to 3.96% of

Total Salary Revenue minus Total Non-Salary Expenses).

b) Labor policy to ensurc the health, safety and welfare of employees

Every year, the Company signs a contract with Tan Cang Medical Center to provide
general health examination services for all employecs of the Company.

At the same time, to prevent occupational diseases and work accidents, the Company
has provided full prolective equpment, fire prevention and lire safety raining for all
employees; and a compensation regime for employees working in toxic environments in
kind. :

Emplovees working at the Company not only receive salary, vear-end bonuses, and
13th month salary, but also cnjoy many other policies and regimes. Typically, awards are
given to collectives and individuals with outstanding achicvements.

: e : ¥ " -y # *J -':'FP-
SeEaT) -,.H*E-*r..m ma

1




The Company always fully and seriously mmplements the Stale's regulations on
employces, All employees are covered by social insurance, health insurance, etc. The
Union has developed many programs to care for and improve the spiritlual and material life
ol employees. Specifically, it is concerned with implementing the regime for employees
every year with welfare regimes such as: annual sightseemg tours, support for shift meals,
receiving emergency allowances (when being sick or their parents, spouse, children are
sick cte.), receiving funeral and wedding regimes, Tet gifts, Mid-Autumn glts, gifts for
children, cte.

¢) DImployee training activilies

- Average training hours per year, by employee and by employee classification: 16
hours/person/year.

- Skills development and continuous learning programs to support employees to

ensure employment and career development.

6.7. Report on responsibility to the local community

In 2024, the Company has financial support activitics to scrve the community such as:

- Contributing to the Fund “Supporting Vietnamese Heroic Mothers, Relatives of
Martyrs™ and the 2024 gratitude activity launched by Saigon Newport Corporation.

- Contributing to the Children's Support Fund launched by Saigon Newport
Corporation.

- Coniributing (o the campaign “Caring for the poor, not leaving the poor behind”
launched by Thanh Nien Xung Phong Public Service Company Limited. '

6.8. Report on green capital market activities under the guidance of the State

Securities Commission

‘The Company 1s laking steps to preparc and orient to develop the green capital market
under the guidance of the State Securities Commission.
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1. Evaluation ol business performance
Overview analysis of the company's business performance:

- Total revenue reached VND 208.94 billion, equal to 94.21% of the annual plan and
103.36% compared to 2023.

- Total expenses reached VND 89.06 billion, equal to 85.77% of the annual plan and
103.20% compared to 2023.

- Total profit before tax reached VND 119.89 billion, equal to 101.64% of the annual
plan and 103.48% compared to 2023.

- Total profit after tax reached VND 95.92 billion, equal to 101.55% of the annual
plan and 102.69% compared Lo 2023.

- State budget paymenl: VND 40.39 billion, of which Corporate income tax payable
is VND 23.96 billion.

- Assessimg profitability m 2024:

e Profit after tax / Avcrage total asscts - =15.58%
o Profit after tax / Average equity = 16.20%
e Profit after tax / Net revenue = 50.24%

e Profit from operating activities / Net revenuc = 62.63%

- Assessing solvency in 2024:

¢ Quick solvency = 3.68 times
e Short-term solvency = 14.07 times
e Liabilities / Equity = 0.04 times

= The Company has a healthy financial foundation and good solvency.
2. Financial situation
2.1. Asset situation

- (Current asscts:

- Unit: VND
End of 2024 Beginning of 2024 End of vear
No. Indicataor T Beginning
F ; Beginning ;
- R _Endmg halance Ratio Kalamon Ratio of year
g | Sankand cash 91,729,692,660 | 26.15% | 228,171,368,733 | 67.10% | 40.20%

gquivalents

3 || Shart-torm financial 185.000,000,000 | 52.73% | 85.000,000,000 | 25.00% | 217.65%
mvestiments

3 | Shorl-term recervables 66,361,292,132 18.92% 20562537608 | 6.05% 322.13%

4 | Inventories 5753{],6?5,211 1.58% 5,185,890,519 1.52% 106.65%
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‘ 5 ‘ Chther current assets r 2,189.509.160 62% 1,139,076,966 | 0.33% 192.22%
1 | Total l 350,811,169,163 | 100.00% | 340,058,873,820 I[I[I.ﬁ[l"zﬂ 103.16%
- Non-current assets:
Unit: VND
Fnd of 2024 Beginning of 2024 Fnd of year
No. Indicator RS Beginning
o ; Beginning i
Ending balance Ratio balance Ratin of year
1 | Long-lerm receivables - 0.00% - 0.00%
2 | Fixed assets 152,948,920,997 57.200% [ 171,050,233,042 | 62.70% 80.42%
g | Rongrteamaisels g 1,304,512,479 | 049% | 3.911,703,759 | 143% 33.35%
L LA
4 | Long-tenn fnancial 97.846.690.394 | 36.59% | 97.846,690,394 | 35.87% |  100.00%
mvestments IL. 2
5 (| W ot 15300,027,888 | 5.72% -l 0.00%
| assets 2
Total 267,400,151,758 | 100,00% | 272.808,627,195 | L00.00%, 98.02%
2.2. Liabilities situation
- Current liabilitics situation, major fluctuations mn habilities:
- . Unit: VND
End of 2024 Beginning of 2024 End of ycar
No. Indicator CT = Beginnin
Ending balance Ratio BEE{;:;:E . Ratio ! _n%year E
1 Current liabilitics 24,939,698,739 | 100.00% 21.974,572,822 | 100.00% | 113.49%
Trade payables 5,602.979.789 22.47% 2,734, 181,227 | 12.44% 204.92%
?_.hurl—le.rm advances - 0.00% | 0.00%
from customers .
Tanasand othice 5903625559 | 23.67% |  6,603,055,891 | 30.05% | 89.41%
obligations )
Payables to employees 4.447.246.526 | 17.83% 3,043 464,788 | 13.85% 146,12%
Accrued expenses 8314352 0.03% 301,937,267 1.37% 2.75%
Crliey atiept-erm 6.221,297,527 | 24.95% 6,637.483,197 | 3021% | 93.73%
Payables | 1
Short-term borrowings = 5
and fnancial leases 0l I D'Dﬂ’/ﬂ_ = 0.00%
el 2.756,234,986 | 11.05% | 2,654,450,452 | 12.08% | 103.83%
y | Nop-current | 0.00% -1 000%
linbilities s - s
Other long-term ) 0.00% R 0.00%
= payables
Lcrug;lcnn_bormwmgs ) 0.00% | doov
and financial leases B o
Total 24,939,6948.739 | 100.00% 21,974,572,822 | 100.00% | 113.49%
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According to the above table, the Company's liabilities at the end of 2024 increased hy
13.49% compared to the beginning of 2024, of which all are current liabilities, no non-

current habilities.
The Company has no other overdue unpaid liabilities.

- Analysis of bad debts, the impact of exchange rate differences on the Company's
business performance, and the impact of interest rate differences:

e The Company has no overdue unpaid loans and in 2024, there were no unusual
dcbts or payablcs.

e ‘The Liabilities / Total Assels ratio in 2024 increased [rom 3.59% to 4.03%. The
Company has {ull capacily to pay its debis.

o Impact ol exchange rate differences on the Company's business performance:
None.

e Tmpact of interest rate differences on the Company's business performance: During

the year, the Company did not incur bank loans.

3, Improvements in organizalional structure, policies, and management

In 2024, the Company strived lo complele ils business largets.

The Company's managemenl policies are always supplemenled and adjusted by the
Board of Direclors in a timely manner to comply with the law and the actual silvation of
the Company.

There are many opportunilies and challenges ahead. We believe thal wilh the ellorls
and sohdarity of all employees, the Company will have new developments with better and

more comprehensive resulls.

4. Future development plan

4. 1. Situation characteristics

- The Company 1s operating within the same system as Saigon Newport Corporation.
Therefore, the Company's 2025 business plan will be closely linked to the general
orientation of Saigon Newport Corporation.

- The technical condition of loading and unloading equipment 15 increasingly old and
damaged; therefore, productivity is limited and the cost of repairing equipment increases,
affccting production and business efficiency.

4.2, Directions and tasks for 2025

- Promoting service quality and improve the eflliciency of wharl and yard
cxploitation, as wcll as ensurc the safety of goods in production and business activities.

- Repairing wharf No. 7 and wharf 2,200DW'T to optimize wharf for Cat Lai Port.

- General development orientations in the Saigon Newport Corporation system:
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o Continuing to sign the contract for loading and unloading containers using LB06
cranes at the 2,200DWT wharf with Saigon Newport Corporation (unil pricc remains
unchanged compared to 2024),

e Continuing to i_m]:-rlen‘mnl the Contract for providing loading and unloading
cquipment at the cargo yard for Saigon Newport Corporation (unit price reduced by 5.0%
compared to 2024).

e Continuing to implement the Contract for providing seaport services with Saigon
Newport Corporation (unit price remains unchanged compared to 2024).

e Conlinuing Lo sign an office lease contract at Tan Cang - Cat Lai port, and a health
check-up contract for the Company's employees with Saigon Newport Corporation.

- Directions and policies for the Subsidiary (Cat Lai Port International Logistics
JSC):

e Continuing to rent 02 RI'G 6+1 cranes [rom Cal Lai Porl International Logistics
JSC to lift and lower containers at Tan Cang - Cal Lai Porl yard (unil price reduced by
VNI 558 million compared to 2024).

¢ Signing a contract for financial and accounting consulting services with Cat Lai
Port Intermalional Logistics JSC (minimum unit price of VND 10 million/menth,
cxcluding VAT).

e Researching and perfecting the management mechanism, arrange the management
apparatus, strengthen internal governance, strictly control costs to incrcase vehicle
exploitation efficiency, improve business cfficiency, develop customers, ... fo increase
revenue, profit, ensure completion of the proposed business plan targets.

4.3. Investment and major repair plan in 2025:

- ) Unit: YND
Plan in 2025
No. Category Investment |Implementation| Capital
value (VND) time source

I | Approval of investment, major repairs 30,258,606,667
Repairing embankment and wharf 2,200

1 | DWT (serving the plan to reccive ships 13,375,408,585 # months
with a eapacily of up lo 5,000 DWT)

Preparing documents to receive ships 100%

2 | with a capaeity of up to 40,000 DWT - 1,326,121,655 140 days Gwn
wharf No. 7 Capital of
Preparing documents to receive ships the

3 | with a capacity of up to 5,000 DWT - 1,176,121,655 140 days Company
wharf 2,200 DWT

4 E;vﬁneztmg in purchasing 01 new Liebherr 27.292.410,837 it
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Repaining and upgrading the road behind
wharf No, 7 - Cat Lai Joint Stock FPort

II

Vung Tau Province

4.4, Business plan for 2025:

64,223,354,540

12 months

Implementing procedures to approve the investment cooperation policy for
warchouses at Cai Mep Industrial Park, Tan Phuoe Ward, Phu My Town, Ba Ria

ventures

Unit: VND

Target Parent Company Subsidiary Consolidated
Total revenue 264,303,000,000 141,862,000,000 321,225,000,000
Total expenscs 159,687,000,000 131,518,000,000 212,265,000,000
Profit and loss of joint 6,460,000.000

Profit before tax

104,616,000,000

10,344,000,000

115,420,000,000

Profit after tax

- Parent company's Profit
after tax

§,218,000,000

03,414,000,000

84,736,000,000

89,.657,000,000

- Non-controlling
shareholders' Profit after

ferx

3,757.000.000

5. Explanation of the Board of Directors regarding the audit opinion (if any)

No exceplion.

6. Assessment report related to the company's covironmental and social

responsibility

6. 1. Assessment related to environmental indicators

“All production and business activities of the Company are not outside the framework

of the law”. Clearly aware of the problem, since ils establishmenl, the Company has
always thoroughly implemented the spirit of respecting the law in all aclivilies to each
officer and employce. The development and promulgation of the Company's Charler,
regulations, rules and internal rules of the Company are all based on the provisions of the

law, especially regulations on the environment.

Lnvironmental indicators and environmental responsibility are always guarantced and
given top priority in the sustainable development of the Company.

Every year, cnvironmental inspection teams come to inspect the Company and have
positive comments on the Company's compliance with environmental laws.
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0.2. Assessment related to labor issues

All employees of the Company are signed labor contracts in accordance with the law
and enjoy full benelils according to current regulations of the law. Employees of the
Company arc guarantced stable jobs and income.

The Company implements a working regime of 5 working days / week and 8 hours /
day [or indirect labor and a shifl working regime for direct production. Labor nerms and
salary unil prices are adjusted according Lo the provisions of law and in accordance with
the reality of production and business.

The salary and bonus rcgulations arc transparent and payments are made on time. The
salary increase in the year has been completed well according to regulations.

During the year, a number of pusilianﬁ have been rearranged in accordance with the
Company's organizational siluation, an effective management apparatus has been built,
ensuring a team ol qualilied and prolessional personnel who can meet job requircments,

The quality of the inherited human resources is always a priorily [or the Company, for
yvoung staff with good capacity, it will create condilions for them to atlend training courses
to improve their professional qualifications.

6.3. Assessment related to the responsibility of the enterprise towards the local
community

The Company is always responsible towards the local community, community

activities are always of interest to the Company in addifion to the main production and
business.

“}1.:':". Ay o



IV. BOARD OF DIRECTORS' ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPANY'S
PERFORMANCE

1. Assessment of the Board of Directors on all aspects of the Company's

operations, including assessments related to environmental and social responsibility

Al the end of the 2024 fiscal year, the Company achieved the profit larget set by the
2024 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders.

In -addition, the Company's operations have confributed to cnhancing social
responsibility and environmental protection:

- Employees are guaranteed stable jobs and income.

- Actively creating a healthy working environment, connecting employees with the
- Company into an inscparablc block of intcrests to improve labor productivily and
effcctively usc available resources.

- Suceessfully fulfilling the obligation to contribute to the State budget.

- Social securily work and vnion activilies are well implemented. Always responsible
to the communily and actively coniributing to and supporting charity and social welfare
funds.

- Complying with regulations on environmental protection.
With these positive economic, environmental and social impacts, the Company has

created a good image and contributed to sustainable enhancement of corporate value.

2. Board of Directors' assessment of the Company's Board of Management's
performance

In the past, the Board of Directors has regularly monitored the Company's operations
and the management and administration of the Board of Management. At the same time,
the Board of Directors has also made comments, assessments and dircct instructions to the
Board of Management on important issues in the operations and business plans to ensurc
that all aclivilies i the entive Company comply with the law and comply with the
Resolutions and Decisions of the Annual General Meeling ol Shareholders and the Board

of Direclors.

Undcr the direction of the Board of Dircctors, the Board of Management has
performed well the assigned tasks. Through the Board of Directors' mectings, the Board of
Management reporied on the business performance of the unit and proposed appropriate
solutions and policies to the Board of Directors to promptly resolve the difficulties and
problems of the cnterprisc. The Board of Management also developed business plans,
investment plans and ensured the effectiveness of the Company's business operations.
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The Company always strictly followed the procedures and processes for coordinating
aclivities between the Board of Directors, the Board of Management and the Board of
Supervisors, so the Board of Management’s business operations werc smooth, and the
supervision of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors was maintained

regularly and closcly.

During the year, the Board of Management effectively implemented the resolutions of
the General Meeting of Shareholders, the resolutions of the Board of Directors and had
many good solutions to improve the efficiency of the Company's business operalions.
Investment and procurcment activilies were strictly managed and implemented in
accordance with the provisions of law. Through inspections, examinations and audits, the
Company is assessed to operate cffectively, have healthy finances, and its capital is always

preserved and developed, creating trust for shareholders.

In addition, the Board of Management has well implemented the equal relationship J
between the Company and ils employees, ensuring harmonious benefits for shareholders é
and employecs, sharing responsibility with the community and the environment, actively ]

mobilizing employees to participate in social activitics, charity, gratitude and building a
corporate culture with the Company's own identity.
In general, the business results in 2024 achieved the sct plan, ensuring the Company's

sustainable development and compliance with the law.

3. Plans and orientations of the Board ﬂfﬁirectnrs

Key tasks in 2025: Continue (o develop the Company sustainably and grow strongly.

- Focusing on safc and effective exploitation and maximize the capacity of equipment.

- Continuing to develop steadily in scale, select investment categories and investment
scalc to expand production and business cffectively.

- Strengthening investmen! management, in the right direction, in the righl order and
procedures.

- Always being responsible for the environment and the commumity.

- Fulfilling all obligations to the state budget and socicty of the enterprise.

- Maintaining the activities of full, accurate and timely information disclosure in
accordance with the law. Proactively disclose other information related (o the Company's
operations, ensuring transparcncy of activities in accordance with regulations.

- Improving the ability to prevent and control risks rclated to five salely, labor salety,

traffic safety, elc.
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- Ensuring income, benelits and wurkmb conditions for employees of the Lumpanjr

- Caring for and protect the legitimate rights and interests of sharcholders; creating
favorable conditions for shareholders to receive information quickly and accurately.

- Coordmating with the Board of Supervisors to further strengthen the inspection and
supervision of all aspects of the Company's operations to promotc the optimal use of

sharcholders' investment capital.




V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
IS T — ————————————— ———— —e——————— . — ——— - — & ——————
1. Board of Directors
1.1. Members and structure of the Board of Directors
Board of Dircctors' member structure:

The Board of Directors for term TV (2023-2028) consists of 07 members, including 03
non-executive members and 02 independent non-cxccutive members, ensuring that the
Board of Directors is independent from the Executive Board:

I’crt:cﬁtagc of voting B : i MNumber of]
i Bﬂaru:l of Directors shares owned I '{m . Me@her __ [positions at
| SHRELUre Individual[Representative T xf:t?t“ivc Independent £ u;tl]: :]:1 ”
1 | Ong Nguyén Thanh Son 0,008% 25,636% ) ]
2 | Ong T'a Cao Thai . 0% 0% | v B
3 | Ong 18 Chi Bang 0% 0% il
4 | Ong Pham Hiéu Dao 0,014% 0% ]
5 | Hoang Pite Thinh 0% ow| v o
6 | Ong Npuyén Chau Bao 0% 0% | v % i ]
7 | Ba Nguj;én I_Elij}j}l_l Mai 0,016% (1% ¥ v 1

1.2. Subcommittees of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors has nol yel eslablished any subcommitlees. However, according
to Resolution No. 03/NQ-HBQT-2023 signed of Board of Directors on June 27, 2023, the

following are assigned:

- Mr. Nguyen Chau Bao is responsible for supervising issucs related to port safety
and security, salary and bonus management and human resources of the Company.

- Mrs. Nguyen Huynh Mai is responsible for supervising issues related to investment
and development and financial management of the Company.

1.3. Hoat déng cia Hai dong qudin tri

Trong thoi gian qua HDQT thudng xuyén theo sat cac hoat dong cia Cong ty va cong
ldc diéu hanh, quan 1y ctia Ban Gidm déc. Pdng thoi, HPQT ciing dé ¢6 nhitng nhén xé,
danh gia va y kién chi dao trire tiép dén Ban Giam déc vé cic vén dé quan trong trong cong
tac diéu hanh va ké hoach san xufit kinh doanh nhim dam bao tt ¢i hoat déng trong toan
Céng ty iudn tha ding phép luét, thue hién ding theo cdc Nghi quyét, Quyét dinh cia
DHDCD va HDQT.

1.3. Activities of the Board of Directors

In the past time, the Board of Direclors has regularly monilored (he Company's
activiies and the management and opcration of the Board of Management. At the same

[l Al T S
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time, the Board of Directors has also made comments, asscssments and direcl instructions
to the Board of Management on imporlant issues in the operation and business plans Lo
cnsure that all activities in the entire Company comply with the law and are implemented
in accordance with the Resolutions and Decisions of the General Meeting ol Shareholders
and the Board of Directors.

In 2024, the Board of Directors directed the Board of Management to carry out a
number of key contents, specifically as follows:

- Organizing the development of business plans and directions and solutions for
implementation in 2024.

- Successlully organizing the 2024 Annual General Mecting of Shareholders on June
3,2024,

- Monitoring the implementation of the plan targefs set by the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors. In particular, regularly review,
evaluate, analyze and [orecast the implementation of the business plan in each quarter, as
well as investment policies and economic indicators to have timely guidance measures for
the Board ol Management, meeting the requircments of resources for the Company's
developmenl orientation.

- Direcling the focus on safe and effective exploitation and maximizing the capacity
of equipment; improving the management of facilitics, working conditions, policies and
regimes; ensuring stable income for employees. -

- Checking the implementation and compliance with the provisions of the Enterprise
Taw, charter, inancial management regulations and current regulations of the State,

- Checking the implementation of all obligations to the Statc budget and society of the
enterprise.

- Resolutions / Decisions / Submissions approved by the Board of Directors:

e In 2024, the Board of Directors issued 08 Resolutions related to production and
business issues, investment work, personnel appointment and olher work under the
decision-making authority of the Board of Dircctors, details as follows:

o Issuing Resolulions, approving Submissions:

No. RES:G!].[‘[’IUI]f Date Content
Decision No.

— Dismissed Ms. Bui Thi Thanh Hoa ﬁjnm the
position of Secretary of thc BOD and Person in

O0I/NQ-IIDOT- charge of corporate governance.

15/01/2024

2024 — Appointed Mr. Vo Thai Hau to the position of
Secretary of the BOD and Person in charge of
corporate governance.
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No. Res:ﬂ}unpnf Date Content
Decision No.
Approved the policy of hquidating the LB06
| crane head.
2 {)EIN%}ELDQT 15/01/2024 | — Approved the investment policy of purchasing a
new crane [or the LBO6 crane equipment at the
2,200 DW'T wharf.
Approved the Technical Economic Report of the
projecl “Investment in purchasing new [ixed crancs
03/NQ-HbQT- — 2,200 DW'T wharf — Cat Lai Joint Stock Port”.
3 12/4/2024 ; ;
2024 — Approved the Contractor Selection Plan for the
project “Investment in purchasing new fixed cranes
- 2,200 DWT wharf - Cat I.ai Joint Stock Port™.
— Approved the business results and profit
distribution in 2023:
+ Parent Company's business results;
+ Consolidated business results:
I Profit distribution plan for 2023.
— Approved remuneration payment for the BOD,
BOS in 2023, bonus fund exceeding the plan for
2022.
— Approved salary [und in 2023.
— Approved investment results in 2023,
— Approved the report on the implementation of
lasks according to the Resolution of the BOM and
the Annual GMS in 2023.
— Approved the Financial Supervision Report of
4 04/NQ-ITDQT- 15/4/2024 |the Capital Representative at Cat Lai Port
2024 International TLogistics Joinl Stock Company in
2023.
— Approved the Financial Supervision Reporl of
the Capital Representative at Tan Cang Que Vo
Joint Stock Company in 2023.
— Approved the Financial Supervision Report of
the Capital Representative at ITo Chi Minh City
Rubber Joint Stock Company 1n 2023.
Approved the Dbusiness plan and profit
distribution plan in 2024
+ Business plan of Parent Company in 2024;
+ Profit distribution plan in 2024,
— Salary plan in 2024.
— Remunecration plan for the BOM and BOS in
2024,

e}
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Resolution/
Decision No.

Date

Content

— Consolidated business plan in 2024,

— Approved the signing of contracts -and
transactions between the Company and relaled
persons of the Company; between the Company and
major sharcholders, internal persons, related persons
of internal persons; between the Company and
companies in which members of the BOD, BOS,
Director have been and are founding members or
members of the BOM, Directors in the past 3 years:
Tan Cang Saigon Corporation; Cat Lai Port
International Logistics Joint Stock Company; V.Y.C
Travel Joint Stock Company.
Approved the 2024 investment plan.

— Approved the change of personnel of the Board
of Management for the 4th term (2023 - 2028).
— Approved the appointment of Mr. Hoang Minh
Thao as Deputy Director in charge of
Administrative Organization - concurrently Head of
Administrative Organization Department.
— Approved the plan to organize the 2024 Annual
GMS:
t Closing date for the list of shareholders
attending the Meeting: 17:00 on May 6, 2024;
+ Expected time to hold the Meeting: 14:00 on
June 3, 2024,
— Approved the Draft documents for the 2024
Annual GMS.,

05/NQ-TTDQT-
2024

06/NQ-HDQT-
2024

03/6/2024

— Elected Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son to hold the
position of Full-time Chairman of the Board of
Management of Cal Lai Port Joinl Stock Company.

12/8/2024

— Approved the 2023 dividend payment plan.
Dismissed Mr. Vo Thai Hau rom the position of

Secretary of the BOM and Person in charge of

Corporate governance,

— Appointed Ms. Tran TIc Gia Bao from the

position of Scerctary of the BOM and Person in

charge of Corporate governance.

07/NQ-HDQT-
2024

24/9/2024

— Approved the business results for the first 6
months of 2024:

+ Business results of the parent company;
+ Consolidated business results.
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Resolution/
Decision No.

Date

Content

and the first 9 months of 2024,

— Approved the investment implementation resulty
for the first 6 months of 2024 and the first 9 months
of 2024,

— Approved the report on the implementation of
tasks according to the Resolution of the BOM and
the GMS for the first 6 months of 2024.

Approved the Financial Supervision Report for
the first 6 months of 2024 of the Capiial
Representative at Cat Lai Port International
Logisties Joint Stock Company.

— Approved the Financial Supervision Report for
the first 6 months of 2024 of the Capital
Representative at Tan Cang Que Vo Joint Stock
Company.

— Approved the Financial Supervision Report for
the first 6 months of 2024 of the Capital
Representative atl Ho Chi Minh City Rubber Joint
Stock Company.

08/NQ-1TDQT-
2024

21/11/2024

— Approved the business results for the first 9
months of 2024:

+ Business results of the parent company;

+ Consolidated business resuls.

— Approved the business plan for the fourth quarter
and the whole 2024.

Approved the mvesimenl implementalion resulls
for the first 9 months of 2024 and the whole 2024,

— Approved the investment policy for purchasing
materials for 02 Kranbau Therswalde (KID) Q15
cargo crane winch reducers.

Approved the Economic and Technical Reporl
lor Construction Investment: Repair of embankment
and 2,200DWT Wharf - Cat Lai Joint Stock Port.

— Approved the report on the implementation of
tasks according to the Resolution of the BOM and
the GMS for the first 9 months of 2024.

— Approved the Financial Supervision Report for
the first @ months of 2024 of the Capital
Representative at Cat Lai Port  International
Logistics Joint Stock Company.

— Approved the Financial Supervision Report for
the first 9 months of 2024 of the Capital

P i ]
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Resolution/

: Dat Content
Decision No. e onten

Representative at Tan Cang Que Vo Joint Stock
Company.

— Approved the Financial Supervision Report for
the first 9 months of 2024 of the Capital
Representative al TTo Chi Minh City Rubber Joint
Stock Company.

1.4. Acf;iﬁes of iﬁdepm_dem:ﬁembers of the Board of Directors

Fully allending all meetings of the Board of Directors and always providing
consiructive commenls and suggestions {o the Board of Management; at the same time
directly monitoring and supervising the management work of the Board of Management
according to the work areas assigned by the Board of Directors.

1.5, Activities of subcommittees in the Board of Hi;-eczﬂr;,v

The Board of Dircctors docs not establish subcommittees.

The Company's functional departments are responsible for providing information and
reporting to the Board of Directors upon request through the communication channel of the

Company Secretary.
2. Board of Supervisors

2.1, Members and structure of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors of Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company for the term TV (2023-

2028) consists of 03 members, specifically as follows:

No. Full name Title DE}te of ],]:m? o Prui.“essm_llal
appointment| dismissal qualifications
i it [Tead of Bachelor of Finance -
1 | Do Thanh Thanh BOS 27/6/2023 " Ik
5 Le Thi Doan Supervisor| 27/6/2023 Env!mﬂmcntal technology
Trang Engincer
_ Master of Transport
3 | Le Hai Nam Supervisor] 27/6/2023 Organization and
Management

2.2, Acrivities of the Board of Supervisors

a) Monitoring compliance with legal regulations and the charter of Cat Lai Port

Joint Stock Company in governance and operation:

The Board of Supervisors has performed ils supervisory functions and tasks n

accordance with the provisions of law and the company's intermnal regulations, specifically:
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- The Board of Supervisors has basically participated [ully in the mectings of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Management to maintain regular supervision of the
Company's activilies. The members have scriously performed thewr assigned tasks and also
regularly exchanged and evaluated the Company's operating situation to provide timely
comments.

- Monitoring the Board of Dircctors and the Board of Management's compliance with
legal regulations and the company's charter. The monitoring work focuses on: Monitoring
financial reports, monitoring transactions with related partics and the implementation of
investment projects. The monitoring results show that the Company's [inancial situation is
transparent, and financial efficicncy in the year is at a high level; The implementation of
investment projects is carried out actively and effectively, business activitics arc
increasingly cxpanding and developing and achieving high cfficiency.

-  Monitoring the implementation of the Resolution of the Gencral Meeting of
Shareholders in 2024: Through monitoring, it shows that the company has implemented
and completed well the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The use ol
equity capital, remuneration and budget of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors is in accordance with the Resolution of the General Mecting of Sharcholders.

b) Financial statements appraisal:

The Board of Supervisors has appraised the financial statements in accordance with
regulations, independently supervised the auditing process and the results of the
independent audit of A&C Anditing Company on the audit of the financial statcments and
consolidated financial statements for 2024. After appraisal, it was found thal the [inancial
statements and consolidated financial statcments for 2024 have honestly and reasonably
reflecied the financial situation as well as the business performance of the company as at
December 31, 2024,

¢) Deploying inspection and control work at the company:

The Board of Supervisors has coordinated with the independent auditor, participated in
the surprise and periodic inspectlion teams of the Corporation to inspect and supervise the

following contents:

- Implementation of the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders;
revicwing the appropriateness of the decisions of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management; Controling the order and procedures for issuing regulations, rules and

documents of Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company;

1
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- Controling compliance with current policies and regimes; appraisal of financial

statements for 2024 before and after auditing;

- Checking the reasonableness, legality and honesty in management and operation to

detect potential nisks or shortcomings, therchy providing advice to the management in

applyving measures to limit risks in business activities;

- Checking the use and preservation of capital; the elfecliveness ol capilal use in

mvestment projects and the cfficiency of the enterprise's business activities.

- Through inspection and supervision, the Company has improved its management

and control of risks in the operalion of business activities as well as investment and

development of the enterprisc.

2.3. Results of monitoring the Company's operations in 2024:

a) Monitoring business and financial activities:

Through the resulls of moniloring and auditing financial statements by Independent

auditing A&C Company, the business performance resulls in 2024 of Cal Lai Port Joint

Stock Company are as follows:

- Financial situation as of December 31, 2024:

Parent Company

Consolidated

Ingicators Financial Statements | financial statements
1. TOTAL ASSETS 618,211,320,921 681,710,963,671
1.1. | Current Assels 350.8 I_I-,_{59,1 63 4@2,9&%834,44?
1.2. | Non-current Assets 267,400,151,758 278,806,079,224
2. | TOTAL RESOURCES 618,211,320,921 681,710,963,671
2.1. | Liabilities 24,939,698,739 58,090,148,016
2.2. | Owner's Equity 503,271,622,182 623,620,815,655
- Production and business rgsul__ts_ in 2024: a
Parent Company R lesn]idaéd
Indicators Financial Statements financial
- statements
1. | TOTAL REVENUE 208,942,450,645 | 336,040,025,024 |
L.1. | Sales and service revenue 190,944 857,877 | 322,588.699.271
1.2. | Financial income o 15,893,701,471 |  9,178,573,410
1.3. | Other income 2,103,891,297 4,2’?2,?52-,33
2. | TOTAL EXPENSES 89,054,610125 | 218,116,712,585 |
2.1. | Costof sales 58.138,654,644 | 183,004,099,953
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N Parent Company Consolidated
Indicators Financial Statements financial
statements
22| Selling expenses 1,108,620,560 |  1,108,620,560
2.3, | Administration cxpenscs 27,997.315,982 32,(]68,{}{]?,84{]_
2.4. | Tinancial expenses - ' 35,965,293
| 2.5. | Other expenses 1,810,018,939 1.810,018,939
X, ir:::::::id losses of joint ventures and 6.204.984,752
TOTAL PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1 19,33’?,3{1[]_,_52(] - -124,128,29?,191
TOTAL PROFIT AFTER TAX ; 95,924.290.,680 | 99,155,142.,068
PAYMENT TO THE BUDGET 40,389,792,510 45,&]:}[1,8?_9_,1}1}{:
- Some financial mdicators (Parent CGIHDE::,I_W.':“.__f:lJ;!ﬂHGial statcments):
INDICATORS uNgy| RESDLES | RS
1. | Asset structure
- Non-currenl assels/ Tolal assels %% 43.25% 44.51%
- Current asscts/ Total asscts = 56.75% 55.49%
2. | Resources structure
_ Liabilitics/ Total resources | % 4.03% 3.59%
- Owner's equily/ Tolal resources ) 95.97% 96.41%
3 Solvé:-n ¢y capacity _
- Quick ratio | Lan 368 1038
- Clll'l’Cﬂt—l'i-l-tiD - 14.07 15.48
4. | Profitability ratio el
- Return on equity (ROE) ., 16.20% 15.33%
- Return on assets (ROA) 15.58% - 14.81%
- Pm{i} _after tax/ Net revenue 5().2.*'-1-% 30.01%

Investment monitoring:

In 2024, the company has carried out regular repairs of wharves, cargo yards,

equipment, and means of production and business.

In addition, implementing the resolutions of the General Mecting of Sharcholders and

the Board of Directors, the company has mvested in the construction of the following

proje

cis:
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e Project for repairing and maintaining the rail system and auxiliary equipment
of Wharf No. 7:

+ The project has been completed and pul into use on: Oclober 14, 2024.

+ Investment capital seltlement and investment capital settlement approval: Quarter
/2025, Project scttlement value: VND 13,813,949,525.

® Project for repairing embankment and 2,200 DWT Wharf:

+ Total investment; VND 13,394,325,258.

t The Board of Direclors has approved the Technical Economic Report according to
Resolution No. 08/NQ-HDQT-2024 dated November 21, 2024,

Contractor sclection and construction and installation: January - June 2025,

o Purchase of new Liebherr crane equipment FCC 230 45(40)/26.5(29.5) for
Liebherr LBO6 cranc:

+ Total investment: VNI 27,292,410,837.

I Approval ol the Technical Economic Reporl and Contractor Selection Plan: April
2024,

+ Organizing bidding and signing the equipment procurement contract on October 17,
2024. Goods will arrive at the end of March 2023,

+ [ixpected installation and commissioning in April 2025.

b) Management and operation activities:

The Board of Directors and the Board of Management have performed their functions
and duties in accordance with the provisions of law, the Charter and internal regulations of
the company in implementing business activities. The entirc company, from the Board of
Directors, the Board of Management to the employeces, arc united, determined to
mplement and exceed the assigned business plan. Specifically:

- Activities of the Board of Directors:

The Company's Board of Directors consists of 07 members for Term TV (2023-2028).
In 2024, the Board of Dircctors issucd Resolutions related to the situation ol production

and business activitics and investment activities and other 155ues.

The Board of Directors has performed ils functions and duties, focusing on the goal of
implementing the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders;

directed the Board of Management to implement the 2024 business plan:
(1) Profit before tax reached VND 119.89 billion, exceeding the plan by 1.64%.
(2) Profit after tax reached VND 95.92 billion, excceding the plan by 1.55%.
(3) Ensuring dividend payment to shareholders in 2023 according to the plan.

=
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(4) Paying salarics to employces and remuneration, operating expenses, bonuses for the
Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in accordance with the resolution of the
2024 General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Activitics of the Board of Management:

Based on the direction of the Board of Directors, the Board of Management has
seriously implemented the resolutions of the General Meeling of Shareholders, the
resolutions of the Board of Dircctors to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Law
and the Company's Charter, spccifically as follows:

o Completing the 2024 business plan with profits exceeding the plan; Tolal assets
reached 618.2 billion.

e The Company has fulfilled its tax obligations to the State.

e In 2024, the Board of Management has fully implemented policies and. regimes for
employees. The company's departments operate in accordance with the functions and tasks
prescribed by the Board of Management.

In general, in 2024, the Board of Management has performed well in its leadership and
direction of production and businecss activitics, contributing to the Company's sucecssful
completion of the set plan.

¢) Regarding the coordination of activities between the Board of Supervisors, the

Board of Directors and the Board of Management:

The Board of Dircctors and the Board of Management have closely coordinated with
the Board of Supervisors in monitoring, inspecting and controlling activities to ensurc
compliance with the law and internal regulations of the company, The Board of Directors
and the Board of Management have created favorable conditions for the Board of
Supervisors to deploy and lully complete its functions and tasks in accordance with the law
and the charter.

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors parlicipated in the meelings ol the Board ol Directors
to monitor and give dircct opinions on issucs within its authority. The opinions and
reccommendations of the Board of Supervisors have been fully rccorded and have been
basically accepted, supplemented and edited appropriately by the Board of Directors and
the Board ot Management.

2.4. Some recommendations of the Board of Supervisors

Based on the resulls of the Board of Supervisors' aclivities in 2024, the Board of

S.upervisc-rs recommends the General Meeting of Shareholders as follows:

o I
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- Approving the report of the Board of Supervisors and the Board of Direclors at the
(General Meeting of Shareholders.

- In addition to the resulis achieved in 2024, the Board of Supervisors noles a number
of contents that need to continue (o [ocus on in 2025 as follows:

(1) Strengthening the management ol financial investments Lo limil risks,

(2) Continuing to research [ocused investments, in line with the company's
development strategy to increase production capacity as well as maximize profits for the
company.

(3) Continuing to monitor and review bad debts.

(4) For new cuslomers, there musl be an assessment ol linancial capacity before
performing services to limit debt risks,

3. Transactions, remuneration and benefits of the Board of Directors, the Board of
Management and the Board of Supervisors

3.1. Salary, bonus, remuneration and benefits in 2024

No. Full name Title Total (VND)
Chairman of the Board of Directors
1 | Nguyen Thanh Son (appointed from 03/06/2024) 832,250,000
Chairman of the Board of Directors
2 N_guycn Phuong Nam (resigned from 03/06/2024) 104,376,031
3 | Ta Cao Thai D;puty Chairman of the Board of 147,434,416
Directors ) I
4 | Hoang Duc Thinh Member of the Board of Directors 94,446,340
5 |Neuyen Chan Bao ]n:dependt:ni‘ Member of the Board of 115,916,752
Directors
6 | Manyen Brayoh Mai Tnj:lcpcnficnt Member of the Board of 115.916,752
_ D]rﬁcims N w
7 | 15 ehit D Memht_ar of the Board of Directors 1,375,852,312
cum Dircctor
¢ | Bl HisaDab Member of t}'}f: Board of Directors 1,092,862.977
~ | cum Deputy Direclor O
9 | Hoang Minh Thao Deputy Director 638,141,105
10 | Nguyen Viet Truomg | Chief Accountant 900,654,905
11 | Do Thanh Thanh Head of the Supervisory Board 60,000,000
12 | Le Hai Nam Supervisor 54,000,000
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No. Full name Title Total (FND)
13 | Le Thi Doan Trang Supervisor 54,000,000
Total 5,585,851,590

3.2. Internal persons stock transactions

Mone.

3.3. Conftracts or fransactions with internal persons

in the past 3 years (us of the

reporting date)
S Relationship with Company
performers

sSaigon MNew Portl

The organization of which Mr.
MNguyen Phuong Nam 15 Depuly
General Director, Mr. Nguyen
Thanh Son is Deputy Chief of
Office.

The orgamization ol which Mr.

Transaciion contents

The Company has provided pm{:
services, wharf electricity, loading™
and unloading services, amn¢
cquipment rental for Saigon Ncﬁ%
Port Corporation. '

i F i 15 1N f
Conotanon g{;sﬁi n%};;m;;;r' ok The company has rented offices,
‘The organization of which Mr. Le Slectmcly, P i
Hai Nam is Head of Strategic c:hecl;—up services: for empl:::ryi:es
Management Board, Internal Audit of Saigon New Port Corporation.
Dept. N
The company has rented 02 RTG
T : . 6+1 cranes from Cal Lai Port
Oi."gdmmtmn. ot Wh!Lh M Eham International Logistics Joml Stock
Cat  Lai Port| Hisu Dao is Chaiman of the Famtiag
International Board of Directors. paty’ )

2 5P ; s - : The Company has provided
Logistics Jomt| Orgamization of  which Mr. fnamcial i A
Stock Company | Nguyen Viet Truong is Head of . ; nung

the Bonrit of Superiii consulting services to Cat Lai Port
' i International Logistics Joint Stock
Company. _
VY.C Travel| . organization in which Mr. Do The Cempeny: signed 2 tnuri:?m

3 | Joint Stock Thaph Therh is the Supervisar. mnuacf with V.Y.C Travel Joint

Company Stock Company.

3.4. Evaluation of the implementation of corporate governance regulations

The Company always complies with and implemenls govemance regulations in
accordance with the law.
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1. Audit opinion
Attached documents.

2. Audited financial statements
Attached documents.

Attached documents:

1. Financial statcments for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024 of Cat Lai Porl
Joint Stock Company of A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited, including:

- Report of the Board of Dircctors.

- Independent audit report.

- Balance sheet as of December 31, 2024.

- Income statement for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024,

- Cash flow statement (indircct method) for the fiscal year ending December 31,

- Notes to the Financial Stalements for the [iscal year ending December 31, 2024.

2. Consolidated financial statements for the fiscal vear ending December 31, 2024 of
Cat T.ai Port Joint Stock Company of A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited,
including:

- Report of the Board of Directors.

- Independenl audil report.

- Consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2024.

- Consolidated income statement for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024,

- Consolidated cash [low slatementl (indirect method) for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2024,

- Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [or the [iscal year ending December
31, 2{]24 e

Ho Chi Minh City, March 10, 2025
Seryienre LEGAL REPRESENTA

- State Securities Commission;

- Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange;

- Posted on the Company's website;

- Archived: Secretary of the Board of
Directors.
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company (hereinafier referred to as “the
Company™) presents this statement together with the Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended 3]
December 2024,

Business highlights

Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company operates in accordance with the 1% Business Registration Certificate
No. 0305168938 dated 27 August 2007 granted by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi
Minh City.

During the operation course, the Company has been 11 times additionally granted with (he amended
Business Registration Certificates regarding the supplement of principal activities, charler capital, the
changes in the Company’s legal representative and address, in which the 11" amended Business
Registration Certificale dated 29 March 2024 was due to the change in the Company’s legal
representative.

Head office

- Address : Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City,
Vietnam

- Tel. : 0283 7 423 499 — 0283 7423 501 — 0283 7 423 502

- Fax : 0283 7423 500

- Email : info{@ecatlaiport.com.vn

- Website s wwwieatlaiport.com.vn

Business address: No. 50 Nguyen Van Kinh, Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City.

The principal business activities af the Company are shipping agency services, sea transporl agency
services, maritime brokerage services, shipping lowage services, cargo loading and unloading serviecs
al seaports, trading international multimodal transport services.

Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors and Executive Officers
The members of the Board of Dircctors, the Board of Supervisors, the Board of Management and the
Chief Accountant of the Company during the year and as of the date of this statement include:

Board af Directors

Appointing date/re-appointing
Full name Position date/resigning date
Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son Chairman Appointed on 03 June 2024
Mr. Nguyen Phuong Nam Chairman Resigned on 03 June 2024
Mr, Ta Cao Thai Vice Chairman Appointed on 27 June 2023
Mr. Nguyen Chau Bao Member Re-appointed on 27 June 2023
Ms. Nguyen Huynh Mai Member Re-appointed on 27 June 2023
Mr. Le Chi Dang Member Re-appointed on 27 June 2023
Mr. Pham Hieu Dao Member Re-appointed on 27 June 2023
Mr. Hoang Duc Thinh Member Appointed on 27 June 2023
Board of Supervisors
Full name Position Appointing date/re-appointing date
Mr. Do Thanh Thanh Head of BOS Re-appointed on 27 June 2023
Mr. Le Hai Nam Member Re-appointed on 27 June 2023
Ms. Le Thi Doan Trang Member Appointed on 27 June 2023



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Board of Management and Chief Acconntant

Full name Position Appointing date
Mr. Le Chi Dang Director 19 April 2019

Mr. Pham Hicu Dao Deputy Director 19 April 2019

Mr. Hoang Minh Thao Deputy Director 3 June 2024

Mr. Nguyen Viet Truong Chicf Accountant 20 November 2019

Legal representative
The legal representative of the Company during the year and as of the date of this statement is Mr. Le

Chi Dang — Director (appointed on 19 April 2019).

Auditor

A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ttd. has been appointed to perform the audit on the Financial
Statements for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 of the Company.

Responsibilities of the Board of Management

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements to give a true

and fair view on the financial position, the financial performance and the cash flows of the Company

during the year. In order to prepare these Financial Statements, the Board of Management must:

e sclect appropriate accounting policies and apply them consistently;

e make judgments and estimates reasonably and prudently;

e state clearly whether the accounting standards applied to the Company arc followed or not, and all
the material differences fom these standards are disclosed and explained in the Financial
Statements;

s prepare the Financial Statcments of the Company on the going-concern basis, exeept for the cases
that the going-concern assumption is considered inappropriate;

e design and implement effectively the internal control system to minimize the risks of material
misstatements due to frauds or errors in the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statemenls.

The Board of Management hereby cnsures that all the proper accounting books of the Company have
been fully recorded and can fairly reflect the financial position of the Company at any time, and that all
the accounting books have been prepared in compliance with the applicable Accounting System. The
Board of Management is also responsible for managing the Company’s asscts and consequently has
taken appropriate measures to prevent and detect frauds and other irregularities.

The Board of Management hereby commits to the compliance with the aforementioned requirements in
preparation of the Financial Slatcments.

Approval on the Financial Statements

The Board of Management hereby approves the accompanying Financial Statements, which give a true
and fair view of the financial position as at 31 December 2024, the financial performance and the cash
flows for the fiscal year then ended of the Company in conformity with the Victnamese Accounting
Standards, the Victnamese Enterprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the
preparation and presentation of Financial Statements.

hehalf of the Board of Management,

19 February 20235

]

[T
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No. 2.0071/25/TC-AC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

THE SHAREHOLDERS, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
CAT LA PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company (hereinafier
referred to as “the Company™), which were prepared on 19 February 2025, from page 06 lo page 33,
mcluding the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2024, the Income Statement, the Cash Flow Statement for
the fiscal year then ended and the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Responsibility of the Board of Management

The Company’s Board of Management is responsible for the preparation, true and fair presentation of the
Company’s Tinancial Statcments in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vielnamese Enlerprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the preparation and
presentation of Financial Statements; and responsible for the internal control as the Board of Management
determines necessary (o enable the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements to be free from
material misstatement due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical standards and requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Company’s Financial Statements are free from material misstatcment.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due lo fraud or crror. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Financial Statcments.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

A&C Avditing and Consulting Co., Lid, rading a= Baker Tilly A& C 15 2 member of the global network A
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Opipion of Auditors

In our opinion, the Financial Statements give a true and [air view, in all material respects, of the [inancial
position as at 31 December 2024 of Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company, its financial performance and its
cash [lows for the fiscal year then ended in conformity with the Victnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the preparation and
presentation of Financial Statements.

Other matter

The Auditor’s Report on the Company’s Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
i5 preparcd in Vielnamese and English. Should there be any conflict between the Viemamese and English
versions, the Vietnamese version shall take precedence.

For and on behalf of
/& E‘ﬁtlﬁ““d Consulting Co., Ltd.
/Haoi Brncl\

/‘ /  CONG Ty
||I I'r|.1ﬂ |-;'|1|.|[;F|l -‘ﬁ..Ll HAH

-' Ly b R Ty VRN |

ey aac
\\/ \J,rl_l HA R
G g
Ngtﬁﬁ"!ﬁg Duc — Partoer Vu Tuan Nghia — Auditor
Audit Practice Registration Certificate; Audit Practice Registration Certificate;
No. 0368-2023-008-1 No. 40258-2022-005-1

Authorized signatory
Hanoi, 19 February 2025

A&C Auditiog and Copsulting Co., LAd, trading as Baker Tilly A&C 15 o nzmber of the global neiwork
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Linh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
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ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash
Cash equivalents

Shori-term financial investments
Trading securitics '

Provisions for the diminution in value of
trading securilics

Held-to-maturity mvestments

. short-term receivables

Short-term trade receivables

Short-term prepayments to suppliers
Short-term inter-company receivables
Receivables based on the progress of
construction contracts

Receivables for short-term loans

Other short-term receivables

Allowance for short-term doubitful debts
Tieficit assets for treatment

Inventories
Inventories
Allowance for devaluation of inventories

Oiher eurrent assets
Short-term prepaid expenses
Deductible VAT

Taxes and other receivables from the State

Trading Government bonds
Other current assets

This statement showld be read in conjuncfion with the Nofes te the Financial Statements

Code

100

110
i11
112

120
121
122

123

130
131
132
133
134

135
136
137
139

140
141
149

150
151
152
153
154
155

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

Naote

Vi

V.24

V.3
V4

V.5
V.6

V.7

V.8a

V.11

Ending balance

Unit: VND

Beginning balance

350,811,169,163

91,729,692,660
31,729,692,660
60,000,000,000

185,000,000,000

185,000,000,000

66,361,292,132
45,354,511,826
13,579,060,952

11,575,461,293
(4,147,741,939)

5,530,675,211
5,530,675,211

°2,189,509,160
1,590,400,646
599,108,514

340,058,873,8206

228,171,368,733
32,212, 496,467
195,958,872,266

£5,000,000,000

85,000.000,000

20,562,537,608
4,317,087,329
555,411,817

16,469,315,33%
(779,276,877)

5,185,890,519
5,185,890,519

1,139,076,966
154,171,775
726,585,607
258,319,584



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, ITo Chi Minh City, Viemam

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Balance Sheet (cont.)

ABSETS
B- NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Long-term receivables

Long-term trade receivables

Long-term prepayments to suppliers
Working capital in affiliates

Long-term inter-company receivables
Receivables for long-term loans

Other long-term receivables

Allowance for long-lerm doubtful debits

ol s o6 B

I, Fixed assets

1. Tangble fixed asscts
Historical cosis
Accumulated depreciation

2.  Financial leased assets
Historical cosis
Accimnulated depreciation

3, Intangible fixed assets
Historical costs
Aceumudared amortization

IM1. Investment properties
Historical costs
Accumulated depreciation

IY, Long-ferm assets in progress
1. Long-term work in progress
2. Construction-in-progress

V. Long-term financial investments

1. [Investments in subsidiaries

2. Investments in joint ventures and associates

3. Invesiments in other entities

4, Provisions for the diminution in value of Tong-term
financial invesiments

5. Held-to-maturity investments

V1 Other non-current assets

Long-term prepaid expenses

Deferred income tax assets

Long-term components and spare parts
Other non-current assets

bk M

TOTAL ASSETS

This sfatement should be read in confunciion with the Noter ta the Financial Stafenents

Code
200

210
211
212
213
214
215
216
219

220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229

230
231
232

240
241
242
250
251
252

253
254

255

260
261
2562
263
268

270

Note

V.o

V.10

V.11

V.ib

V.8b

Ending balance Beginning halance
267,400,151,758 272.808,627,195
152,948,920,997 171,050,233,042
77.965,663,989 04,482,327,950
502,266,489, 415 519 965,847 800
(424,300.825,426) (425,483,519,910)
74,983,257,008 76,567,905,092
101, 542,004,441 101,542,004 441
(26,558,747.433) (24,974,099,349)
1,304,512,479 3,911,703,759
1,304,512,479 3.911,703,759
07.846,690,394 07.846,690,394
19,000,000,000 19,000,000,000
78,225,400,000 78,225,400,000
2,258,600,000 2,258,600,000
(1,637,309,606) (1,637,309,606)
15,300,027,888 -
15,300,027.883 -
618,211,320,921 612,867,501,021
7



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Balance Sheet (cont.)

RESOURCES Code, Note Ending balance Beginning balance
C- LIABITITIES 300 24,939,698,739 21,974,572,822
I. Current liabilities 310 24,939.698,739 21,974,572,822
1. Short-term trade payables 311 V.12 5.602,979,789 2,734,181,227 :
2. Short-term advances from customers 312 3 A
3.  Taxes and other obligations to the State Budget 313 V.13 5,903,625,559 6,603,055,8
4. Payables to employees 314 4,447,246,526 3.043.464,7
5.  Short-term accrued expenses 315 8,314,352 301,937.2
6. Shorl-lerm inter-company payables 316
7. Payables based on the progress of 317 -

construction contracts

8.  Short-term uncamed revenue 318 -
9.  Other short-term payables 319 V.14 6,221,297,527
10, Shori-term borrowings and financial leases 320 = -
11. Short-term provisions 321 - -
12. Bonus and welfare funds 322 V.15 2,756,234,986 2.654.450,452
13. Price stabilization fund 323 - -
I4. Trading Govemment bonds 324 - -
II. Noo-current liabilities 330 - =
I. Long-term trade payables i o -
2,  Long-term advances from customers 332 = -
3. Long-term acerucd expenses 333 - -
4. Inter-company payables for working capital 334 - -
5. Long-term inter-company payables 335 - -
6. Long-term uneamed revenuc 336 - -
7.  Other long-term payables 337 - -
8. Long-term borrowings and financial leases 333 - -
9. Convertible bonds 339
10. Preferred shares 340 - 4
11. Deferred income tax liabilitics 341 - -
12. Long-term provisions 342 = 2
13. Science and technology development fund 343 - -

Thiz siatement should be read in comjunction with the Notes to the Financtol Statemenis 8



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Balance Sheet (cont.)

RESOURCES

D - OWNER'S EQUITY

H

Owner's equity
Owner's contribution capital
Ordinary shares carrying voling right

s

Preferred shares

Share premimms

Bond conversion options

Other sources of capital

Treasury shares

Differences on asset revaluation
Foreign exchange differences
Investment and development fund
Business amangement supporting fund
Other funds

Retained carnings

= I S

L
—

Retained earnings accumulated

to the ehd of the previows period
- Retained earnings of the cuprent period

12. Construction investment fund

Other sources and funds
1. ‘Sources of expenditure

2. Fund to form fixed assels

TOTAL RESQURCES

Prepared by

7 /“N/

Code

400

410
411
d11a
411B
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
4214

421b
422

430
431
432

440

Chief Accountant

Note Ending balance Beginning balance
£93,271,622,182 590,802,928.199
V.16 593,271,622,182 590,892,928,199
340,000,000,000 340,000,000,000
340,000,000,000 340,000,000,000

60,123,448,000

60,123,448,000

101,852,596,28% 101,852,596,289
91,295,577,893 £8,916,883,910
167,501,747 88,916,883, 910
91,128,076,146 =

_ 618,211,320,921 612,867,501,021

- Vo Thai Hau

MNguyen Viet Truong

This stafement shorld be read in conjunciion with the Notes to the Financial Statements

19 February 2025
n
gctor

e Chi Dang




CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Viemam

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

INCOME STATEMENT

For the fiseal year ended 31 December 2024

ITEMS Code

L. Reven I.IIE from salLi:s of merchandise and 01

rendering of services
2, Revenue deductions 02
. Net revenue from sales of merchandise and 10

rendering of services
4. Costs of sales i1
s, Gross profit/ (loss) from sales of merchandise and 20

rendering of services
6. Financial income 21
7. Finaucial expenscs 22

In which: Interest expenses 23
8. Sclling expenses 25
9. General and administration expenscs 26
10, Net operating profit/ (loss) 30
11. Other income 31
12. Other expenscs 32
13. Other profit/ (loss) 40
14. Total accounting profit/ (loss) before tax 50
15, Current income tax 51
16, Deferred income fax 52
17. Profit/ (loss) after tax 60
18. Basic earnings per share 70
19. Diluted earnings per share 71

Prepared by Chief Accountant
i /\/
Vo Thai Hau Npuyen Viet Truong

MNote

Vi1

Y12

VL7
VLE

V.13

Fhiz statement showld be read in confunction with the Notes to the Financiol Stalemenis

Current year

Unit: VND

Previous year

190,944,857,877 186,767,257,699
190,944,857,877 186,767,257,699
58,138,654,644 62,031,815,101
132,806,203,233 124,735,442,598
15,893,701,471 14,884,532,612
2 1,637,309,606

1,108,620,560 1,750,327,065
27,997,315,982 20,643,056,627
119,593,968,162 115,589,281,912
2,103,891,297 494,067,018
1,810,018,939 230,713,718
293,872,358 263,353,300
119,887,840,520 115,852,635,212
23,963,549,840 22,445,724,399
95,924,290,680 93,406,910,813

~Le Chi Dang

10



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

N

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indireet method)
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Unit: VND

ITEMS Code Note Current year Previous year
Cash flows from operating activilies
Profit/ (loss) before tax [ 119887, 840,520 115,852,635,212
Adjustments
Deprecintion and amoriization of fixcd asscts and 02 V9. 10 18,553,225,169 24,232,886,388
Provisions and allowances 03 V.6 3,365,465,062 1,637,309,606
Exchange (gain)/ loss due Lo revaluation of
monetary ilems in foreign currencies 04 - -
{(Gain)/ loss from investing activities 03 (17.685,354,524) (14,720,580,932)
Interest expenses 06 - -
Others 07 - =
Operating profit/ (foss) before
changes of working capital a8 124124 176,227 127,002,256,274
{Increase) deercase of receivables 09 (41,426,961,330) 21,623,569,860
{Increase)/ decrease of inventories 10 (344.784,692) (4,103,086,519)
Tncrease/ (decrease) of payables 11 1,688,155,344 (2,039.315,616)
{Increase)f decrease of prepaid expenses 12 (4,061,234,083) 616,858,514
(Increase)f decresse of trading sceuritics 13 _ =
Interests paid 14 - -
Corporate income tax paid 15 V.13 {23,379,653,701) (21,905,697 558)
Other cash inflows from operaling activities 16 V.15 4,000,000 -
Other cash outflows from operating activitics 17 V.15 (5,047,812,163) (4,864,409,708)
Net cash flows from operating activifies 20 51,555,885,602 116,330,169,249
Cash flows from investing activifics
Purchases and construction of fixed assets
and othcr non-current assets 21 (15,123,676,520) (4,831,165,800)
Proceads from disposals of fixed assets
and cther non-current asscls 22 2,073,581,282 200,000,000
Cash outflows for lending, buying debt instuments
of ather entities 23 (275,000,000,000) (105,000,000,000)
Cash recovered from lending, selling debl instruments
of other entitics 24 175,000,000,000 109.409,653,155
Investments into other entities 25 - =
Withdrawals of investments in other entitics 26 - -
Interests eamed, dividends and profits received 27 12,861,243,663 14,847,072,781
Net cash _flows _from investing activities g (100,188,851,575) 14,625,560,136

11

This stuément should be read in confuncion with the Noses to the Fincncial Stotemernts



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Cash Flow Statement (cont,)

TTEMS Code Note Current year

Previous year

ITI, Cash flows from financing activities

1. Proceeds from issuing stocks and capital contributions

(123,818,772,240)

(1323,818,772,248)

7,136,957,145

211.034,411,5588

from ownets 3 -
2. Repayment for capital contributions and re-purchases

of stocks already issued 32 -
3. Troceeds from bomrowings 33 -
4. Repayment for loan principzl 34 -
3. Payments for financial leased asscis 33 -
6. Dividends and profits paid to the owners 36 {87,808,710,100)

Net cash flows from financing acrivitifes 40 (87,808, 710,100)

Met eash flows during the year 50 (136,441,676,073)

Beginning cash and cash equivalents 60 V.1 218,171,368,733

Effects of fluctuations in {oreign exchange rates 6l 5

Ending cash and cash equivalents 70 ¥.1 91,729,692,660

Prepa r/cj_hy/ Chief Accountant
<" Vo Thai Hau Nguyen Viei Truong

Thix statemert should be read in confunciion with the Notes fo the Finameial Stalemenis

218.171.368,733

12
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Victnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year cnded 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

L. GENERAL INFORMATION

1.  Ownership form
Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company (hereinafler referred to as “the Company™) is a joint stock
company.

2.  Operating field
The Company operates in the field of service.

3.  Principal aclivities
The principal activities of the Company are leasing seaport, leasing stevedoring equipment, cargo
loading and unloading services at seaports.

4,  Normal operating cycle
The normal operating cycle of the Company is within 12 months.

5.  Structure of the Company
Subsidiary
The Company only invests in one subsidiary, which is Cat Lai Port International Logistics JSC.
located at No. 43 Road N2, Mega Village Residential Quarter, Quarter 3, Phu Hou Ward, Thu Duc
City, Ho Chi Minh City: The principal activity of this subsidiary is other support services related to
transportation. As of the balance sheet date, the Company’s contribution rale in this subsidiary was
54.29%, the voting rate and the ownership raic were equivalent to the contribution rate.

Associafe

The Company only invests in one associate, which is Tan Cang Que Vo ISC. located in Kieu
Luong Hamlet, Duc Long Commune, Que Vo Town, Bac Ninh Province. The principal activity of
this associate is leasing depot. As of the balance sheet date, the Company’s contribution rate in this
associate was 20%, the voting rate and the ownership ratc were equivalent to the contribution rate.

6. Statement on information comparahility in the Financial Statements
The corresponding figures of the previous year are comparable to those of the current year.

7. Employees
As of the balance sheet date, there were 38 cmployees working for the Company (at the beginning
of the year: 39 employees).

1. FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

1.  Fiseal year
The fiscal year of the Company is from 1 January to 31 December annually.

2.  Accounting currency unit
The accounting currency unit is Viemam Dong (VND) beeause payments and receipts of the
Company are primarily made in VND.

These Notes form an integral part of and showld be read in confumetion with the Fingncinl Statements 13
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

'N__uf.fs_tn the Financial Statements (Cont,) .

IIL.

1.

-
.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND 5YSTEM

Accounting System

The Company applies the Vietnamese Accounting Siandards, the Vietnamese Enterprise
Accounting System, which were issued together wilh the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22
December 2014, the Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 as well as other Circulars
guiding the implementation of the Vietnamese Accounting Standards of the Ministry of Finance in
the preparation and presentation of Financial Siatements.

Statemcnt on the compliance with the Accounting Standards and System

The Board of Management ensures (o follow all the requirements of the Vielnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, which were issued together with the
Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014, the Circular No. 53/2016/TT-RTC dated
21 March 2016 as well as other Circulars guiding the implementation of Victnamese Accounting
Standards of the Ministry of Finance in the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements
All the Financial Statements are prepared on the acerual basis (except for the information related to
cash flows),

The Financial Statements are prepared in Vietnamese and English, in which the Financial
Statements in Vietnamese are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The
Financial Statements in English have been translatcd from the Viemamese version. Should there
be any conflict between the Viemamese and English versions, the Viemamese version shall take
precedence,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits in banks. Cash equivalents arc shorl-term
investments of which the due dates do not exceed 3 months from the dates of the investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value as of the balance sheet date,

Financial investients

Held-to-maturity investrents

Investments are classified as held-to-maturity investments that the Company intends and is able to
hold to maturity, Held-to-maturity investments of the Company only include term deposils in bank.
Interest income from term deposits in bank is recognized in the income statement on the accrual
basis.

Investments in subsidieries

Subsidiaries

Subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Company. Control is obtained when the Company
achieves the ability to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Associates

An associate is an entity which the Company has significant influence but docs not have the right
to control its financial and operating policics, Significant influence is the right to participate in
making resolution on the associate’s financial and operating policies but not control those policies.
Initial recognition

Investments in subsidiaries, associates are initially rccognized at costs, including the cost of
purchase or capital contributions plus other dircetly attributable fransaction cost, If the Company
contribules capital by non-monetary assets, costs of the investment are recognized at the fair value
of the non-monetary assets at the time of occurrence.

These Notes form an integral pari of and should be read In confuretion with the Financial Statements 14
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Finaneial Statements (Cont.)

—

Dividend and profit of the periods prior to the acquisition of investments are deducted from the
cost of such investments. Dividend and profit of the periods afler the acquisition of such
investments are recorded in the Company’s financial income. Particularly, stock dividends received
are not recorded as an increase in value, but the increasing guantity of shares is followed up.

Provisions for impaivment of investments in subsidiaries, associates

Provisions for impairment of investmenis in subsidiaries, associates are made when the
subsidiarics, associates suffer from losses, with the provision amount determined by the difference
between owners’ actual contributed capital and total owners’ equity as of the balance sheet date
multiplied (x) by the Company’s rate of charter capital owning in the subsidiarics, associates. If the
subsidiaries, associales arc parent companies and have their own Consolidated Financial
Statements, provision for impairment loss will be made based on their Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Increases! (decreases) in the provisions for impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates to
be recognized as of the balance sheet date are recorded into “Financial expenses™.

Investments in equity instruments of other entifies J *
Investments in equity instruments of other entities include such investments in equily instruments 2 |
that do not enable the Company to have the control, joint control or significant influence on these
entitics.

Investments in equity instruments of other entities are initially recognized at costs, including cost
of purchase plus other dircctly attributable transaction costs. Dividend and profit of the periods
prior to the acquisition of investments are deducted from the cost of such invesiments. Dividend
and profit of the periods after the acquisition of such investments are recorded in the Company’s
financial income. Particularly, stock dividends received are nol recorded as an increase in value,
but the increasing quoantity of shares is followed up.

Frovisions for impairment of investments in equity instruments of other entities

For investments in equity instruments of other entities which are not listed organizations, of which
the [air value cannot be measured at the time of reporting, provisions are made based on the losses
suffered by investees, with the provision amount determined by the differcnee between owners’
actual contributed capital and total owners® equity as of the balance sheet date multiplied (x) by the
Company’s rate of charter capilal owning in these investees.

Increases! (decreases) in the provisions for impairment of investmenis in equity instruments of
other entities (o be recognized as of the balance sheet date are recorded into “Financial expenses™,

4,  Receivables
Receivables are recognized at the carrying amounts less allowance for doubtful debts.

The c¢lassification of receivables as trade reccivables and other receivables is made according to the
following principles:

e Trade receivables reflect receivables concerning the commercial nature arising from purchase
and sale transactions between the Company and customers who are independent to the Company.

e Other receivables reflect receivables not concerning the commercial nature and irr¢levant to
purchase and sale transactions.

Allowance is made for each doubtful debt afler being offset against liabilities (if any). The
allowance rate is based on the debts® duration of overdue or the estimated loss, as follows:

These Noles form an infegrol part of and should be read in confunction with the Financiol Sietements 15




CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nepuyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Io Chi Minh Cily, Vietnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont.) =

o Az [or overdue debis;
- 30% of the value of debis with the duration of overdue from over 6 months to under 1 year.
- 50% ol the value of debts with the duration of overdue from 1 year to under 2 years.

T70% of the value of debts with the duration of overdue from 2 years (o under 3 years,

100% of the value of debts with the duration of overdue from or over 3 years.

o As for the debis that are not overdue, but considered as doubtful debts: Allowance is made on
the basis of the estimated loss,

Increases! (decreases) in the allowance for doubtful debts to be recognized as of the balance sheet
date are récorded into “General and adminisiration cxpenses”,

5.  Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses comprise actual expenses arising and relevant to financial performance in several
accounting periods. Prepaid expenses of the Company mainly include expenses for tools, expenses
for fixed assct repairs and vehicle insurance premiums. These prepaid expenses are allocated over
the prepayment period or the period in which corresponding economic benefits are generated from
these expenses,

Expenses for tools

Expenses for tools in vse arc allocated into expenses using the straighi-line method for the
maximum period of 3 years.

Vehicle insurance premiums

Vehicle insurance premiums are allocated into work-in-progress using the straight-line method
over the term in the insurance policy.

Expenses for fixed asset repairs
Expenses for fixed asset repairs arising once with high value arc allocated into expenses using the
straight-line mecthod in 3 years.

6. Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are determined by their historical costs less accumulated depreciation.
Historical costs of tangible fixed assets include all the expenses paid by the Company to bring the
asset to its working condition for ils intended use. Other expenses arising subsequent to initial
recognition are included into historical costs of [ixed asscts only if it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of these assets. Those which do not meet the above conditions will be recorded into operation costs
during the year.

When a tangible fixed asset is sold or disposed, its historical cost and accumulated depreciation are
wrilten off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposal is included in the income or the

expenses during the year.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives, The depreciation years applied arc as follows:

Class of fixed assets Years
Buildings and structurcs 0530
Machinery and equipment 03 -12
Vehicles 06
Office equipment 03-06
Other fixed assets 02-06

Fhese Nates form an infegral pari of ancd should be read In confunction with the Finanoial Steiemenis 16
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Noles to ihe Financial Statements (Cont)

T

Intangible fixed assels
Intangible fixed assets are determined by their historical costs less accumulated amortization.

Historical costs of intangible fixed assets include all the costs paid by the Company (o bring the
assct to its working condition for its intended use. Other costs relevant o intangible fixed assets
arising subsequent to initial recognilion ar¢ included into operation costs during the period,
otherwise, these costs are included into historical costs of fixed assets only if they are associated
with a specific intangible fixed asset and result in future economic benefits expected (o be obtained
from the use of the asset.

When an intangible fixed asset is sold or disposed, its historical costs and accumulated
amortization are written off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposal is included in the
income or the expenses during the year.

The Company’s intangible fixed asset includes:

Land use right

Land use right includes all the actual expenses paid by the Company directly attributable to the
land being used such as expenses lo obtain the land use right, ¢xpenses for site clearance
compensation and ground leveling, registration fees, etc. Land use right granted by the State with
obligation to pay land use fees is-amortized in accordance with the straight-line method over the
land granted period (50 years).

Computer software

Costs to obtain computer software, which is not a part associated with (he relevant hardware, will
be capitalized. Costs of computer software include all the expenses paid by the Company until the
date the software is put into use, Computer software is amorlized in accordance with the straight-
line method in 03 - 04 years.

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress reflects the expenses (including relevant borrowing interest expenses
following the accounting policies of the Company) directly attributable to the construction of
plants and the installation of machinery and equipment to serve for production, leasing, and
management as well as the repair of fixed assets, which have not been completed yet. Assets in the
progress of construction and installation are recorded at historical costs and not depreciated.

Payables and accrued expenses

Payables and accrued expenses are recorded based on the amounts payable for goods and services
already used. Accrued expenses are recorded based on reasonable estimates for the amounts
payable.

The classification of payables as trade payables, accrued expenses and other payables is made on

the basis of following principles:

s Trade payables reflect payables of commercial naturc arising from the purchase of
merchandise, services, or assets and the seller 1s an independent entity with the Company.

¢ Accrued expenses reflect expenses for goods, services received from suppliers or supplied to
customers but have not been paid, invoiced or lack of accounting records and supporting
documents; pay on leave payable to employees; and accrual of operating expenses.

s Other payables reflect payables of non-commercial nature and irrelevant to purchase, sales of
merchandise or rendering of services.

Payables and accrued expenses are classified inlo short-term and long-term ones in the Balance
Sheet based on the remaining terms as of the balance sheet date.

These Notes form an integrol part of ond should be reard in confunceion with the Financial Siuicments 17



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietham
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont.)

10.

11.

12.

These Notes favar an integral pare of and should be read tn conjuncrion with the Fingncial Siatements 18

Owner’s equity

Owner’s contribution capital
Owner’s contribution capital is recorded according to the actual amounts invested by the
sharcholders.

Share premiums

The differences between the issuance price and face value upon the TPO, additional issue or the
difference between the re-issuance price and carrying value of treasury shares and the equily
component of convertible bonds upon maturity date are recognized info share premiums. Expenses
directly attributable to the additional issu¢ of shares and the re-issuance of freasury sharcs arc
recorded as a decrease in share premiums.

Profit distribution
Profit after tax is distributed to the shareholders after appropriation for funds under the Charter of
the Company as well as legal regulations and approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

The distribution of profits to the shareholders is made in consideration of non-cash items in
retained carnings that may affect cash flows and the ability to pay dividends such as profit from
revaluation of assets invested in other entities, profit from revaluation of monetary items, financial
instruments and other non-cash items.

Dividend is recorded as payables upon approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Recognition of revenue and income

Revenue from rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services shall be recognized when all of the following conditions are

satisfied:

s The amount of revenue can be measured reliably. When the contract stipulates that the buyer is
entitled to return the services provided under specific conditions, revenue is recognized only
when those specific conditions no longer exist and the buyer is not entitled to return the
services rendered.

« The Company received or shall probably receive the economic bencfils associated with the
rendering of services.

o The stage of completion of the transaction at the end of reporting period can be measured reliably.

o The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.

In the case that the services are rendered in several accounting periods, revenue is recognized on
the basis of the stage of completion as of the balance shect date.

i
1
|

Revenue from operating leases i
/

Revenue from operating leases is recognized in accordance with the straighi-line method during the
lease term. Rentals received in advance for several periods are allocated fo revenues in consistence

with the lease ferm.

Interest
Interest is recorded bascd on the term and the actual interest rate applied in each particular period.

" I W
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CAT LAX PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vistuam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the {iscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont.)

13.

14.

15,

16.

Dividend income

Income from dividends is recognized when the Company has the right to receive dividends from
the investees. Particularly, stock dividends received are not recorded as an increase in value, but
the increasing quantity of shares is followed up.

Expcnscs

Expenses are thosc that result in outflows of the Company’s cconomic benefits and are recorded at
the time of transactions or when incurrence of the transaction is reliable regardless of whether
payment for expenses is made or not.

Expenses and their corresponding revenues are simultancously recognized in accordance with
matching principle. In the event that matching principle conflicts with prudence principle, expenses
are recognized based on the nature and regulations of accounting standards in order to guaraniee
that transactions can be fairly and truly reflected.

Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax only includes current income tax, which is the tax amount computed based
on the taxable income. Taxable income is different from accounting profit due to the adjustments
of temporary differences between tax and accounting figures, non-deductible expenses as well as
those of non-taxable income and losses brought forward.

Related partics

Parties are considered to be related partics in case that one party is able to control the other parly or
has significant influence on the financial and operating decisions of the other party. Parties are also
considered to be related parties in case that they are under the common control or under the
common significant influence.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship and not merely the legal form.

Scgment reporting

A business scgment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is cngaged in
manufacturing or providing products or services and that is subject to risks and returns that arc
different from those of other business segments.

A geographical scgment is a distinguishable componcnt of the Company that is cngaged in
manufacturing or providing products or services within a particular economic environment and that
is subject to risks and relumns that arc different from those of components operating in other
economic environments.

The segment information is prepared and presented in conformily with the accounting policy
applied for the preparation and presentation of the Company’s Financial Statements.

Thexe Notex form an integral part of and showld be réod In confuncilon with the Fironclol Siatemonts 19



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Mguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Victnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

MNotes to the Financial Statements (Cont.)

V. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE BALANCE SHEET

1.  Cash and cash equivalents

Ending balance Beginning balance
Cash on hand 360,887,624 27,357,388
Demand deposits in banks 31,368,805,036 32,185,139,079
Cash equivalents (Bank deposits of which
the principal maturity is from or under 3 60,000,000,000 195,958,872,266
months)
Nam A Commmercial Joint Stock Rank 50,000,000 000 180,000,000,000
Fietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Industry and Trade __10,000.000,000 15,958,872,266
Total 01,729,692,660 228,171,368,733

. Financial investmenis

2a. Held-to-maturity investmenis

Ending balance is term deposits with the temm of 6 — 12 months at commercial banks, which have
carrying value equal to their original costs, the interest rate from 2.9% to 4.4% per year.

2b.  Imvestments in other entities

Ending balance Beginning bhalance
Original cost Provision Original cost Provision
Investments in subsidiary — Cat Lai
; - 0,00 -
Port International Logistics JsC, @ 12:000:000,000 12:000,000.00)
InvEstinents i desociate ~TMICINE wesocannnon . 78.225.400,000 s

Que Vo J5C. @

Investments in other entilies —Ho
Chi Minh Rubber Corporation &

Total : ~ 99,484,000,000 (1,637,302,606) 99,484,000,000 (1,637,309,606)

2,258,600,000 (1,637,309,606)  2,258,600,000 (1,637,309,606)

@ As of the balance sheet date, the Company owned 1,900,000 shares equivalent to 54.29% of charter
capital of Cat Lai Port International Logistics JSC., same as the beginning balance.

) As of the balance sheet date, the Company owned 2,523,400 shares with the face value of VND
25,234,000,000, the carrying value of VNI 78,225,400,000 equivalent to 20% of charter capilal of
Tan Cang CQue Vo JSC,, same as the beginning balance.

@ As of the balance sheet date, the Company owned 225,860 shares cquivalent to 0.83% of charter
capital of Ho Chi Minh Rubber Corporation, same as the beginning balance.

Fair value
The Company has not determined fair value of the investments without listed prices because there
have not been any specific instructions on determination of fair value.

Operation of subsidiaries, associates
The subsidiary and the associate have been in their normal operation and have not experienced any
significant change as compared to that of the previous year.

3

These Notes form an tniegral part of and sheuld be read in conjunclion with the Financlal Statements 20



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Victnam

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ¢nded 31 December 2024
Motes {0 the Fi_n_gni:_i‘al Statements (Cont.)

Transactions with subsidiaries and associates

Significant transactions between the Company and its subsidiary and associate are as follows:

Cut Lai Port International Logistics J§C.
Using services of the subsidiary

Revenue from consulting service provided
Interest on sales with deferred payment
Dividends received from the subsidiary
Tan Cang Que Vo JSC.

Dividends received from the associate

3. Short-term trade receivables

Receivables from related parties

Saigon Newport One Member Limited Liability
Corporalion

Cat Lai Port International Logistics JSC.
Receivabies from other customers
Total

4.  Short-term prepayments to suppliers

FPrepayments (o related parties

Cat Lai Porl Intemational Logistics JSC.
Tan Cang Technical Services JSC,

Tan Cang Construction JSC.
Prepayments to other suppliers
Liebherr-Mcctec Rostock GMBII

Other suppliers

Total

A Otiher short-term receivables

Current year Previous year
8,236,908,928 8,553,325,188
120,000,000 120,000,000
4,961,273 363,951,680
855,000,000 -

6,013,554,495

Ending balance
44,217,043,516

44,217,043,516

 1,137,468,310
45,354,511,826

Ending balance
8,358,000,000
6,000,000,000
2.358,000,000
5,221,060,952
4,603,932,000

617,128,952
13,579,060,952

Value

Ending balance

4,535,759,1

Beginning balance

3,179,619,019
975,932,428

2,203,686,591
1,137,468,310

4,317,087,329

Beginning balance

555,411,817

335,411,817

03

5% - "_...__P-. g 5
":’-'4’}_\_‘ Y

555,411,817

Allowance

Beginning balance

Value

Allowance

Receivables from related partics

Cat Lai Port International Logistics JSC. —
Interest on sales with deferred payment

Receivables from other organizations and

- 7.606,783,625

- 1,606,783,625

5 11,575,461,293 (3,386,023,629)  8,862,531,714
individuals

Accrued interest income of term deposits ~ 4,800,972,602 - 2.,050,443,023
Advances 20,000,000 - 57,600,000
Quang Thai Hong One Member Co., Ltd. @ 6,736,930,124 (3,368,465,062)  6,736,930,124
Oither shori-term receivables 17.558.,567  (17.558.567)

(17,558,567

17,558,567 (17,558,567

Total

11,575,461,293 (3,386,023,629)

16,469,315,339 (17,558,567

These Nates farm an integral part of and should be read in confuncrion with the Finaneial Statements
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Mguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal vear ended 31 December 2024
MNofes to the Finaneial Statements (Cont,)

@ This is interest receivable from the Subsidiary in accordance with the Asset Sale Contracts dated 31
December 2017, paid by deferred payment method, with deferred payment interest rate of 5%
calculated on the decreasing balance.

) This is the receivable from Quang Thai Hong One Member Co., Ltd. in accordance with the Court's
decisions related to the dispute over the business cooperation coniract between Saigon Agricultural
Incorporation and Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company and the consignment contract belween Quang
Thai Hong One Member Co., Ltd. and Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company, accordingly, Quang Thai
Hong One Member Co., Ltd. is required to pay the Company with the amount of VND
6,736,930,124 (including rental and interest). Due to the fact that Quang Thai Hong One Member
Co., Ltd. has not yet fulfilled its payment obligations in accordance with the Judgment and
Enforcement Decisions, the Civil Judgment Enforcement Office of Binh Thanh District had issued
the Decision No. 67/QD-CCTHADS dated 8 May 2023 on the temporary suspension of exit from
the country for Mr. Nguyen Hoang Hai - legal representative of Quang Thai Hong One Member
Co,, Ltd.

6. Allowance for doubiful debts
Beginning balance
Duration

Ending balance

Duration of Original cost  Allowance

overdue of overdue Oripinal cost AIIIIW:{{!Q&
From over 1
Cuang Thai Hong One vear fo |
Member Co., Ltd. under 2 6,736,930,124 (3,368,465,062)
Years z

Other customers

Total

Beginning balance 779,276,877 779,276,877
Additional allowance during the year 1,368,465.062 -
Ending balance 4,147,741,939 779,276,877
7. Inventories
Ending balance _Beginning balance
Tools 4,207,217,455 5,185,890,519
Work in progress 1,323,457,756 :
Total 5,530,675,211 5,185,890,519
8.  Prepaid expenses
8a. Short-term prepaid expenses
Ending halance Beginning balance
Vehicle insurance premiums 147,818,827 154,171,775
Expenses for cranc and wharf repairs 1,442,581,819 == -
Total 1,590,400,646 154,171,775
8b. Long-term prepuid expenses
Ending balance Beginning balance
Expenses for crane repairs 3,329,173,138 -
Expenses for rail system repairs 11,970,854,750 _ .
Total 15,300,027,888 -

Over 3years 779,276,877  (779276,877) Over3 years 779,276,877 (779,

7,516207,001 _(4,147,741,939)

Flucmations in allowance for doubtful debts are as follows:

Currcnt year

779.216 871 (179,276,877)

Previous year

These Motes form an integral part of and should be readd in conjunction with the Financial Stofertents
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Motes to the Financial Statements (Cont.)

10. Intangible fixed assets
Land use right  Computer software Total
Historical costs
Beginning balance 101,262,004.441 280,000,000 101,542,004,441
Ending halance 101,262,004,441 280,000,000 101,542,004,441
I which:
Assets fully amortized but still in use - 280,000,000 280,000,000
Amortization
Beginning balance 24 694,099,349 280,000,000  24,974,099,349
Amortization during the year 1,584,648,084 - 1,584,648,084
Ending balancc 26,278,747,433 280,000,000  26,558,747,433
Net book value
Beginning balance 76,567.905,092 - 76,567,905,092
Ending balance 74,983,257,008 - 74,983,257,008
In which:
Assets temporarily not inuse - - -
Assets waiting for liquidation - = 2
11, Construction-in-progress
Beginning Incurred in the :‘r:::&f:::' r:;:l ::? d Ending
balance year S v balance
EXPENSES
Acquisition of fixed assets - 124,061,666 - 124,081,666
Construction-in-progress 553,543 48 - - 533,543,848
Expenses for fixed asset repairs 3,358.159,911 0,943,769,730 (12,675,022,676) 626,906,965
Project af repair and maintenarice of rail .
Sinten il st eaipnent aPwha N 3,338,159,011 9316,802,705 (12,675,022,676)
Other projects - 626,906,965 - _ 626,906,965
Total 3,011,703,759 16,0 ﬁT,_ES] 396 (12,675,022,676) 1,304,512.479

12. Short-term trade payables

—

Payables to other suppliers 4,270,537,016 1,905,358,406 i
Hong Linh Construction — Trading Co., Ltd. 2,044326,721 1,049,376,088- i;!
Dan Hung Trading Co., Ltd. §10,000,000 -
First Investment and Design Consultancy JSC. 528.698,393 148,933,373
Other suppliers 887,511,902 707,048,945
Total 5,601,979,789 . 2,734,181,227
The Company has no overdue trade payables.

Thace Mater faro ar intesral oart e ol bl ba 2ead in eawE;'n'mr with the Financial Sfafemenis 24

Ending_lmhlan ce

Payables to related parties 1,332,442,773
Saigon Newport One Member Limited Liability 38.400.487
Corporation i

Tan Cang Technical Services ISC. 657,594,180

Tan Cang — $TC Human Resource Development Co., Ltd. -
Tan Cang Construction JSC. 636,448,106

Beginning balance

828,822,821
10,470,301

629,039,320
189,313,200
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Yor the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

MNotes to the Financial S{atements (Cont.)

13. Taxes and other obligations to the State Budget

i ; Ending

Beginning balanee Incurred in the year i
Amount Amount

Payable Receivable payable already paid Payable

13,676,366,718 (13,676,366,718) -
23,963,549,840 (23,379,653,701) 5.442,650,992

VAT on local sales -
Corporate income lax 4, 858,754,853

Personal income tax 1,744,301,038 - 1,870.311,497 (3,153,637.968) 460,974,567

Property tax - - 15,499,175 (15,499.175) -

Land rental - 258319584  B61,065,280 (602,745,698) -

License duly - - 3,000,000 (3,000,000} =

Total 6,603,055,891 258,319,584 40,389,792,510 (40,830,903,258) 5,903,625,559
Value added tax (VAT)

‘The Company has to pay VAT in accordance with the deduction method. The VAT rates are as

follows:
Providing fresh water

Other services

Corporate income fax (CIT)

The Company has to pay CIT for taxable income at the rate of 20%.

Estimated CIT payable during the year is as follows:

Total accounting profit before tax

Increases/(deereases) of accounting profit to
determine income subject 1o tax:

- Increases
Allowance for non-executive BOD, BOS
Other non-deductible expenses

Income subject to tax

Income exempted from tax (income from
dividends)

Total taxable income

CIT rate

CIT payable at common tax rate
Adjustments of CIT of the previous years
Total corporate income tax to be paid

Current year

5%
8%,10%

Previous year

119,857,840,520
6,071,663,174

6,071,663,174
554,700,000
5.516,963,174

125,959,503,694
(6,868,554,495)

119,090,949,199
Zﬂ‘@

23,818,189,840
145,360,000

23,963,549,840

115,852,635,212
831,526,487

831,526,487
588,800,000
242,726,487

116,684,161,699
(4,535,759,103)

112,148,402,596
20%

22,429,680,519
16,043,880

| 22,445,724,399

The determination of corporate income tax liability of the Company is based on the prevailing
regulations on taxes. However, (hese regulations may change from time to time and regulations
applicable to variety of transactions can be interpreted differently. Therefore, the tax amount
presented in the Financial Statements could change when being inspected by the Tax Office.

Property tax

Property tax is paid according to the notices of the tax department.

There Neoter fhrm cn imfeeral vart of and should be read in confunction with the Firmcial Statemernts
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Mguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont.)

Land rental

According to the notice of annual payment of land and waler surface rental No. 7512/TB-
CCTTPTD dated 11 March 2024, the land rental payable in 2024 for an arca of 59,796.2 m® in
Cat Lai Ward, 'Thu Duc City, for the purpose of shipping service activities is VND 861,065,280,

Orher faxes

The Company declares and pays these taxes according lo prevailing regulations.

14, Other short-term payables
' Ending halance Beginning balance
Payables to related parties 162,000,000 -
Allowance for BOD, BOS 162,000,000 -
Payables to other organizations and individuals 6,039,297,527 6,637,483,197
Trade Union's expenditure 30,768,126 27,717,942
:Sncml nsurance, health insurance, unemployment 4,128,734 4,128.720
insurance premiums
Short-term deposits received 375,750,000 375,750,000
Dividends payable 5,626,596,635 6,217,886,535
Other shorl-lerm payables 22,054,032 12,000,000
Total 6.221,297,527 6,637,483,197
The Company has no other overdue payables.
15. Boous and welfare funds
5 Increase due to i
B;F;ﬂ:ii:g m(:{::i::er appropriation Disbursement il:: anl::}ci
e =.. e _ from profit during the year
Bonus fund 1,966.322,863 4,000,000 3,836,971,627 (3,532,000,000)  2,275,294,490
Welfare fund 683,267,707 - 959,242 007 (1,166,430,000) 476,080,614
Bomus fund for the
Executive Officers 4,859,882 - 3493 EZ,IE {349,382,163) 4,859,882
Total 2,654,450,452 4,000,000 5,145,596,697  (5,047,812,163)  2,756,234,986
16. Owner's equity
16a. Statement of changes in owner's equity
Owner's Investment and
contribution Share development Retained
capital premiums fund earnings Total
Previons year
Beginning balance 340,000,000,000 60,123,448,000 101,852,556,282 125,613,728 344 627,589,772,633
Profit of the year - - - 03,406,910,813 93,406,910,813
Dividends declared - - - (125,120,000,000) (125,120,000,000)
Appropriation for the
Executive Officers” bonus
furd from profit of the - - - (313 409,708) {313,405,7086)
previous year
Appropration for bonus
and wellare funds from - - - (4,670,345,541) (4,670,345,541)
profit of the year
Ending balance 340,000,000,000 60,123,448,000 El 352,596,289 88,91 ﬁ,SSE,E_I_I]_ ] 590,892,928,199
These Wotes farm an infeeral part of and should be read in confunciion with the Finmecial Statenents 26



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Neuyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, ITo Chi Minh City, Vietmam
FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fizcal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (Conl.)

Owner’s Investment and
coniribution Share development Retained
capital ~ premiums fund caruings Total
Current pear
Beginning balance 340,000,000,000 60,123,448,000 101,852,596,289 88,916,883,910  590,892,928.199
Profit of the year - - - 05,524,250,680 §5.924,290.680
Dividends declarcd - - (88,400,000,000)  (88,400,000,000)

Appropriation for the
Executive Officers’ bonus
fund from profit of the
previous year
Appropriation for bonus

(349,382,163)

(349,382,163)

and welfare finds from - - (4,796,214,534) (4,796,214,534) :
. profit of the year
Ending balance 340,000,000,000 60,123,448,000 101,852,596,2589 91,205,577,893  593,271,622,182

16b. Details of owner’s capital contribution

Ending balance Beginning balance

The State’s investment capital 162,149,200,000

Saivon Newport One Member Limited Liability

Corporation 87,161, 700,000

162,149,200,000

87,161,700,000

Foluntary Youth Public Benefit Service Co., Ltd. 74,987 500,000 74,987,500,000
Other shareholders’ contribution capital 177,850,800,000 177,850,800,000
Share premiums . 60,123,448,000 60,123 448,000
Total 400,123,448,000 400,123,448,000

16e. Shares

Ending balance Beginning balance

Number of ordinary shares registered to be issucd 34,000,000 34,000,000
Number of ordinary shares already issued 34,000,000 34,000,000
MNumber of outstanding ordinary shares 34,000,000 34,000,000

Face value per outstanding share: VND 10,000,

16d. Profit distribution

During the year, the Company distributed profit in accordance with the Resolution of 2024 Annual ’fr_
General Meeting of Shareholders No.19/NQ-DHDCD/CLL dated 3 June 2024 as follows: “TH
G
Distribution of profit after tiax of 2023 VIND eu
o Appropriation for the Execulive Officers’ bonus fund 349,382,163 T
o Dividends declared 88,400.000,000 Al
5
Temporary distribution of profit after tax of 2024 T
e Appropriation for bonus and welfare funds (5% of profit after tax) 4,796,214,534
[ o PETPREL § JEN R SIS b ety § n;.;-:-::nn.-f ehmaaIoT L wivrard S s frrEAFTAr wiitde the Finrearivil S igpRe Rt 2?



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Neuyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Viemam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the liscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont.)

VI. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE INCOME STATEMENT

1. Revenne from sales of merchandise und rendering of services

la. Gross revenue
Previous year

150,000,000,000

Current year
153,000,000,000

Bevenue from seaporl leasing scrvices
Revenue from stevedoring equipment lcasing

SCrvices 23,800,483,512 25.053,140,539
Other revenue _14,144,374,365 _11,714,117,160
Total 190,944,857,877 186,767,257,699

1b. Revenue from sales of merchandise and rendering of services to related parties

Current year Previous year

Saigon Newport One Member Limited Liability
Corporation

Revenue from seaport leasing services 153,000,000,000 150,000,000,000
Revenue from stevedoring equipment leasing 23,800,483,512 25,053,140,539
Revenue from transport services 7.104,240,000 -
Other revenue 6,645,034,365 11.594,117.160
Total 190,549,757.877 186,647,257,699
2. Costs of sales
Current year Previous year
Costs of seaport leasing services 22.838,155.861 29,683,064,895
Costs of stevedoring equipment leasing services 20,949,146,670 22,295,789,242
Other costs 14,351,352,113 10,052,960,964
Total 58,138,654,644 62,031,815,101
3. Financial income
__ Currcnt year Previous year
Interest from term deposits 8.743,218 747 0,834,249.704
Interest from demand deposits 276,966,956 150,572,125
Dividends and profil received 6,868,554.495 4,535,759,103
Interest on sales with deferred payment 4,961,273 363,931,680
Total 15,893,701,471 14,884,532,612
4,  Financial expenses
Current year Previous year
Provisions for the diminution in value of long-
term financial investments - 1,637,309,606
5. Selling expenses
Current year Previous year
Expenses for external services 720,954,000 925,464,000
Other expenscs 387.666,560 824,863,065
Total 1,108,620,560 1,750,327,065

Thars Nefeo fnrm g inteoral mart af and shaild ke regd in coniunciion with the Eiwancial Sialements 28



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Ngnyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Motes to the Financial Statements (Cont.)

6. Genceral and administration expenses

Labor costs

Materials, supplies

Office supplies
Depreciation/amortization of fixed assels
Taxes, fees and legal fees

Allowance for doubtful debts

Expenses for external services

Other expenses

Total

T Other income

Current year

12,566,166,458
125,633,778
329,933,515
1,001,419,641
23,684,175
3,368,465,062
3,383,192,457
6.298,820,896

27,997,315,982

Current year

Gain on disposal and liguidation of fixed assels

Proceeds from selling used scraps, matérials
Proceeds from enforcement of judgments on

business cooperation contract disputes
Other income
Total

8.  Other expenses

Fines for administrative violation and tax fines

and tax collecied in arrears
Support costs

Expenses for enforcement of judgments on

business cooperation contract disputes (¥)
{(Other expenses

Total

2,073,581,282
30,310,000

Previous year

9,875,398,282
221,946,678
251,048,787
1,831,091,712
18,899,175

2,606,056,060
5,838,615,933

20,643,056,627

Previous year

200,000,000

294,066,047

971

2,103,891,297

494,067,018

Current year

Previous year

219,658,000
71,712,690

1,518,466,400
181,849

18,896,871
184,800,000

7,016,847

1,810,018,939

230,713,718

) According to the Appeal Judgment No. 132/2024/KDTM-PT dated 24 May 2024 of the
People's Court of Ho Chi Minh City regarding the dispute over the business cooperation contract
between Saigon Agricultural Incorporation and Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company, the Company
is required to pay Saigon Agricultural Incorporation VND 1,452,880,000 (including 13 months of
revenue sharing and interest arising from deferred payment) and cover court fees of VND

55,586,400.

9.  Earnings per share (“EPS")

Information on EPS is presented in the Consolidated Financizl Statcments,

Thses Marae frem o infeeral part af ard should be read i cosfupciion with the Firancial Slalemenis
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen ‘Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
MNoles to the Financial Statcments (Cont.)

10. Operating costs by factors
Current ycar Previous year

Materials and supplies 125,633,778 221,946,678

Labor cosls 17,863,439.164 15,215,161,597 /%,
Depreciation/amortization of fixed assets 18,553,225,169 24,232,886,384/ %
Expenses for external services 33,631,524,732 29,475,600,89

Other expenses 17.070,768,343 15,279,603,237
Total 87,244,591,186 §4,425,198,793

VII. OTHER DISCLOSURES

1.  Operaling leased assets
As of the balance sheet date, the future minimum rental income from irrevocable operating Icasq\
contracts to be received is as follows:

Ending balance Beginning baia
From or under 1 year 150,000,000,000 159,9{'“,900
Over 1 year to 5 years 600,000,000,000 750,000,000, L‘r[I
Over 5 years - -
Total 750,000,000,000 !Hl[l 000,000, IIll[H]

The total rental income recognized as revenue during the year is VND 153,000,000,000 (for the
comparable period of the previous year: VIND 150,000,000,000).

2.  Transactions and balances with the related partics
The rclated parties of the Company include the key managers, their related individuals and other
related parties.

2a. Transuctions and balances with the key managers and their related individuals
The key managers include the Board of Directors (BOD), the Board of Supervisors (BOS) and the
Exceutive Officers (the Board of Management, the Chief Accountant). The key managers® related
individuals are their close family members.

Transactions with the key managers and their related individuals

The Company has no transactions with the key managers and their related individuals in the year
(in the previous year, the Company only had transactions of advance and refund of advme\
to/from Mr. Pham Hieu Dao — BOD Member cum Deputy Director with the amount of WD z
40,000,000 and VND 40,000,000, respectively).

Receivables from and payables to the key managers and their related individuals 4

Reccivables from and payables to the key managers and their related individuals are presented in
Note V.14,

These Netes form an integral part of and showdd be reed i confuncion with the Financial Statements 30



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Mguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Laj Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietham

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fizcal year ended 31 December 2024
Moles to the Financial Statements (Cont.)

Compensation of the key managers

Full name — Position Salary Bonus Allowance Total .
___ tompensation

Current year
Mr. Neuyen Thanh Son —Chaiman (fom 03 g,6950 900 15,500,000 _ 832,250,000
Tune 2024)
Mn: T CUBORg T » CiRinag e 02 - 53,676,031 50,700,000 104,376,031
June 2024)
Mr, Ta Cao Thai - Vice Chairman 27434416 120,000,000 147434416
Mr. Nguyen Chau Bao - BOD Member 43,916,752 72,000,000 113,916,752
Ms. Nguyen Huynh Mai - BOD Member 43,916,752 72,000,000 115.916,752
Mr. Le Chi Dang - BOD Member cum i
—— 1,229,055,921 74,796,391 72,000,000 1,375,852,312
Mr. Pham Hieu Dao - BOD Memb

T ol 046,066,586 74796391 72,000,000 1,092,862,977
Deputy Director
Mr. Hoang Duc Thinh — BOD Member - 22,446,340 72,000,000 94,446,340
My, Do Thanh Thanh - BOS Manager - - 60,000,000 60,000,000
Ms, Le Thi Doan Trang - BOS Member - - 54,000,000 54,000,000
Mr. Le Hai Nam - BOS Member - - 54,000,000 54,000,000
Mr. Hoang Minh Thao — Deputy Director

622,641,105 15,500,000 - 638,141,105

{from 03 June 2024)
Mr. Nguyen Viet Troong — Chief Accountant 840,497,430 60157475 - 900,654,905
Total 4,455,011,042 432,140,548 698,700,000 5,585,851,590
Previous pear
Mr. Neuyen Phuong Mam - Chairman - 51,455,325 120,000,000 171,455,325
e h 51455325 58,666,667 110,121,992
{to 27 June 2023)
Wr. Ta Cac Thai - Vice Chaltman i ) 47733333 $7.733.333
(from 27 Junc 2023)
Mr, Hoang Due Thinkh — BOD Member i 36,800,000 16,800,000
(from 27 June 2023)
Mr. Neouyen Chau Bao - BOD Member - 42 099 811 72,000,000 114,009 811
Ms. Nguyen Huynh Mai - BOD Member - 42,099,811 72,000,000 114,009,811
Mr. e Chi Dang - BOD Member cam 1,091,415,855  72,777.568 72,000,000 1236193423
IDhrector
e RO R e 834399231 72,777,568 72,000,000 979,176,799
Deputy Director
Mr. Do Thanh Thanh — BOS Manager - - 60,000,000 60,000,000
Ms. Le Thi Doan Trang — BOS Member - - 27,600,000 27,600,000
Mr. Le Hai Nam - BOS Member - - 54,000,000 54,000,000
Mr. Nguven Viet Truong — Chief Accountant 744,895,717 38,744,298 - 803,640,015
Total 2,670,710,803 391,409,706 732,800,000  3,794,920,509

These Notes form an inteerd part of and should be read in comiunciion with the Foancial Stafements
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Npuyen Thi Dinh Boad, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (Conl.)

2b.  Transactions and balances with other related parties
Other related parties of the Company include:

Name Relationship B
Saigon Newport One Member Limited Liability Corporation Large sharcholder
Voluntary Youth Public Benefit Service Co., 1.td. Large shareholder
Cat Lai Port International Logistics JSC. Subsidiary

Tan Cang Que Vo JSC. Associate

Tan Cang Logistics and Stevedoring JSC.,

Tan Cang Technical Services JSC,

Tan Cang Gantry JSC.

Tan Cang Container Services 15C.

Tan Cang Construction JSC,

Tan Cang — STC Human Resource Dovelopment Co,, Ltd.

Transactions with other related parties

Relaled party of large shareholder
Related party of large shareholder
Related party of large shareholder
Related party of large shareholder
Related party of large shareholder
Related party of large sharcholder

Apart from transacltions wilh the subsidiary, the associate as presented in Note V.2 as well as
transactions of rendering of services to other related parties which are nol the subsidiaries or the
associates as presented in Note VI 1b, the Company also has other transactions with other related

parties as follows:

Current year Previous year
Dividends payable to related parties:
Safgon ]\{-::wpurt One Member Limitcd Liability 22.662.042,000 32,075.505,600
Corporation
Tan Cang Logistics and Stevedoring JSC. 3,217,500,000 4,554,000,000
Voluntary Youth Public Benefit Service Co., Lid. 19.496,750,000 27,595,400,000
Purchasing merchandise and using services of related
parties:
gs;rg;{z;a I;I;:rport One Member Limited Liability 219,664,768 105,723,713
Tan Cang Technical Services ISC. 1,606,817.004 8,755,232 673
Tan Cang Container Services JSC. 74,390,000 219,861,616
Tan Cang Construclion JSC. 11,126,029,093 2,902,465,116
Tan Cang — STC Human Resource Development 42,593,000 175,290,000

Co., Ltd.

Merchandise and services sold lo and purchased [rom other related partics are al agreed prices.

Receivables from and payables to other related parties

Eeceivables from and payables to other related parties are presented in Notes V.3, V.4, V.5 and

V.12,

Receivables from other related parties are unsccured and will be paid in cash. No allowance has

been made for the receivables from other related parties.

These Nodes form ar inlegral parl of and showld Be read in confimctionwith the Financial Staterments 32
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Motes to the Financial Statements (Cont.)

3.  Sepment information
The primary business activitics of the Company are rendering port leasing services and ancillary
services (including equipment leasing for cargo handling at ports, transporiation services, etc.).
Detailed information on revenue and cost of sales for each service is disclosed in Notes VI.1 and
VL2, The Company's operations are entirely conducted within the territory of Vietnam, As such,
the risks and returns associated with the Company are not significantly impacted by differences in?
business scgments or geographical locations. The Board of Management has determined that the .ﬂ\,
Company operates in a single operating segment and a single geographical segment. Therefore]

the Company does not present segment reporting by business segment or geographical area, /3
=

5

4.  Subsequent events
There have been no material events afier the balance sheet date, which require to make
adjustments on the figures or to be disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Prepared on 19 February 2025

Prepared by Chief Accountant

Vo Thai Hau Nguyen Viet Truong " Le Chi Dang

These Notes form an integral part of and should be read in confunction with the Finanolal Stetemenis 33
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred (o as “the
Company™) presents this statement together with the Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal
year ended 31 December 2024 including the Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Group”).

Business highlights

Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company operates in accordance with the 1* Business Registration Certificate
No. 0305168938 dated 27 August 2007 granted by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi
Minh City.

During the operation course, the Company has been 1] times additionally granted with the amended
Business Registration Cerlificates regarding the supplement of principal activities, charter capital, the
changes in the Company’s legal representative and address, m which the 11® amended Business
Registration Certificate dated 29 March 2024 was due fo the change in the Company's legal
representative.

Head office

- Address : Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City,
Victnam

= Tel. : 0283 7423 499 — (0283 7 423 501 — 0283 7 423 502

- Fax 10283 7423 500

- Email : info@eatlaiport.com,vn

- Wehsite rwwwcatlaiport.com v

Business address: No. 50 Nguyen Van Kinh, Thanh My Loi Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City.

The principal business activities of the Company are shipping agency services, sea transport agency
services, maritime brokerage services, shipping towage services, cargo loading and unloading services
at seaports, trading international multimodal transport services.

Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors and Executive Officers
The members of the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, the Board of Management and the
Chicf Accountant of the Company during the vear and as of the date of this statement inchude:

Bouard of Directors

Appointing date/re-appointing
Full name Position date/resigning date
Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son Chairman Appointed on 03 June 2024
Mr. Nguyen Phuong Nam Chairman Resigned on 03 June 2024
Mr. Ta Cao Thai Vice Chairman Appointed on 27 June 2023
Mr. Nguyen Chau Bao Member Re-appointed on 27 June 2023
Ms. Nguyen Huynh Mai Member Re-appointed on 27 June 2023
Mr. Le Chi Dang Member Re-appointed on 27 June 2023
Mr. Pham Hieu Dao Member ERe-appointed on 27 June 2023
Mr. Hoang Duc Thinh Member Appointed on 27 June 2023
Board of Supervisors
Full name Position Appointing date/re-appointing date
Mr. Do Thanh Thanh Head of BOS Ee-appointed on 27 June 2023
Mr. Le Hai Nam Member Re-appointed on 27 June 2023
Ms. Le Thi Doan Trang Member Appointed on 27 June 2023
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (cont)

Board ef Management and Chief Accountant

Full name . Position Appointing dale
Mr. Le Chi Dang Director 19 April 2019

Mr. Pham Hieu Dao Deputy Director 19 April 2019

Mr. Hoang Minh Thao Deputy Director 03 June 2024

Mr. Nguyen Viet Truong Chief Accountant 29 November 2019

Legal representative
The legal representative of the Company during the year and as of the date of this statement is Mr. Le

Chi Dang — Director (appointed on 19 April 2019).

Auditor
A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. has been appointed to perform the audit on the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 of the Group.

Responsibilitics of the Board of Management

The Company’s Board of Management is responsible for the preparation of the Consolidated Financial

Statements to give a true and fair view on the consolidated financial position, the consolidated financial

performance and the consolidated cash flows of the Group during the year. In order to prepare these

Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Managemoent must:

¢ select appropriate accounting policies and apply them consistently;

« make judgments and estimates reasonably and prudently;

s state clearly whether the accounting standards applied to the Group arc followed or not, and all the
material differences from these standards are disclosed and explained in the Consolidated Financial
Statcments;

o prepare the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group on the going-concemn basis, except for
the cases that the going-concern assumption is considered inappropriate;

e design and implement effectively the internal control system to minimize the risks of material
misstatements due to frauds or errors in the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Board of Management hercby ensures that all the proper accounting books of the Group have been
fully recorded and can fairly reflect the financial position of the Group at any time, and that all the
accounting books have been prepared in compliance with the applicable Accounting System. The Board
of Management is also responsible for managing the Group’s assels and conscquently has faken
appropriate measures to prevent and detect frauds and other iregularitics.

The Board of Management hereby commits to the compliance with the aforementioned requirements in
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Approval on the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Management hereby approves the accompanying Conselidated Financial
Statements, which give a true and fair view of the consolidaled [inancial position as at 31 December
2024, the consolidated financial performance and the consolidated cash flows for the fiscal year then
ended of the Group in conformity with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vielnamese
Enterprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the preparation and presentation
of Consolidated Financial Statements.

19 February 2025
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A&C AUDITING AND CONSULTING CO., LTD. @ bakerti[[y

Head OHice + 02 Trwang Son 51, Tan Binh Desd, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam Tel#34 (028) 3547 2417 BU@aE-C.oom.vR

Branchin HaWed - &0Gizng Yo 5L Dong Dia Disk, Ha bl Citg, Vietnam Tel #84 (024) 3035 1812 katv hniela-c comoam A & C
Branch in Hha Trang - Lot STHOGADT, 30 Mo 13, L Hong P 1| Leba Ares Mo Tezng Dy Wikt Tl 84 (D258) 248 5150 kv i com vn

BranchinCan The 11513 Vio Ry G5 51 Cai Rarey Dist. Can Tha Cify Vietnaim Tel 284 (0282) 376 8955 Ktfv ciffa-c.comam WWW.S-C.COM. VN

No. 2.0072/25/I'C-AC
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TMTE. SHAREMOLDERS, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
CAT LAT PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Cat Lai Port Joint Stock
Company and its subsidiary (hereinafter referred 1o as “the Group™), which were prepared on 19 February
2025, from page 06 to page 39, including the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2024, the
Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the fiscal year then ended and
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Responsibility of the Board of Management

The Company’s Board of Management is responsible for the preparation, true and fair presentation of the
Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the preparation and
presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements; and responsible for the internal control as the Board of
Management determines necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements to be free from material misstatement due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of Auditors

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical standards and requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Group®s Consolidated Financial Statements are free from material
misstatcment.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether duc
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Group’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s intermal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting estimates made by the
Board of Management, as well as cvaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial

Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

A&C Andifing and Consulting Ca., Lid. trading as Baher Tilly A&C is a member of fhe g!uha]_ nm‘_r‘?fk 4
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Opinion of Auditors

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of
the consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2024 of Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company and ifs
subsidiary, its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the fiscal year then
ended in conformity with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounling
System and relevant statutory requircments on the preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Other matter

The Auditor’s Report on the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended 31
December 2024 is prepared in Vietnamese and English. Should there be any conflict between the
Vietnamese and English versions, the Vietnamese version shall take precedence.

For and on behalf of

AT Andijin

/‘ﬁﬁﬁn‘i Brane
I.'_'_’-'I/ CONG TY

THALK SHIEM KO HAR -;

and Consulting Co., Lid,

A

J ;

Nguyen Hoang Duc — Partoer Vu Tuan Nghia — Auditor

Audit Practice Registration Certificate: Audit Practice Registration Certificate:
No. 0368-2023-008-1 No. 4028-2022-008-1

Authorized signatory
Hanoi, 19 February 2023

A& Anditing end Consolting Co., Lid. trading as Baker Ty A&C is a member of the plobal network
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lal Ward, Thu Duc City, TTo Chi Minh City, Vietnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

Unit: VND

Beginning balance

ASSETS Code Note Ending balance
A - CURRENT ASSETS 100 402,904,884,447
L. Cash and cash cquivalenis : 110 ¥.1 99,462,233,650
1. Cash 111 39.314,813.680
2. Cash cquivalents 112 60,147,420,000
1. Short-term financial investments 120 185,000,000,000
1. Trading securities 121 =
2. Provisions for the diminution in value of 122 -

trading securilies
3. Held-to-maturity investments 123 V:2a 185,000,000,000
M. Shori-term receivables 130 109,695,529,214
1. Shorl<ierm trade receivables 131 V.3 86,488,134,879
2. Short-term prepayments to supplicrs 132 V.4 13.608.410,952
3. Shori-lerm inter-company receivables 133 -
4. Receivables based on the progress of 134 -
construction contracts

5. Reccivables for shorl-lerm loans 135 -
6.  Other short-ferm receivables 136 V.5a 14,396,552,214
7. Allowance for short-term doubtlul debis 137 V.6 (4,797.568.831)
8. Deficit assets for treatment 139 -
IV. Toventories 140 5,530,675.211
1. Inventorics 141 V.7 5,530,675.211
2. Allowance for devaluation of inventories 149 -
V. Other current assets 150 3,216,446,342
1.  Short-term prepaid expenses 151  V.Ba 2.617.337.828
2. Deductible VAT 152 599,108,514
3. Taxes and other receivables from the State 153 Vi3 -
4. Trading Govemment bonds 154 -
5 Other current assels 155 -

Thiz statement should be read in confumction with the Noies fo the Consolidated Financial Yarements

385,962,838,236

234,879,103,936
36,772,811,670
198,106,292,266

85,000,000,000

45,000,000,000

58,765,209,483
47,101,566,173
574,161,817

12,306,056,512
(1,216,575,019)

5,185,890,519
5,185,890,519

2,132,634,298
1,147,729,107
726,585,607




CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Consolidated Balance Sheet (cont.)

ASSETS
B - NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Long-term receivables

Long-term trade receivables

Long-term prepaymenis to suppliers
Working capital in affiliates

Long-term inter-company receivables
Receivables for long-term loans

Other long-lerm receivables

Allowance for long-term doubtful debts

- e

Fixed assets
Tangible fived assels
Historical costs
Accumulated depreciation
2. Financial lcascd assets
Historical costs
Accumulated depreciation
3. Intangible fixed assets
Historical eosts
Accumulated amortization

3=

ITT. Imvestment properties
Historical costs
Accumulated depreciation

IV. Long-term assets in progress

1. Long-term work in progress

2.  Construction-in-progress

V. Long-term finnocial investments

1. Investments in subsidiaries

2. Invesiments in joint ventures and associates

3. Investments in other entities

4.  Provisions for the diminution in value of long-term

financial investments
Held-to-maturity investments

h

. Other non-current asscts
Long-term prepaid expenses
Deferred income tax assets
Long-term components and spare parts
Other non-current assets
Goodwill

e

TOTAL ASSETS

Code
200

A0
211
212
213
214
215
216
219

228
221
222
223
224
223
226
227
228
229

230
231
n2

240
241
242

250
251
252
253
254

255

260
261
262
263
268
265

270

Nota

V.5b

V.2

V.10

V.11

V.2h
V.2¢c
V.2¢

V.8b

Ending balance Beginning balance

278,806,079,224 289,139,154,288
84,750,000 188,800,000
84,750,000 188,800,000
173,120,788,511 196,321,809,256
98,137,531,503 119,751,920,850
596,474,519,660 616,379,016,778
(498,336,988,157)  (496,627,095,928)
74,983,257,008 76,569,888,406
101,601,504,441 101,601,504,441
(26,618,247,433) (25,031,616,033)
1,304,512,479 3,911,703,759
1,304,512,479 3,911,703,759
85,997,956,139 85,806,525,882
85,376.665,745 85,185,235,488
2,258,600,000 2,258,600,000
(1,637,309,606) (1,637,309,606)
18,298,072,095 2,910,315,391
18,298,072,095 2,910,315,391
681,710,963,671 675,101,992,524
7

Thiz staterment showld be reqd in confunciion with the Notes fo the Consolidated Fingncial Statements
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Consolidated Balance Sheet (cont.)

RESOURCES Code Note Ending balance  Beginning balance
C- LIABILITIES 300 58,090,148,016 56,370,722.24
I.  Current linbilitics 310 55,914,948,016 56,370,722,2
1. Short-term trade payables 31T V.2 30,799.851,289 32,095,683,90
2. Shori-term advances from customers 312 -
3. Taxes and other obligations to the State Budget 313 V.13 7.727,590,581 7,383,867.458
4, Payables to employees 34 5,754,259,325 4,558,407.795
5. Short-term accrued expenscs 315 V.14 595,170,861 1,322,254 484
6. Shori-term Inter-company payables 316 - -
7. Payables based on the progress of 317 -

construction contracts

3. Short-term uneamed revenue 318 -
9. Other shori-term payables 319 V.15 7,732,560,931
10. Short-term borrowings and financial leases 320 V.l6a 543,800,000
I1. Short-term provisions 321 - -
12. Bonus and welfare fonds 322 V17 2,761,715,029 2,679,930,495
13. Price stabilization fund 323 - -
14, Trading Government bonds 324 = i
1. Nop-current Habilities 330 2,175, 200,000 -
1. Long-term trade payables 331 - c
2. Long-term advances from customers 332 = -
3. Long-term accrued expenses 333 = -
4. Inter-company payables for working capital 334 - -
5. Long-term inter-company payables 335 - =
6. Long-tenmn unearncd revenus 336 - .
7.  Other long-lerm payables 337 = ' =
8. Long-lerm borrowings and financial leases 338 V.16b 2,175,200,000 s
9. Convertible bonds 339 - -
10. Preferred shares 340 = 2
I1. Deferred income tax liabilities 341 - -
12. Long-term provisions 342 - 2 T8
13. Science and technology development fund 343 - - 7

Thic statement showld be read in conjunction with the Notes fo the Consoliduted Financial Statenieris 3



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Consolidated Balance Sheet (cont.)

RESOURCES Code Nofe
D- OWNER'S EQUITY 400
L Owner's equity 410 V.18
1. Owner's contribution capital 411
- Ordingry shaves carrying voting right 4lla
- Preferred shares 4115
2. Share premiums 412
3. DBond conversion options 413
4,  Other sources of capital 414
5. Treasury shares 415
6. Differences on asset revaluation 416
7. Foreign exchange differences 417
8.  Investment and development fund 418
9. DBusiness arangement supporting fund 419
10. Other funds 420
11, Retained eamings 421
- Retained earnings accumulated 421n
to the end of the previous period
- Retained earnings of the cwrrent period 421b
12, Construction investment fund 412
13, Non-controlling interests 420
IT. Other sources and funds 430
1. Sources of expenditure 431
2. Fund to form fixed assets 432
TOTAL RESOURCES 4410
Prepared by Chief Accountant
i

Yo Thai Hau

Nguyen Viet Truong

Ending balance

Beginning balance

623,620,815,655

623,620,815,655
340,000,000,000
340,000.000,000

60,123,448,000

103.623.271.921

618,731.270,284

618,731,270,284
340,000,000,000
340,000,000,000

60,123,448,000

103,623,271,921

100,583,614,486 06,754,375,918
8,004,993,755 96,754,375,918
$2,578,620,731 -
19,200,448 1,245: 18,230,174,4 4_";
681,710,263.671 675,101,992,524
Prepared.on 19 February 2025

W }

This statement shonld be read in confunction with the Notex to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nauyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vielnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Yor the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

L

1.
12,

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

ITEMS Code
Revenne from sales of merchandise and rendering of o
services
Revenuc deductions 0z
Net {'evenue from sales of merchandise and rendering of i
Services
Costs of sales 11
Gross Elrﬂﬁﬂ (loss) from sales of merchaundise and 20
rendering of services
Financial income 21
Financial expenses 22
In which: Interest expenses 23
Profit! (loss) in joint ventures, associates 24
Selling expenses 25
General and administration expenses 26
Net operating profit/ (loss) 30
Other income n
. Diher expenses 3z
. Other profit/ (loss) 40
Total acconnting profit/ (loss) before fax 50
Current income tax 51
Deferred income tax 52
Profit! (loss) aficr tax a0
Profitf (loss) after tax of the Parcut Company 61
Profit! (loss) after tax of non-controlling sharcholders 62
Basic earnings per share 70
Dilnted earnings per share 6 |
Prepared by Chief Accountant

Vo Thai Hau Nguyven Viet Truong

Thir stcemend thould be read tn canjurction with the Noter to the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

Note

VL1

VI3
VL6

VL7
VLE

V.18
VL%
Y18

A= /ﬁ/

Currenl year

Unit: VIND

Previous year

321,558,699,.171 306,291,069,080
312,588,699,271 306,291,069,080
183,094,099,953 176,147,116,725
139,494,599.318 130,143,952,355
5,178,573,410 10,184,298,369
35,965,293 1,637,360,822
35,965,293 =
6,204,984,752 6,013,554,495
1,108,620,500 1,750,327,065
32,068,007,840 24.819,714,449
121,665,563,787 118,134,402,884
4,272,752,343 3,366,466,379
1,5810,018,939 262,313,728

2,462,733,404

3,104,152,651

124,128,297,151 121,238,555,535
24,973,155,123 21,738,267,784
99,155,142.068 98,500,287,751
07,374,835,265 96,847,450,473
1,780,306.803 1,652,837.278
2,713 2,701

2,723 2,701

Le Chi Dang

o



CAT LAX PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Mguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat [.ai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Indirect method)

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

ITEMS
I. Cash flows from operating activitics

Profit’ (loss) before fax
. Adjustments

b~

Depreciation and amortizalion of fixed assets and

- Provisions and allowances

- Exchange (gain)/ loss due to revaluation of
menetary items in foreien currencies

- (Gain)/ loss from investing activities

- Imterest expenses

- Dthers

3. Operating profit/ (loss) before
changes of working capital

- (Increase)/ decrease of receivables

- (Increase)/ decrease of inventories

- Increasef (decrease) of payables

- (Increase)’ decrease of prepaid expenses
(Increase)f decrease of trading securities

- Interests paid

- Corporale income tax paid
Other cash inflows from operating activities

- Other cash outfllows from operating activities

Nef cash flows from operating activities
II. Cash flows from investing activities

1. Purchases and construction of fixed assets
and other non-current assets

2. Procceds from disposals of fixed assels
and other non-cuirent assets

3. Cash outflows for lending, buying debt instruments

of other entities

4. (Cash recovered from lending, selling debt insfruments

of other entities
5. Investments into other entities
Withdrawals of investments in other entities

=,

7. Interests earned, dividends and profits received

Net cash flows from invesiing activities

Code

o1

02
03

04
03
ta
07

]
09
1o
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

20

21

22

23

24

25
26

af

Note

V9,10
V.6

V.13
V.17
V.17

Unit: VND
Current year Previous year
124,128,297,192 127,238,555,535

28,827,491,698

35,645217,698

3,580,993,812 1,850,450,183

- (2,507,532)
(19,301,141,523) (19,267,744,692)
35,965,293 :
137,271,606,472 139,463,971,192
(46,398,973,400) 2,395,745,155
(344,784,692) (4,103,086,519)
(1,794,066,215) (491,484,422)
(4,182,342,749) 617,271,355
(32,925,973) =
(23,672,197,086) (21,905,697,558)
4,000,000 .
(5,067,812,163) (4,928 409,706)
55,782,504,193 111,048,309,497

(21,725,798,445)
5,401,581,282
(275,000,000,000)

175,000,000,000

12,117,132,614

(4,831,165,800)
2,263,379,712
(105,000,000,000)

109,409,653,155

15,044,266,605

(104,207,084,549)

16,886,133,672

This statenient should be reod im confunciion with the Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Sratements



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Tim Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (cont.}

ITEMS Code
1. Cash flows from finapcing activitics
I. Trocesds from issuing stocks and capital contributions
from owners 31
2. Repayment for capital contributions and re-purchases
of stocks already issucd 3z
3. Troceeds from borrowings 33
4. Repayment for loan principal 34
3. Payments for financial leased assets 35
6. Dividends and profits paid to the owners 36
Net cash flows from financing activitites 40
Mel cash MNows during the year 50
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 60
Effects of fluciuations in foreign exchange rates 61
Ending cash and cash equivalenis 70
Prepared by Chief Accountant

Vo Thai Hau

f@ ZUM/ %

Note Current year Previous year
V.16b 2,?19,000,0{]{; :
- - F
(89,711 ,139,900;; (123,353,??1,:411; /
(86,992,289,900) (123,858,772,240) -
(135,416,870,256) 4,075,670,929
V. 234,879,103,936 230,800,925,475
- 2,507,532
V.1 99,462.233,680 234,879.103.936

Neuyen Viet Truong

This statement showld be read in confunciion with the Notes to the Congalidated Fivancial Statements

Le Chi Dang
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Mguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Victnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 [J;cembcr 2024

Sa.

5b.

Se.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ownership form
Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company (hercinafier referred to as “the Company” or “the Parent
Company™) i$ & joint stock company.

Operating ficld
The Company operates in the ficld of service.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Company are leasing scaport, leasing stevedoring equipment, cargo
loading and unloading services at scaports,

Normal operating cycle
The normal operating cyele of the Company is within 12 months.

Structure of the Group
The Group includes the Parent Company and one subsidiary under the control of the Parent
Company which is consolidated in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Information on the Group’s restructuring
The Group did not acquire any new subsidiaries, or dispose of or divest any existing ones during
the year,

List of consolidated subsidiaries

The Company only invests in one subsidiary, which is Cat Lai Port International Logistics JSC.
located at No. 43 Road N2, Mega Village Residential Quarter, Quarter 3, Phu Huu Ward, Thu Duc
City, Ho Chi Minh City. The principal activity of this subsidiary is other support services related to
transportation. As of the balance sheet date, the Company’s contribution rate in this subsidiary was
54.29%, the voting rate and the ownership rate were equivalent to the contribution rate.

List of associates accounted for in the Consolidated Financial Statements by using the equity
method

The Group only invests in one associate, which is Tan Cang Que Vo JSC. located in Kieu Luong
Hamlet, Duc Long Commune, Que Vo Town, Bac Ninh Province. The principal activity of this
associate is leasing depot. As of the balance sheet date, the Group’s contribution rate in this
associate was 20%; the voting rate and the ownership rate were equivalent to the contribution rate.

Statement on information comparability in the Consolidated Financial Statements
The corresponding figures of the previous year are comparable to those of the current year.

Employees
As of the balance sheet date, there were 84 employees working for the Group (at the beginning of
the year: 85 employees).

— =

Thiese Noles form an integral part of and showld be read in conjunction with the Consofidated Financial Statements 13



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address; Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietiam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Conl)

IL

o
-

—
K

FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

Fiscal year
The fiscal year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December annually.

Accouniing currency unit
The accounting currency unit is Vietnam Dong (VIND) because payments and receipts of the Group
are primarily made in VND.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM

Accounting System

The Group applies the Viemamese Accounting Standards, the Viemamese Enterprise Accounting
System, which were issued together with the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December
2014 on guidelines for accounting policies for enterprises, the Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated
21 March 2016, the Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 giving guidance on
the preparation and presentation of Consclidated Financial Statements as well as other Circulars
guiding the implementation of the Vietnamese Accounting Standards of the Ministry of Finance in
the preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements.

Statcment on the compliance with the Accounting Standards and System

The Board of Management ensures to follow all the requircments of the Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, which were issued together with the
Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014, the Circular No. 53/2016/TT-IB3TC dated
21 March 2016, the Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 as well as other
Circulars guiding the implementation of the Vietnamese Accounting Standards of the Ministry of
Finance in the preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
All the Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared on the accrual basis (except for the
information related to cash flows).

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in Vietnamese and English, in which the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Victnamese are the official statutory financial statements of
the Group. The Consolidated Financial Statements in English have been translated from the
Vietnamese version. Should there be any conflict between the Vielnamese and English versions,
the Vietnamese version shall take precedence.

Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Combined Financial Statements of the Parent
Company and the Financial Statements of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is a business that is
controlled by the Parent Company. The control exists when the Parent Company has the power to
direetly or indircetly govern the financial and operating policies of the subsidiary to obtain
economic benefits from its activities. In determining the conirol power, the potential voting right
arising from share call options, debt ar equity instruments that are convertible into ordinary shares
as of the balance sheet date shall be taken into consideration.

The business performance results of the subsidiaries that are acquired or disposed of during the
period are included in the Consolidated Income Statement from the date of acquisition or until the .

date of disposal of those subsidiaries.

The Financial Statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries uscd for consolidation are
prepared for the same accounting period and apply consistent accounting policies for similar
transactions and events in similar circumstances. In case the subsidiaries’ accounting policies are
different from those that are applied consistently within the Group, the appropriate adjustments
should be made to the subsidiaries’ Financial Statements before they are used to prepare the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

These Notes form an integral pari af and should be read in confuncrion with the Consolidated Financial Statements 14



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address; Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont.}

Intra-group balances in the balance sheet and intra-group transactions and unrealized intra-group
gains or losses resulting from these transactions are eliminated when preparing the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group transactions are also eliminated
unless costs that cause those losses cannot be recovered,

Non-confrolling interests (“NCI'™) include the gains or losses of the subsidiary’s business
performance results and net assets that are not held by the Parent Company and arc presented in a
specific item in the Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Balance Shest (as a part
of the awner’s equity). NCI include the value of NCI at the date of initial business combination and
those in the changes of owner’s equity commencing from that date.

Losses arising in subsidiaries are allocated 1o NCI bascd on the non-controlling shareholders’
ownership rate in the subsidiarics, even if those losses excess the non-controlling shareholders’
ownership in the net assets of the subsidiaries.

3. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are shorl-term investments of
-which the due dates do not exceed 3 months from the dates of the investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value as of the balance sheet date.

4. Financial investments

Held-to-maturity investments

Investments are classified as held-to-maturity investments that the Group intends and is able to
hold to maturity, Held-to-maturity investments of the Group only include term depasits in bank.
Inferest income from term deposits in bank is recognized in the Consolidated Income Statement on
the accrual basis.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity which the Group has significant influence but does not have the right to
control its financial and operating policies. Significant influence is the right to participate in
making resolulion on the associate’s financial and operating policies but not control those policies.

Investments in associates are recognized in accordance with the equity method. Accordingly, the
investments in associates are presentcd in the Consolidated Financial Statemcnts by the initial
investment costs and adjusted for changes in benefits on net assets of associates after the investment
date. If the benefits of the Group in losses of associates are higher than or equal to book value of the
investments, the value of investments will be presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements as
zero unless the Group has an obligation to make the payment instead of associates.

The Financial Statements of associates are prepared for the same accounting period of the Group.
In case the accounting policies of an associate are different from those consistently applied in the
Group, the Financial Statcments of that associate will be SI.Ilid]}]}" adjusted before being used o
prepare the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Unrealized gains and losses from transactions with associates are eliminated by the proportion
belong to the Group when preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements.

These Notes form an inlzgral part ef and should be read i confunction with the Consoliduted Finmcial Statements 15
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the {iscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {Cont.)

Investments in equity instruments of other entifies

Investments in equity instruments of other entitics include such invesiments in equity instruments
that do not enable the Group to have the control, joint contro] or significant influence on these
entities.

Investments in cquity instruments of other entities are initially recognized at costs, including cost
of purchase plus other directly atiributable transaction costs. Dividend and profit of the periods
prior to the acquisition of investments are deducted from the cost of such investments, Dividend
and profit of the periods afier the acquisition of such investmenis arc recorded in the Group’s
financial income. Particularly, stock dividends received are not recorded as an increase in value,
but the increasing quantity of shares is followed up.

Provisions for impairment of invesiments in equity instruments of other entities

For investments in equily instruments of other entities which are not listed organizations, of which |
the fair value cannot be measured at the lime of reporting, provisions are made based on the losses l.,
suffered by investees, with the provision amount determined by the difference between owners’ |°
actual contributed capital and total owners® equity as of the balance sheet date multiplied (x) by the,)
Group's rale of charter capital owning in these invesiees.

T,

o
*."
X ;E""

i

Increases/ (decreases) in the provisions for impairment of investments in equity instruments of
other entities to be recognized as of the balance sheet date are recorded into “Financial expenses™.

5.  Receivables
Receivables are recognized at the carrying amounts less allowance for doubtful debts.

The classification of receivables as trade receivables and other receivables is made according to the

following principles:

s  Trade receivables reflect receivables concerning the commercial nature arising from purchase
and sale transactions between the Group and customers who are independent to the Group.

o Other receivables reflect receivables not congerning the commercial nature and irrelevant to
purchase and sale transactions,

Allowance is made for cach doubtful debt after being offsct against liabilities (if any). The

allowance rate is based on the debts’ duration of overdue or the estimated loss, as follows:

e As for overdue debts:

30% of the value of debts with the duration of overdue from over 6 months to under 1 year.

50% of the value of debts with the duration of overdue from 1 year to under 2 ycars.

70% of the value of debts with the duration of overdue from 2 years to under 3 years.

100% of the value of debts with the duration of overdue [rom or over 3 years.

o As for the debts that are not overdue, but considered as doubtlul debts: Allowance is made on
the basis of the estimated loss.

Increases/ (decreases) in the allowance for doubtful debts to be recognized as of the balance sheet
datc arc recorded into “General and administration expenses”.

These Notes form on integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Fiwmcial Statenternts 16



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, IIo Chi Minh City, Victnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

MNotes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements (Cont.)

6.

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses comprise actual expenses arising and relevant to financial performance in several
accounting periods. Prepaid expenses of the Group mainly include expenses for tools, expenses for
fixed asset repairs and vehicle insurance premiums. These prepaid expenses are allocated over the
prepayment period or the period in which corresponding economic benefits are generated from
these expenses.

Expenses for tools
Expenses for tools in use are allocated into expenses using the siraight-line method for the
maximum period of 3 vears.

Veliicle insurarnce premiums

Vehicle insurance premiums are allocated into work in progress using the straight-line method over
the term in the insurance policy.

Expenses for fixed assef repairs

Expenses for fixed asset repairs arising once with high value are allocated into expenses using the
straight-line method in 3 years.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are determined by their historical costs less accumulated depreciation.
Historical costs of tangible fixed assets include all the expenses paid by the Group to bring the
asset to its working condition for its intended use. Other expenses arising subscquent Lo initial
recognition are included into historical costs of fixed asscts only if it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the usc
of these asscts. Those which do not meet the above conditions will be recorded into operation costs
during the year.

When a tangible fixed asset is sold or disposed, its historical cost and accumulated depreciation are
written off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposal is included in the income or the
expenses during the year.

Tangible fixed asscts are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. The depreciation years applied are as follows:

Class of fixed assets Yesars
Buildings and structures 05 —30
Machinery and equipment N3 -—12
Vehicles 06 - 10
Office equipment 03-06
Other fixed assets 02 - 06

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are determined by their historical costs less accumulated amortization.

Historical costs of intangible fixed assets include all the costs paid by the Group {o bring the asset
to its working condition for its intended use. Other costs relevant to intangible fixed assets arising
subsequent to initial recognition are included into operation costs during the period, otherwise,
these costs are included into historical costs of fixed assets only if they are associated with a
specific intangible fixed assct and result in future economic benefits expected to be obtained from

the use of the asset.

When an intangible fixed asset is sold or disposed, its historical costs and accumulated
amortization are written off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposal is included in the

income or the expenses during the year.

These Notes form an integral part of and should be read in confunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements 17
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Mguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietmam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Finaucial Statements (Cont.)

10.

11.

The Group’s intangible fixed asset includes:

Land use right

Jand use right includes all the actual expenses paid by the Group directly atiributable to the Jand
being used such as expenses to obtain the land use right, expenses for site clearance compensation
and ground leveling, registration fees, etc. Land use right granted by the State with obligation to
pay land use fees is amortized in accordance with the straight-line method over the land granted
period (50 years).

Computer software

Costs to obtain computer software, which is not a part associated with the relevant hardware, will
be capitalized. Costs of computer software include all the cxpenses paid by the Group until the date
the software is put into use. Computer soflware is amortized in accordance with the straight-line
method in 03 - 04 years.

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress reflects the expenses (including relevant borrowing interest expenscs
following the accounting policies of the Group) directly attributable to the construction of plants
and the installation of machinery and cquipment to serve for production, leasing, and management
as well as the repair of fixed assets, which have not been completed yel. Assets in the progress of
construction and installation are recorded at historical costs and not depreciated.

Payables and accrued expenses

Payables and accrued expenses are recorded based on the amounts payable for goods and services
already used. Accrued expenses are recorded based on reasonable estimates f[or the amounts
payable.

The classification of payables as trade payables, accrued expenses and other payables is made on

the basis of following principles:

s Trade payables reflect payables of commercial naturc arising from the purchase of
merchandise, services, or assets and the seller is an independent entity with the Group.

o Accrued expenses reflect expenses for goods, services received from suppliers or supplied (o
customers but have not been paid, invoiced or lack of accounting records and supporting
documents; pay on leave payable to employees; and accrual of operating expenses.

o  Other payables reflect payables of non-commercial nature and irrelevant to purchase, sales of
merchandise or rendering of services.

Payables and accrued expenses are classified into short-term and long-term ones in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet based on the remaining terms as of the balance sheet date.

Owner’s equity

Owner’s contribution capital
Owner's contribution capital is recorded according to the actual amounts invested by the
sharcholders. :

Share premiums

The differences between the issuance price and face value upon the IPO, additional issue or the
difference between the re-issuance price and carrying value of treasury shares and the equity
component of convertible bonds upon maturity date arc recognized into share premiums. Expenses
directly attributable to the additional issuc of shares and the re-issuance of treasury shares are
recorded as a decrease in share premiums.

These Notes form an integral part of and showld be read in confunction with the Conselidated Finoncial Siatemanis 18
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietmam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal vear ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements (Cont,)

12,

13.

14,

Profit distribution

Profit afier tax is distributed to the shareholders after appropriation for funds under the Charter of
the Company as well as legal regulations and approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

The distribution of profits to the shareholders is made in consideralion of non-cash items in
retained eamnings that may affect cash flows and the ability to pay dividends such as profit from
revaluation of assets invested in other entities, profit from revaluation of monetary items, financial
instruments and other non-cash items.

Dividend is recorded as payables upon approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders.
Recognition of revenue and income

Revenuwe from rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services shall be recognized when all of the following conditions are

satisfied:

s The amount of revenue can be measured reliably. When the contract stipulates that the buyer is
cntitled o return the services provided under specific conditions, revenue is recognized only
when those spceific conditions no longer exist and the buyer is not cntitled to retun the
services rendered.

¢ The Group received or shall probably receive the economic benefits associated with the
rendering of services.

=  The stage of completion of the transaction at the end of reporting period can be measured reliably.

o The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the tramsaction can be
measured rcliably.

In the case that the scrvices are rendered in several accounting periods, revenuc is recognized on
the basis of the stage of completion as of the balance sheet date.

Interest
Interest is recorded based on the term and the actual interest rate applied in each particular period.

Dividend income

Income from dividends is recognized when the Group has the right to receive dividends from the
invesiees. Particularly, stock dividends received are not recorded as an increase in value, but the
increasing quantity of shares is followed up.

Expenses

Expenscs are those that result in outflows of the Group's economic benelils and are recorded at the
time of transactions or when incurrence of the transaction is reliable regardless of whether payment
for expenses is made or not.

Expenses and their corresponding revenues are simultaneously recognized in accordance with
matching principle. In the event that matching principle conflicts with prudence principle, expenses
are recognized based on the nature and regulations of accounting standards in order to guarantee
that transactions can be fairly and truly reflected.

Corporate income (ax

Corporate income tax only includes current income tax, which is the tax amount computed based
on the taxable income. Taxable income is different from accounting profit duc to the adjustments
of temporary differences between tax and accounting figures, non-deductible expenses as well as
those of non-taxable income and losses brought forward.

These Notes farm an integral pavi of and showld be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements 19



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnan
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ConL)

16.

17,

2a.

2b.

Related parties

Partics arc considered 1o be related parties in case that one party is able lo control the other party or
has significant influence on the financial and operating decisions of the other party. Parlies arg also
considered to be related partics in casc that they are under the common control or under the
common significant influence.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship and not merely the legal form.

Segment reporting
A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in manufacturing

or providing products or services and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of other business segments.

A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in
manufacturing or providing products or services within a particular economic environment and that
is subject to risks and retums that are different from those of componenis operating in other
economic environments.

The scgment information is prepared and presented in conformity with the accounting policy
applied for the preparation and presentation of the Group’s Consclidated Financial Statements.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEET

Cash and cash equivalenis

Ending balance Bepinning balance
Cash on hand 450,230,825 400,245,219
Demand deposits in banks 38,864,582,855 36,372.566,451
Cash equivalents (Bank deposits of which the
prilmi}ﬂl ma.turil}'(is from I:I:]r under 3 months) GO HERAR000 198,106,292, 266
Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank 50,000,000,000 180,000,000,000
Fietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Industry and Trade 10,000,000,000 15,958,872,260
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade
of Vietnam _ 147,420,000 147,420,000
Militery Commercial Joint Stock Bank - s 2.000,000.000
Total 99,462,233,680 234.,879,103,936

Financial investments
Held-to-maturity investments

Ending balance is term deposits with the term of 6 — 12 months at commereial banks, which have
carrying value equal to their original costs, the interest rate from 3.2% to 4.2% per year.

Investments in associates

This is the investment in Tan Cang Que Vo JSC. As of the balance sheet date, the Parent Company
owned 2,523,400 shares with the face value of VIND 25,234,000,000 cquivalent to 20% of charter
capital of Tan Cang Que Vo JISC.

Ending balance Beginning balance
Original costs 78.225,400,000 78,225,400,000
Profit after investment date 7,151,265,745 _ 6,939,835,488
Total £5,376,665,745 85,185,235,488

These Notes form an integral parr of and should be read in confunction with the Consolidated Financial Statewments 20



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, ITo Chi Minh City, Victnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Noies to the Consolidated Finaueial Statements (Cont.)

Ownership value in the associate using the equity method is as follows:
Current year

Previous year

Beginning balance 85,185,235,488 83.707,440,096
Profit in the year 6,204,984.752 6,013,554 495
Dividend income received in the year (6,013,554,495) {4,535,759,103)
Ending balance 85,376,6635,745 85,185,235,488

Operation of associales

The associate has been in its normal operation and has not experienced any significant change as

compared to that of the previous year.

Tramsactions wirh associales

During the year, besides dividends received from the associate, the Group did not have any other

ransactions with the associate,

2c,  Investements in other entities
Endiog balance

Original cost Provision Ovriginal cost

Beginning balance

Ho Chi Minh Rubber Corporation  2,258,600,000 [1,63?,3{@,6!]6) 2,258,600,000 (1,637,309,606)

As of the balance sheet date, the Group owned 225,860 shares equivalent to 0.83% of charter

capital of Ho Chi Minh Rubber Corporation, same as the beginning balance.

Fair value

The Group has not determined fair value of the investments without listed prices because there

have not been any specific instructions on determination of fair value.

3. Short-term trade receivables

Ending balance Beginning balance
Receivables from related parties 77,6014,149,935 40,782,894,076
gi:f;nr;a T:]i::rputt One Member Limited Liability 77.458,842,360 39,702,041,701
Tan Cang Overland Transport JSC. 4,266,000 -
Tan Cang Hiep Phuoe Port JSC. 7,938,000 -
Tan Cang Song Than ICD JSC. - 947,748,800
Receivables from other customers 8,017,088,519 6,451,775,672
Total 86,488,134,879 47,101,566,173

4. Short-term prepayments to suppliers
Ending balance

Beginning balance

Prepayments to related parties 2,358,000,000 555,411,817
Tan Cang Technical Services J5C. 2,358,000,000 -
Tan Cang Construction ISC. - 555,411,817
Prepayments to other suppliers 11,250,410,952 18,750,000
Mguyen Loi Heavy Transport Co., Ltd. 6,000,000,000 z
Lichherr-Mectec Rostock GMBH 4,603,932,000 5
Other suppliers . 646,478,952 18,750,000
Total 13,608,410,952 574,161,817

[

These Notes form an iniegral part of and shewld be read in confunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnain
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Finanecial Statemcuts (Cont.)

5. Other receivables

Sa.  Other short-term receivables

Ending balance Beginning balance
Original cost Allowance  Original cost  Allowance
Receivables from related parties 923,209,570 - 849,796,700 -
Saigon Newport One Member Limited
Liability Corporation — receipts and 923,209,570 - 849,796,700 =

payments on behalf

Receivables from other organizations ;3 4o3 34 644 (3,489,345,554) 11,456,259,812  (17,558,567)
and imdividuals

JRceOR) ihtteat Sionenarafletrs 4,801,336,103 . 2,051,199,779 :
gposits

Advances 1,267,892.162 - 1,739,315,843 -
Payments on behalf 143,045,762 (11,811,92%) 626349377 -
Deposits 100,000,000 = = F
Quang Thai Hong One Member Co, 1td. ) 6,736,930,124 (3,368,465,062)  6,736,930,124 -
Other short-term receivables 424,138,493 (109,068,567) 302,464,689 (17,558,567)
Total 14,396,552,214 (3,489,345,554)  12,306,056,512  (17,558,567)

¢} This is the receivable from Quang Thai Hong One Member Co., Lid. in accordance with the
Court's decisions related to the dispute over the business cooperation contract between Saigon
Agricultural Incorporation and Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company and the consignment coniracl
between Quang Thai Hong One Member Co., Ltd. and Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company,
accordingly, Quang Thai Hong One Member Co., Ltd. is required to pay the Company wilh the
amount of VND 6,736,930.124 (including rental and interest). Due to the fact that Quang Thai
Hong One Member Co., Ltd. has not yet fulfilled its payment obligations in accordance with the
Judgment and Enforcement Decisions, the Civil Judgment Enforcement Office of Binh Thanh
District had issued the Decision No. 67/QD-CCTHADS dated § May 2023 on the femporary
suspension of exit from the country for Mr. Nguyen Hoang Hai - legal representative of Quang
Thai Hong One Mémber Co., Ltd.

§b. Other long-term receivables

Ending balance Beginning balance
Original cost  Allowance Original cost _ Allowance
Long-term deposits 84,750,000 - 188,800,000 .
6.  Allowance for doubtful debts
Ending balance Beginning balance
Dg:::i;: Eﬂf Original cost Allowance D::::::ﬂ:" eof Original cost Allowance
Cuang Thai Hong One From 1 year to " _
Member Co., Ltd, 2 years 6,736,930,124 (3,368,465,062) =
From 6
Other customers = 03 years 1,429.103,769 (1,429,103,769) months to 1,357.593,769% (1,216,575.119)
over 3 years e
Total 8.166,033,893 (4,797,568,831) 1,357,593,769 (1,216,575,019)
Fluctuations in allowance for doubtful debts are as follows:
Current year Previous year
Beginning balance 1,216,375,019 1,003,434,442
Additional allowance 3,580,993,812 213,140,577
Ending balance 4,797,568,831 1,216,575,019

e e e
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address; Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Moles to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Conl)

T Inventories
Ending balance Beginning balance
Tools 4.207,217.455 5,185,890,519
Work in progress 1,323,457,756 =
Total 5.530,675.211 5,185,890,519
8. Prepaid expenses
8a. Short-term prepaid expenses
Ending balance Beginning balance
Vehicle insurance premiums 319,483,707 274,073,844
Road toll 197,627,200 152,226,264
Expenscs for repairs 2,081,410,332 721,428,999
Other expenses 18,815,889 -
Totul 2,617,337,828 1,147,729,107
8b. Long-term prepaid expenses
Ending balance Beginning balance
Expenses [or crane repairs 3,329,173,138 =
Expenses for rail system repairs 11,970,854,750 =
Expenses for tools 2,951,994 786 2,782,094,926
Other expenses 46,049,421 128,220,465
Total 18,298,072,095 2,910,315.391
These Motes form an intfegral part of and shonld be mm"::—:anjrmcﬁaﬂ with the Consalideted Financial Statements 23
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen Thi Dioh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Noftes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements (Cont.)

10.

Intangible fixed assets

Land usc right

Computer software

Total

Historical costs

339,500,000

Beginning balance 101,262,004,441 101,601,504,441
Ending balance 101,262,004,441 330,500,000 101,601,504,441
In which:
Assets fully amortized but still in use - 339,500,000 339,500,000
Amortization
Beginning balance 24,694,099,349 337,516,686  25,031,616,035
Amortization during the year 1,584,648.084 I,983,3L1_ : __EE&,GB 1,398
Ending balance 26,278,747,433 339,500,000 26,618,247,433
Net book value
Beginning balance 76,567,905,092 1,083,314 76,569 888,406
Ending balance 74,983,257,008 - 74,983.257.008
Inwhich:
Assels lemporarily not in use - N -
Assets waiting for liguidation - - -
11. Construction-in-progress
Beginning Incurred in the Tramsiered h? Ending
balance year i e balance
CXpEnscs
Acquisition of fixed assets - 124,061,666 - 124,061,666
Construction-in-progress 553,543,848 - - 553,543,848
Expenses {or fixed assel repairs 3,358,159.911 0,943,769,730  (12,675,022,676) 626,906,965
FProject of repair and maintenance of
rail system and support equipment of 3,358,159,911 9.316,862,765 (12,675,022,676) H
wharf No. 7
Other projects - 620,900,965 - 626,900,905
Total 3,911,703,759  10,067,831,396  (12,675,022,676) 1,304,512,479

12. Short-term trade payables

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Payables to related parties 12,441,928, 717 17,488,983,082
(E‘;;:rgpo;ml‘fiz:pnﬂ One Member Limited Liability 38,400,487 16,143,301
Tan Cang Technical Services JSC., 868,227,638 1,441,310,050
Tan Cang Construction LLC 636,448,106 -
Tan Cang - Tay Ninh JSC. 50,300,000 -
Tan Cang Song Than ICD JSC. 14,580,000 -
Tan Cang — STC Human Resource Development Co., Lid. 223,383,000 189,313,200
Cat Lai Logistics JSC. - 193,480,000
North Newport Logistics JSC. ~ 267,192,000
Ij",‘:gsg Nrjms}orm an inregral part of and should he read in confimcion with the Conselidated Fimancial Statements 25
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Conl.)

—

ErTe—

13.

Ending balance Beginning balance
;;E.Cang Hong Ngoe Phu Quoc Investiment Logistics 10,446,413 486 15.381,544.541 '
Dong Nai Newport Logistics JSC. 164,176,000 -
Payables to other suppliers 18,357,922,572 14,606,700,808
Hong Linh Construction — Trading Co., Lid. 2,044.326,721 1,049,376,088
Ecotruck Technology JSC. 571,088,200 3,021,634,346
Son Tuyen Business Household 6,932,687,750 6.992,790.040
Other suppliers 8,809,819,861 3,542,890.434
Total 30,799,851,289 32,095,683,200
The Group has no overdue trade payables.
Taxes and other obligations to the State Budget
Beginning balance Incurred in the year Ending
- . bulance
. Amount Amount ralrnlzﬂ dy Payable
Payable Reccivable payable paid
VAT on local sales 458,427,361 - 16,996,355,984 (18,709,156,687) 745,626,658
Corporate income {ax 5,151,298,238 - 24 973,155,123 (23,672,197,086) 06,452,256,275
Personal income tax 1,774,141,85% - 2,148,803,438 (3,393,237.649) 529,707,648
Property tax - - 15,499,175 (15,499,175) "
Land rental - 258,319,584 861,065,280 (602,745,698) -
License duty - - 6,000,000 (6,000,000) s
Total 7.383,867,458 258,319,584 45,000,879,000 (44,3958,836,293) 7,727.,590,581
Value added tax (VAT)
The Group has to pay VAT in accordance with the deduction method. The VAT rates are as
follows:
Providing fresh water 5%
Other services 8% - 10%

Corporate income tax (CIT)

The companies in the Group have to pay CIT for taxable income at the rate of 20%.

The determination of corporate income tax liability of the companies in the Group is based on the
prevailing regulations on taxes. However, these regulations may change from time to time and
regulations applicable to variety of transactions can be interpreted differently. Therefore, the tax
amount presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements could change when being inspected by
the Tax Office.

Property fux
Property tax is paid according to the notices of the tax department.

Land rental

According to the notice of annual payment of land and water surface rental No. 7512/TB-
CCTTPTD dated 11 March 2024, the land rental payable in 2024 for an area of 39,796.2 m? in Cat
Lai Ward, Thu Due City, for the purpose of shipping service activitics is VIND 861,065,280.

Other taxes
The Group declares and pays these taxes according to prevailing regulations.

- S

These Notes form cn Integral pare af and should be read in confunction with the Consolidated Financial Stalements
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements (Cont.)

14.

15;

16.

Short-term acerucd cxpenscs

Accrued expenses to reluted purties

Tan Cang Hong Ngoc Phu Quoc Investment
Logistics JSC. — Expenses {or (ransporiation

Acerued expenses to other organizations and
individuals

Loan interest expenses

Expenses for transport, stevedoring
Electricity charge

Total

Other shorl-lterm payables

Puayables to related parties
Allowance for BOD, BOS

Tan Cang Hong Ngoc Phu Quoc Investment
Logistics JSC. - receipts and payments on behalf

Cat Lai Logistics J5C. - Expenses for transporl
Payables to other organizations and individuals
Trade Union’s expenditure

Social insurance, health insurance, unemployment
insurance premiums

Short-term deposits received

Dividends payable

Payments on behalf payable

Olher short-term payables

Total

The Group has no other overdue payables.

Borrowings

16a. Short-term borrowings

Ending balance

Beginning balance

197,499,260 &
197,499,260 -
397,671,601 1,322,254,484
3,039,320 -
386,317,929 1,020,317,217
8,314,352 301,937,267
595,170,861 1,322,254,484
Ending balance Beginning balance
341,765,000 5,800,000
162,000,000 -
173,965,000 -
5,800,000 5,800,000
7,390,795,931 8,324,778,108
38,209,244 35,291,786
4,128,734 9,396,940
566,550,000 582,590,000
5,626,596,635 6,217 886,335
1,133,257,286 1,458,122 847
22,054,032 21,290,000
7,732,560,931 8,330,578,108

This is the current portions of long-term loan from Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Forcign Trade
of Vietnam — Ho Chi Minh City Branch (Refer to Note V. 16b).

The Group has solvency to repay current portions of long-term loans.

16b. Long-term borrowings

This is the long-term loan from Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam — Ho
Chi Minh City Branch from 16 October 2024 to invest in fixed assets which arc § tractors, the loan
term is 60 months starting from the following day of the disbursement date to the maturity date
specified in the bill of debt. The interest rate of the loan is 6.8% per year. This loan is secured by

morlgaging the assets formed from the loan capital.

The Group has solvency to repay long-term loans.

These Notes form an iniggral part of and showld be vead in confumction with the Comsoliduted Finamcial Siatements
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Ngoyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietmam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont.)

Payment schedule of long-term loans from bank is as follows:

Ending balance Beginning balance

From or under 1 year 543,800,000 -

Over 1 yvear to 5 years 2,175,200,000 -

Owver 5 years _ ~ -

Total 2,719,000,000 -

Details of increase/ (decrease) of long-term loans from bank are as follows:

Current year Previous year

Beginning balance - -

Amount of loan incurred 2,719,000,000 -

Amount of loan repaid = =

I'ransfer to short-term loans (543, 300,000) ) -

Ending balance . 2,175,200,000 -

17. Bonus and welfare funds
due to !
B::E::::::g ix::‘l::::c I::;;:i:iiaﬁun j‘}is_hursement E’;g:::i
L from profit during the year "

Bonus fund 1,9971,802,906 4,000,000 3,836,971,627  (3,552,000,000)  2,280,774,533
Welfare fund 683,267,707 - 950242007  (1,166,430,000) 476,080,614
&“ﬁ:ﬁ:‘éﬁiﬁ 4,859,882 ; 349,382,163  (349,382,163) 4,859,882
Tatal 2,679.930,495 4,000,000 5,145,596,697  (5,067,812,163) 2,761,715,029

These Notet form an fntegral part of and showld be read in conjunciion with the Consolidated Financial Stalements 28
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Adddress: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fizcal year ended 31 December 2024

Muotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont.)

18b. Details of owner’s capital contribution

Ending balance Beginning balance
The State’s investment capital 162,149.200.000 162,149,200,000
Saigon Ne?wpnrf One Member Limited Liability 87.161.700,000 87.161.700,000
Corporation _
Volumtary Youth Public Benefit Service Ca., Ltd. 74,987,500.000 74,987,500,000
Other shareholders’ contribution capital 177.850,800,000 177,850,800,000
Share premiums ___60,123,44 2,000 60,123,448,000
Total 400,123,448,000 400,123,448,000
18¢. Shares -
Ending balance Beginning balance I
Numbcr of ordinary shares registered to be issued 34,000,000 34,000,000 ﬁl
MNumber of ordinary shares already issued 34,000,000 34,000,000 ;
Number of oulsianding ordinary shares 34,000,000 34,000,000 ,;

Face value per outstanding share: VND 10,000,

18d. Profit distribution

During the year, the Parent Company distributed profit in accordance with the Resolution of 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No.19/NQ-DHDCD/CLL dated 3 June 2024 as follows:

Distribution of profit after tax of 2023 VND
¢  Appropriation for the Executive Officers’ bonus fund : 349,382,163
o Dividends declared © 88.400.000,000
Temporary distribution of profit after tax of 2024

e Appropriation for bonus and welfare funds (5% of profit after tax) £ 4,796,214,534

The subsidiary distributed profit in accordance with the Resolution of 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders No. 01-2024/NQ-DHDCD/CIL dated 26 June 2024 as follows:

Distribution of profit after tax of 2023 VND
o Dividends declared to non-controlling sharcholders : 720,000,000

19, Off-Consolidated Balance Sheetf items
Foreign currencies

As of the balance sheet date, cash and cash equivalents included USD 3,701.88 (the beginning & %\
balance was USD 3,660.16). TP

These Notes form an inlegral part of and showld be recd i confunction with the Conselidated Financial Slatenrents 30



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen ‘Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Viemam

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Consolidated Finanecial Statemenis {Conl )

VI. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT

1.  Revenue from sales of merchandise and rendering of services

la. Gross revenue

Revenue from seaport leasing services
Revenue from transport services

Bevenue [rom stevedoring equipment leasing
services

Revenue from sales of merchandise
Oiher revenue

Total

Current year Previons year
153,000,000,000 150,000,000,000
131,055,558,684 119,643,811,381

23,800,483,512 25,053,140,539
588,282,710 -
14,144,374,365 11,594,117,160
322,588,699,271 306,291,069,080

Ib. Revenue from sales of merchandise and rendering of services to related parties

The Group has transactions of sales of merchandise and rendering of services to other related

partics as follows:

Current year

Previous year

Saigon Newport One Member Limited Liability
Carporation

Revenue from seaport leasing services

Bevenue from transport services

Revenue from stevedoring equipment leasing

Other revenue

Revenne from rendering of services to other related

153,000,000,000
156,225,587,315
23,800,483,512
6,645,034,365

150,000,000,000
111,726,380,508
25,053,140,539
11,594,117,160

parties _
Tan Cang — Tay Ninh JSC. 473,420,000 1,081,990,000
Tan Cang Song Than ICD JSC. 03,390,000 889,120,000
Cat Lai Logistics JSC, 121,700,000
Tan Cang Hong Ngoc Phu Quoc Investment
Lo gisticsg JSC, e k. i 384,100,000
Dong Nai Newporl Logistics JSC. - 118,972,730
Tan Cang Overland Transport JSC. 3,950,000 =
Tan Cang Hicp Phuoc Port ISC. 7,350,000 -
% Costs of sales
Current year Previous year
Costs of seaport leasing services 22.838,155,861 29.683,004,895
Costs of transport services 124,378,623,270 114,115,301,624
Costs of stevedoring equipment leasing services 20.949,146,670 22,295,789.242
Costs of merchandise sold 576,822,039 -
Other costs 14,351,352,113 10,052,960,964
Total 183,094,099,953 176,147,116,725
These Nates farn an integral part of and should be r-a-:;lri .f.;i- cﬁnjn_n-;..rm—n Witk the Cﬂrua.rm;;sm: f-'s'm;rmr':rf Statements ; 3
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Puc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnan

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FFor the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
'iiuti.-s to the Consolidated Financial Statements {Cont.)

3,  Financial income
Current year Previous year
Interest from bank deposits 9.136,414,615 10,181,790,837
Exchange gain arising from transactions in foreign
currencics 472,158,795 -
E:i;iu::lgfbrg;l;nd:; r;::n g;zsrevaluatmn of monetary i 2,507,532
Total 9,178,573,410 10,184,298,369
4.  Financial expenses
Current year I'revious year
Interest expenses 35,"51'?65-,293 o
F.xchansga loss arising from transactions in forcign i 51216
CUITENCIES
il - : 637,309,606
Total 35,965,293 1,637,360,822
S Selling expenses
Currcat year Previous year
Expenses for external services 720,954,000 925,464,000
Other expenses 387,666,560 824,863,065
Total 1,108,620,560 1,750,327,065
6. General and administration expenses
Currcnt year Previous year
Labor costs 15,483,246,903 12,899,472,105
Materials, supplies 125,633,778 223,631,815
Office supplics 458,937,833 328,629,923
Depreciation/amortization of fixed assets 1,979,579,510 1.918,454,772
Taxes, fees and legal fees 26,684,175 36,424 907
Allowance for doubtful debts 3,580,993.812 213,140,577
Expenses for external services 3,965,070,596 3,143,717.923
Other expenses 6.447,861.233 6,056,242,427
Total 32,068,007,840 24,819,714,449
7. Other income
Current year ~_ Previous year
Gain on disposal and liquidation of fixed assets 4,242,442,328 '3,072,399.360
Proceeds from selling used scraps, materials 30,310,000 i
s i At - 294,066,047
Other income 15 972
Total 4,272,752,343 3,366,466,379
T here Nates form an integral part of and thould be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements 32

Mol

2

Hrn . e gy



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal vear ended 31 December 2024

MNotes to the Consolidated Finaunecial Statements (Cont.)

8.

™

9a,

9b.

Other expenses

Current year Previous year
Fines for administrative violation and tax fincs .
and tax collected in arrears 219,658,000 38,896,871
Support costs 71,712,690 184,800,000
Expens i
e oy 1,518,466,400 :
Other expenses - _ 38.616,857
Total 1,810,018,939 262,313,728

According to the Appeal Judgment No. 132/2024/KDTM-PT dated 24 May 2024 of the People's
Court of 1o Chi Minh City regarding the dispute over the business cooperation contract between
Saigon Agricultural Incorporation and Cat Lai Port Joint Stock Company, the Company is required
to pay Saigon Agricultural Incorporation VND 1,452,880,000 (including 13 months of revenue
sharing and interest arising from deferred payment) and cover court fees of VND 55,586,400,

Earnings per share (“EPS")

Basic/Diluted EPS
Current year Previouns year

Accounting profit aff-:r corporate income tax of 97,374.835.265 96,847,450.473
the Parent Company’s shareholders

Appropriation for the Parent Company’s bonus

and welfare funds (*) (4,796,214,534) (4,670,345,541)
gi:::adl arent Company’s Executive Officers’ bonus - (349,382,163)
Praofit used to calculate basic EPS 892,578,620,731 01.827,722,769
j'Lw.j,mge number of ordinary shares outstanding 34,000,000 34,000,000
during the year

Basic EPS 2,723 2,701

(*) For the purpose of determining the “Basic EI'S” item of the current year, the bonus and welfare
fund and the Exccutive Officers’ bonus fund are (emporarily calculated based on 2024 profit
distribution plan, in accordance with the Resolution of 2024 Annual General Mecting of
Shareholders No. 19/NQ-DHDCD/CLL dated 3 June 2024,

The basic EPS of the previous year was recalculated, decreasing from VND 2,711 to VIND 2,701
due to the deduction of the appropriation for the Executive Officers” bonus fund when determining
the profit used to calculate basic EPS, in accordance with the guidance of the Circular No.
200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2024 of the Ministry of Finance.

Other information

There have not been any transactions of ordinary shares or potential transactions of ordinary shares
from the balance sheet date to the disclosure date of these Consolidated Financial Statements,

These Nater form an integral part of and should e vead in conjurction with the Conrolidated Finaniial Statements 33
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Tha Duc City, Tlo Chi Minh City, Victnam

CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont.)

10. Operating cosis by factors

Current year

Previous ycar

Materials and supplies 21,558,593,596 22,971,262,446
Labor costs 30,912,670,597 30,014,275.616
Depreciation/amortization of fixed assets 28.827.491,698 35.645.217,698
Expenses for external services 114,957,131,134 98,343,872,907
(ther expenses 19,438,019,289 15.742,529,572
Total 215,693,9060,314 202,717,158.239

VII. OTHER DISCLOSURES

I.  Operating leased assets

As of the balance sheet date, the future minimum rental income from irrevocable operating lease

confracts to be received is as follows:

Ending balance

Beginning balance

2a.

From or under 1 year 150,000,000.000 150,000,000,000
Over 1 year to 5 years &00,000,000,000 750,000,000,000
Over 5 years - -
Total 750,000,000,000 ~900,000,000,000

The total rental income recognized as revenue during the year is VND 153,000,000,000 (for the
comparable period of the previous year: VND 150,000,000,000).

Transactions and balances with the related parties
The related parties of the Group include the key managers, their related individuals and other
related parties.

Transactions and balances with the key managers and their related individuals

The key managers include the members of the Board of Directors (BOD), the Board of Supervisors
(BOS) and the Executive Officers (the Board of Management, the Chicf’ Accountant). The key
managers’ related individuals are their close family members,

Tramsactions with the key managers and their related individuals
The Group has no transactions with the key managers and their related individuals in the year (in

the previous year, the Group only had transactions of advance and refund of advance to/from M.
Pham Hieu Dao — BOD Member cum Deputy Director with the amount of VIND 40,000,000 and

VND 40,000,000, respectively).

Receivables from and payables to the key managers and their related individuals
Receivables from and payables to the key managers and their related individuals are presented in
Note V.15.

S T —

These Notes fornt an integral port of and should be read i confumetion with the Consslidated Finsacial Statements 34



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCIK COMPANY

Address: Neuyen Thi Dinh Read, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, ITe Chi Minh City, Viemam

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Compensation of the key managers

Full name — Position

Muotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Conl.)

Current year
Mr. Mguyen Thanh Son — Chairman (from 013
June 2024)

Mr. Nguyen Phuong Nam - Chairman (to 03
Tune 2024)

Mr, Ta Cao Thai - Vice Chairman
Mr. Menyen Chau Bao - BOD Member
Ms. Nguyen Huynh Mai - BOD Member

Mr. Le Chi Dang - BOD Member cum
Dirvector

Mr. Pham Hieu Dao - BOD Member cum
Deputy Director

Mr. Hoang Duc Thinh - BOD Member

Mr. Do Thanh Thanh - BOS Manager

Ivfs. Le Thi Doan Trang - BOS Member

Mir. Le Fai Nam - BOS Member

Mr, Hoang Minh Thao — Depuly Director

- (from 03 June 2024)

Mr. Npuyen Viet Truong — Chief Accountant

Total

Previoux year

Mr, Nguyen Phuong Nam - Chairman
Mr. Le Thanh Khoa -~ Vice Chairman
(to 27 June 2023)

Ir, Ta Cao Thai- Vice Chairman

(from 27 June 2023)

Wr. Hoang Due Thinh — BOD Member
(from 27 June 2023)

Mr. Nguyen Chau Bao - BOD Member
Ms, Mguyen Huynh Mai - BOD Member

Mr. Le Chi Dang - BOD Member cum
Director

Mr. Pham Hieu Dao - BOD Member cum
Deputy Director

Mr. Do Thanh Thanh — BOS Manager

Ms. Le Thi Doan Trang — BOS Member

Mr. Le ITai Nam - BOS Member

Mr. Nguyen Vict Troong — Chief Accountant

Total

Balary Bonus Allowance Lot :

compensation

816,750,000 15,500,000 = 832,250,000

- 33,676,031 50,700,000 104,376,031

- 27,434,416 120,000,000 147,434 416

£ 43,816,752 72,000,000 115,916,752

- 43,916,752 72,000,000 115,916,752
1,2259,055,921 74,796,391 72,000,000 1,375,852,312
946,000,586 74,796,391 108,000,000  1,128.862,977

= 22,446,340 72,000,000 84,446,340

- = 60,000,000 60,000,000

- = 54,000,000 34,000,000

= - 54,000,000 54,000,000

622,641,105 15,500,000 = 638,141,105
840,497,430 60,157,475 24,000,000 024,654,905
4,455,011,042 432,140,548 758,700,000 5,645,851,590
- 51,455,325 120,000,000 171,455,325

- 51,455,325 38,666,667 110,121,992

- = 87,733,333 87,733,333

- - 36,800,000 36,800,000

- 42,099,811 72,000,000 114,089,811

e 42,099,811 72,000,000 114,099,811
1,091.415,855 72,777,568 72,000,000 1,236,193,423
834,359,231 72,777,568 108,000,000  1015,176,799

- = 60,000,000 60,000,000

- z 27,600,000 27,600,000

. - 54,000,000 54,000,000

744,895,717 58,744,298 24,000,000 827,640,015
2.670,710,803 391,409,706 792,800,000 3,854,920,509

These Notes form an integral part of and should be rewd in confunction with the Conseliduted Financial Statements



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Ngouyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Tai Ward, Thu Duoe City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to ihe Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont,)

2b.  Transactions and balances with other related parties
Other related parties of the Group include:
Name

Relationship

Saigon Newport One Member Limited Liability Corporation
Volantary Youth Public Benefit Service Co., Lid.

Tan Cang Que Vo I5C.

Tan Cang Logistics and Stevedoring 15C.

Tan Cang Technical Services JSC.

Tan Cang Gantry JSC.

Tan Cang Container Services JSC.

Tan Cang Construction JSC.

Tan Cang — STC Human Resource Development Co., Ltd.
Tan Cang - Tay Ninh JSC.

Tan Cang Warehousing JSC,

Cat Lai Logistics JSC.

Morth Newport Logistics JSC,

Tan Cang Song Than ICD JSC.

Tan Cang Hong Ngoc Phu Quoc Investment Logistics ISC.
Dong Nai Newport Logistics JSC.

Transactions with other related partics

Large sharcholder

Large shareholder

Associate

Related parly of large sharcholder
Related party of large sharcholder
Related party of large sharcholder
Related party of large shareholder
Related party of large sharcholder
Related party of large sharcholder
Related party of large sharcholder
Related party of large sharcholder
Related party of large shareholder
Related party of large sharchaolder
Related party of large sharcholder
Related party of large shareholder
Belated party of large shareholder

Apart from transactions as presented in Note VL1b, the Group also has other transactions with

other related parties as follows:

Current year

Previous year

Dividends payable to related parties:
Saigon Newport One Member Limited Liability

; 22,662,042,000 32,075,505,600
Corporation
Tan Cang Logistics and Stevedoring JSC. 3,217.500,000 4,554,000,000
Voluntary Youth Public Bepefit Service Co., Lid. 19,496,750,000 27,595,400,000
Purchasing merchandise and using services of related ’
purties:
Saigon Newport One Member Limited Liability
Corporation 219,664,768 111,396,713
Tan Cang Construction JSC. 11,126,029.,093 2,902.465,11
Tan Cang Technical Services JSC. 3,124,547.523 21,5ﬂ9,543,1%§4
Tan Cang Container Scrvices JSC. 74,390,000 219,861,6167
Tan Cang — STC Human Resource Development Co., Lid. 42,593,000 1?5,29U,ﬂ(}bi
Tan Cang - Tay Ninh JSC. 46,574,074 21,881,818/
Tan Cang Warchousing JSC. 9,685,185 51.843,18
Cat Lai Logistics JSC. 27,687,963 249,533,334
North Newport Logistics JSC. 4 247,400,000
Tan Cang Song Than ICD JSC. 13,500,000 -
Tan.Cs.mg Hong Ngoc Phu Quoc Investment 43.041,291,036 43,980,010,886
Logistics JSC.
Dong Nai Newport Logistics JSC, 114,400,000 146,318,180

These Notes form an intezral part of and showld be read in confunction with the Consolidated Financial Swatements
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address; Nguyen Thi Dink Road, Cat Lai Ward, Tha Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tor the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont.)

Receivables from and payables to other related parties
Receivables from and payables to other related parties are presented in Notes V.3, V.4, V. 5a, V.12,
V.14 and V.15.

Receivables from other related parties are unsccured and will be paid in cash. No allowance has
been made for the receivables from other related parlies.

3. Segment information
The primary reporting format is the business segments since risks and profitability of the Group are
substantially affected by differcnces on its products and services provided by the Group.

Ja. Information on business segments
The Group has main business segments as follows:
¢ Scaport lcasing and support service seginent; and
e Transport service segment.
Information on business results, fixed assets, other long-term assets and value of significant non-

cash expenses of business segments of the Group is as follows:
Seaport leasing

and support T.ranspnrt Total
o SEngflﬂl.lt Service S'Egl’l'IEII.t

Current year -

Met external revenue 190,824,857.877 131,763,841,394  322,588.699,271
Net inter-segment revenue - = 4 -
Total nel revenue 190,824,857,877 131,763,841,394  322,588,699,271
Segment operating profit _132,806,203,233 6,688,396,085  139.454,599,318
Expenses not attributable to segments (33,143,311,163)
Operating profil 106,352,328,155
Profit/ (loss) in joint ventures, associates 0,204,984,752
Financial income 0,178,573,410
Financial expenses (35,965,293)
Other income 4,272,752,343
(ther expenses (1,810,018.939)
Current income tax (24,973,155,123)
Deferred income tax - -
Profit after tax _ 99,155,142,068

and ofher non-current assefs

Total expenses for acquisition of fixed assets 17,565,833,319  9,526,700,442 27,092,533,761

Tt depreCucdn) anuiriaon amy 20,367,117,476  13,111,116,227  33,478,233,703
allocation of long-term prepaid expenses

These Notes form an tntegral pari of and showld he read in comfunction with the Consolidated Financiol Statements 37
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CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietmam

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

MNoles to the Conselidated Financial Statcments (Cont.)

Previous year
Met external revenue
Met inter-segment revenue

Total net revenne

Segmenl operating profit

Expenses not atiributable to scgments
Operating profit

Profit/ (loss) in joint venlurcs, associates
Financial income

Financial expenses

Other income

Other expenses

Current income tax

Deferred income tax

Profit after tax

Total expenses for acquisition of fixed ussels

and other nor-current assers

Total depreciation/ amortization and
allocation of long-term prepaid expenses

Scaport leasing

Transport

The Group's assets and liabilitics by business segments are as follows:

Ending balance

and support ; Taotal
. service scgment
service segment S
186,647,257,699 119.643,811,381 106,201,069,080
I186,647,257,699 119,643811,381  306,291,069,080
124,615,442,598 5,528,509,757  130,143,952,355
(26,570,041,514)
103,573,910,842
6,013,554,405
10,184,298,369
(1,637,360,822)
3,366,466,379
{262,313,728)
(22,738,267,784)
98,500,287,751
5,442,916,457 - 5,442,916,457
28,171,229,828 7,473,987.870 35,645,217,698
Seaport leasing ; < e
and support L Total

service segment

service segment

75,348,377,005

Segment assets 606,362,586,666 681,710,963,671
Allocated assets 4 _ .
Unallocated assets ) .Za'._}}':i;:;%
Total assets 681,710,963,671 ikind~
T OmTY
S 21 Hilu M
Segment liabilities 24,939,698,739  33,150.449.277  58,090,148,016 - jiryv
; iabiliti £ = . %C
Allocated hia LI 1.1f:-.s: & EQ,L,
Unallocated liabilities - __1?;:.
Total liabilitics 38,090,148,016 =
Tf_:h._es.e Noter form an integral parl of and should be read in confunceion with the Consolidated Financlal Statements 38



CAT LAI PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nguyen Thi Dinh Road, Cat Lai Ward, “Thu Due City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements (Cont.)

Seaport leasin
mipport. T Tot

service segment =
Beginning balance 156,426,543,565  60,276,609,807 216,703,153,372
Segment assets - = -
Allocated assets . 458,398,839,152
Unallocated assets 675,101,992,524
Total assets __216,703,1 53,372
Segment liabilities 5797989293 _ 31,565,189,264 37,363,178,357
Allocated liabilities 1 ' : o\ -
Unallocated liabilities
Toral linbilitics

3b. Information on geographical segmients
‘The Group’s operations mainly take place in domestic area.

4. Subscquent events

There have been no material events after the balance shect date, which require to make adjustments

on the figures or to be disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Prepared on 19 February 2025

Chicf Accountant

Vo Thai Hau Nguyen Viet Truong Le Chi Dang

These Notes form an integral part of and showld ke rud in confunciion with the Consolidated Firanciel Statements
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